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FCE Bank plc 1s an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Ford The Company and its subsidianies are the
automotive financial services arm of Ferd in Europe and employ around 2,800 people who provide
automotive finance and services to dealers, retall and fleet customers in 19 European countries Our
mission is to support the sales of Ford automotive brands in Europe (Ford, Jaguar, Land Rover, Mazda,
and Volvo)} while returning value to our shareholder The Company typically operates as a secured lender
in the financing products provided
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Definitions
For the purpose of this report (with the exception of the Independent Auditors' report) the term
(i} '‘Company’ means FCE Bank plc and its European branches
{n) 'Group', 'FCE', 'we', 'us’' or 'our’ means the Company, its European branches and subsidianes
{m) 'FMCC' means Ford Motor Credit Company, an indirect whollty owned subsidiary of Ford
{v) 'Ford’ means Ford Motor Company, the Company’s ulimate parent company
{v) 'FCI means Ford Credit Intemational, Inc a subsicdhary of FMCC and the Company's immediate shareholder
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The Chairman’s statement

| am pleased to announce that FCE achieved pre-tax profits of £329 mifion 1n 2008 Aflthough this 1s down
£27 million from the pnor year # represents strong performance m a highly competitive market
Exceptional items represented a £8 million decrease to profits compared to a £34 milion increase to
profits in 2005 as detailed in Note 8 to the accounts, 'Profit before tax'

Overall FCE's asset levels were at approximately the same level as 2005 and were well diversified by both
market and automotive brand The retall portfolio continues to perform in ine with the nsk profiles
established for onigination activities and 1s reflected 1n the near to histonically low loss levels being
experienced We are continuing to invest in mproving the data foundations and in enhancing risk
modelling capabiities By maintaming a disciplined cycle of refresh to our nsk models we can be
confident of continued dependable and predictable portfolio performance

The Company's credit rating i1s linked to those of our parent company, FMCC, which were lowered during
2006 However in July 2006, Standard & Poor's, a leading provider of independent credit ratings,
assigned to the Company a rating one notch higher than FMCC The Company has continued its
European Medium Term Note programme and resumed 1ssuance under the programme at the beginning
of 2007 To date in 2007 we have completed two large unsecured debt transactions for Euro 1 billion and
£750 million respectively While continuing to access the unsecured debt market, FCE has also increased
its use of securitisation and other asset-backed sources of funding as these channels are presently more
cost effective than unsecured funding and provide access to a broad investor base In 2006 FCE
launched a record number and value of secuntisation transactions

The completion of the five year programme to outsource FCE's full-service lease business in 12 markets
in Europe 15 an example of an alternative business model which also reduces FCE's funding
requrements FCE's leasing product 1s now consistently branded as "Business Partner” and 15 a fee-
based, non-equity model that supports Ford's vehicle sales FCE also has a well established automotive
insurance business through which we are able to provide a valuable customer offering by partnering with
leading insurance providers and recewe fees without exposure to the insurance nisk

Common IT apphcations and business processes are at the centre of FCE's drive to minimise its operating
costs ensurning consistency In the qualty of service provided to our customers throughout Europe The
wholesale financing system, which enables FCE to manage a dealer's inventory financing was introduced
into our German operations in 2006 and 1s now used by every FCE locatton in Europe Our principal
platform for retai financing 15 operated n 17 of our 19 locations While n Brntan and Germany we
leverage a shared technolegy platform with our US parent that provides appropriate scale and economics
for our two largest operations

Thanks to the hard work and ded:ication of our employees we accomplished a great deal in 2006 delivering
strong profits while supporting the sales of vehicles by our automotive partners Our close working
relationship with both the automotive marketing and sales organisations and the dealer network remains
key to our success We continue to focus on new and innovative ways to support vehicle sales through
targeted offers that provide funding and services to our customers at the time when they are in market We
were particularly pleased to be able to support the launch of the new Transit and the all new S-Max, which
were awarded 2007 Van Of The Year and 2007 Car Of The Year respectively The coming year will no
doubt be another challenging one, but with exciting new products from our automotive partners such as the
Ford Mondeo, Volvo C30, Land Rover Freelander 2, and Mazda CX7, we are well placed to achieve our
goals

Bernard B Silverstone
Chairman, FCE Bank plc
28 March 2007
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43rd Annual Report of the Directors

[Review of business and operations

Description of the business

The Company 1s authonsed and 1s regulated by the United Kingdom (UK) Financial Services
Authonty (FSA) The Company also holds a standard licence pursuant to the Consumer Credit Act
1974 in the UK and additional licenses to conduct financing business in other European locations

FCE's pnimary business 1s to support the sale of Ford and affilated manufacturers’ vehicles in
Europe through their respective dealer networks There have not been any significant changes
FCE's principal activities In the year under review The directors are not aware, at the date of this
report, of any likely major changes in activities in the coming year

The following charts show the net recevables by major market and brand at December 31, 2002 and
December 31 2006 The market analysis demonstrates the growing importance of the Hlaban,
Spanish and other markets in our European portfolto The brand analysis shows the increased
contribution of Premier Automotive Group (Volvo, Land Rover and Jaguar) and Mazda financing

Receivables by Market

2002 2006
Other Germany
Other Germany Europe 22%
Eurapo 207 2% %
Spain
8% Spain
taly 9% UK 24%

France 6%
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Receivables by Brand
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Review of business and operations continued

Description of the business continued

FCE prowides a vanety of retall, leasing and wholesale finance plans in the markets in which they
operate  Retall financing 1s provided predominately through a number of title retention plans,
including conditional sale, hire purchase and instalment credit loans  Operating and finance leases
are provided to individual, corporate and other institutional custorners, covering single vehicles as
well as large and small fleets In most markets operating leases are provided by business partners to
whom FCE has outsourced certain functions whilst retaiming responsibility for marketing and sales in
return for fee income (see below under Full Service Leasing) FCE provides a vanety of vehicle
wholesale plans to dealers and in addition, loans for working capital and property acquisitions

FCE also offers distinctive branded insurance products in partnership with local insurance providers
It distnbutes these products primanly through Ford, Jaguar, Land Rover, Mazda and Volvo
dealerships 1in many European markets Insurance 1s a fee-based, non-equity business for FCE
High loyalty rates mean that insurance continues to encourage repar work into franchised dealer
body shops, as all polictes require orniginal manufacturer parts for repars Payment protection
polictes are sold 1n many European markets providing additional security to customers

In addition to operating in the UK, the Company operates branches in 15 other European countries
and has subsidiaries in the Czech Republic, Finland (where also 1t has a branch), Hungary, Poland
and the UK (see Note 14 'Investment in group undertakings’) Other than the UK the main operations
are in the EU focused in France, Germany, ltaly and Spain The European branches and subsidianes
of the Company have establhished additonal finance faciiies and associated trading styles primanly
for Ford affilated manufacturers m Europe which are detaled within the European operating
locations listing on page 97

The Company's Worldwide Trade Financing (WTF) division provides finance to distnbutors and
importers in countnes where typically there 1s no estabhshed local Ford presence  WTF currently
provides finance in over 70 countnes In addition there are prnivate label operations In some
European markets

Full service leasing Under our business model for the provision of full service leasing products
{(FSL) FCE retains responsibility for marketing and sales, for which it receives a fee income, and
outsources finance, leasing, maintenance and reparr services for current and future portfolios of
commercial operating leases to a preferred FSL business partner identified on a market by market
basis This business model ensures that the outsourced operations will deliver a more competitive
product and will continue marketing support for Ford and affillated manufacturers |n line with this
strategy, FCE bhas sold certain European FSL portfolios and outsourced the on-going provision of
FSL products in those markets in the future For further information on transactions completed in
2006 please see Note 35 'Disposals’ on page 84
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IDisposals continued|

Ireland On 23 December 2005 FCE agreed, with effect 3 January 2006, to outsource future
provision of retail and lease finance in Ireland to a thurd party bank For further information please see
Note 35 'Disposals' on page 84

FCE continues to review its operations to identify alternative business structures and other
opportunities to generate non-equity business

Dunng 2006 FCE continued to meet a significant portion of its funding requirements through sales of
receivables taking advantage of the stability of the market for asset-backed securties Asset-backed
funding has lower relative costs compared to unsecured debt and provides further diversity of
funding In doing so we utiised a vanety of both amortising and revolving structures as well as other
forms of structured financing and factoring  For further information see Note 13 'Sales of
Recewvables and Related Financing' Accordingly, we raised GBP 752 million of funding through the
sale of wholesale automotive receivables in Belgium, the Netherlands and Germany Also during the
year, we raised GBP 1,122 million through the sale of retal automotive recewvables in Belgium,
Germany, the Netherlands and Spain, and approximately GBP 1,198 mulion through the sale of retail
automotive receivables in the UK Further secuntisation transactions are planned during 2007

In addition, FCE raises funds through local bank borrowing, private and public debt offerings and the
Issuance of commercial paper

hare Capital

There was no change to the 1ssued share capital of the Group during the year

In December 2006 the Company received a capital contnbution of US$ 75 million (2005 US$ 49
mithon) from its shareholder to be used solely to make a payment to Jaguar Cars Limied in return for
use of group tax relief For further information see Note 31 'Retained earnings and cther reserves’

IPost balance sheet events]

Refer to Note 36 'Post balance sheet events'

[Results and dividends]

The directors did not declare any dividends dunng 2006 and do not recommend the payment of
a final dividend (2005 none) The prefit for the year of £231 million will be transferred to the
Group’s reserves
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[Future Outlook

For future prospects and key performance indicators please see the Strategy and Performance
section starting on page 12

[Principal risks and uncertainties|

The Risk Management section which starts on page 17 details the nsks that FCE 1s exposed to
during the normal course of business and the processes in place to manage those nsks The
principal external business nsks and uncertainties facing FCE which are not already included in the
Risk Management section are itemised below

FCE's business 15 substantially dependent upon the sale of Ford and affihated manufacturers'
vehicles in Eurcpe and its ability to offer competitive financing on those vehicles The automotive
industry i1s highly compettive Sales of Ford and affihated manufacturers' vehicles could decline if
Ford 1s unable to respond to price pressure in the industry

The provision of finance n Europe 1s highly competitive, and FCE must compete effectively with
other providers of finance Ford in Europe currently provides a number of marketing programmes that
employ financing incentives {o generate increased sales of vehicles These financing incentives
generate significant business for FCE If Ford chose to shift the emphasis from such financing
incentives, this could impact FCE's share of financing related to Ford vehicles

The credt ratings of FCE and FMCC have been closely associated with the rating agencies’
assessments of Ford The lower credit ratings assigned to FCE and FMCC over the past several
years are pnmanly a reflection of the rating agencies’ concerns regarding Ford's automotive cash
flow, profitability, market share, and health care and post-retirement benefit plan costs, as well as the
potential impact on Ford of market factors such as excess industry capacity and industry pricing
pressure Lower credit ratings generally result in higher borrowing costs and reduced access to
capital markets

A future inability to access debt or secuntisation markets at competitive rates or in sufficient amounts
due to additional credit rating downgrades or other reasons or the withdrawal of existing liquidity
facihties (such as bank committed ines of credit) or Ford intra-group lending may reduce the amount
of recewvables FCE could purchase and adversely affect profitabiity and volume
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The full ist of present directors is shown on page 2 Mr Corbello resigned as Chairman of the Board
effective 1 June 2006 upon his retirement from the Ford organisation Mr Silverstone was appointed
as Chairman of the Board with effect the same date Mr J Moynes resigned as a director with effect
1 July 2006 Ms Falotico and Mr Ribits were appomted as directors effective 21 July 2006 Mr
Corbello and Mr Romer-Lee were appointed as addtional Non-Executive Directors effective 1
August 2006 and 1 October 2006 respectively Mr Thomson resigned as a Non-Executive Director
and Chairman of the Audt Committee effective 31 December 2006 Mr A Vandenplas was
appointed as a director effective 28 March 2007 For detalls on the attendance record of Non-
Executive Directors please see the section entitled Corporate Governance on page 21

With the exception of Mr Noone, Mr Vandenplas and the five current Non-Executive Directors, Mrs
C A Bogdanowicz-Bindert, Mr Corbello, Mr M Robinson, Mr Romer-Lee and Mr C Toner, all
directors are employees of the Company Mr Noone 1s employed elsewhere within Ford

Mrs C A Bogdanowicz-Bindert 1s a Non-Executive Director of McBride plc  She was previously a
Non-Executive Director of BPH Bank, PBK Bank and Bank Gdanski before which she worked in
vanous senicr positions at Lehman Brothers and the International Monetary Fund

Mr Corbello 1s former Chairman of FCE up until June 2008, former Vice President of FMCC and
Executive Vice President Ford Credit Intemational, Inc and previously held vanous other senior posts
with FMCC

Mr Robmson s a former Regional Managing Director at National Westminster Bank plc with whom
previously he had held varnous other senior management posts including being Head of Streamline
Merchant Services and Head of Card Services

Mr Romer-Lee i1s a Non-Executive Director of Sonall Bank (UK} Limited and was formerly a partner
of PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where he was Head of Financial Services, Central & Eastern
Europe and with whom he previously held various other senior management posts

Mr Toner has been Non-Executive Charrman of Barratt Developments plc since October 2002,
having previously been Non-Executive Vice Chairman, former Deputy Group Chief Executive of
Abbey National plc and former Deputy Chairman of NHBC

In accordance with the Articles of Association all directors will seek re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 28 March 2007

None of the directors have a beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company The executive
directors hold shares in and/or options over shares in Ford — for further details please refer to Note 6
'Other operating expenses'

[Going concern|

The Directors are confident in making the formal going concern statement that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason the directors believe it 1s appropnate to continue to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng these accounts
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[Payments to suppliers|

FCE does not operate a standard payment policy as each location i1s responsible for agreeing terms
of payment in accordance with the conditions of the order We seek to abide by the payment terms
agreed with supphers whenever it is satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods or services In
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions

The ratio, expressed in days, between the amounts owed by FCE to trade creditors at the end of the
year and the amounts invoiced by suppliers in the year ended 31 December 2006 1s 45 days (2005
45 days)

[Changes in fixed assets]

Movements in fixed assets are as disclosed in Note 15 'Goodwill and other intangible assets' and
Note 16 'Property and equipment’ on pages 65 and 66 respectively

FCE made no chantable or political donations duning the year under review

The executive directors and the majonty of employees of FCE are accruing benefits as members of
varnious retirement plans administered by Ford affillated companies For further information see Note
25 'Retirement benefit obligations' which commences on page 73

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in Note & 'Other operating
expenses’ which commences on page 53

[Employee communication|

FCE keeps all employees informed of its activites on a national, pan-European and global level by
means of in-house publications, infranet and the annual publication of its reports and financial
statements FCE conducts an annual employee satisfaction survey (Pulse) with a feedback and
action-plannming process aimed at continued dialogue between management and staff to achieve
appropriate levels of employee satisfaction In addition semor management conducts regular
cascade meetings throughout the year with employees These allow management to communicate
key business information whilst allowing two-way dialogue via question and answer sessions on
business matters FCE also fully complies with relevant European and national legislation on
nformation and consultation procedures
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[Employment practices]

FCE complies fully with relevant legislation enacted by both European and national parhaments and
any impact the requirements of the FSA has on Human Resources (HR) policy and process The
Company 15 also commitied to 'best practice' HR policies and processes in support of the business
objectives and in ine with its 'Employer of Choice’ strategy

As part of being an 'Employer of Choice’ FCE has a retention strategy to ensure that the required
skills and experience required to support business objectives are retained This strategy includes the
use of Personnel Development Committees to support the development of employees and ensure
effective succession planning for key roles, a compensation and benefits philosophy targeted at
achieving overall competitiveness with the external market, rewarding performing and retaining key
skills, and completion of annual individual development plans for all employees which 1dentify their
training and development needs

FCE 1s committed to diversity in the workplace This values differences provided by culture, ethnicity,
race, gender, disabibty, nationalty, age, religion/beliefs, education, experence and sexual
onentation FCE uses the views of employees to mprove processes and 1o foster a culture based on
honesty and respect

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort
Is made to ensure that ther employment with FCE continues and that appropnate traiming 1s
arranged It 1s FCE's policy that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons
should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employees

Consistent with the principle of diversity FCE also operates a Dignity at Work policy which promotes
a business environment where employees, customers and suppliers are valued for themselves and
therr contribution to the business FCE 1s committed to conduchng its business with integrity and
utiising the talents of everyone through providing an environment free from unlawful discrimination,
harassment, bullying and victimisation

FCE encourages its employees to gwve something back to ther local community Our policy in this
area 1s that all employees can have up to 16 normal paid work hours per annum (equivalent to two
paid work days) to invest in community projects

Basel Il revised international capital framework

Basel Il provides a more robust and nsk-sensitive framewaork for determining the capital requirements
of financial institutions than the Basel | Accord it replaces A thorough review of the implications of
the adoption of Basel Il has been carmed out and the required changes to ensure comphance with
BASEL Il from January 2008 have been identified

The Company's Basel |l project 1s being overseen by a Steenng Committee with Execubive level
sponsorship and regular reporting to the Regulatory Compliance Committee

10
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IBASEL |l revised international capital framework continued|

FCE's Basel Il project has core ams of

Demonstrating robust internal capital adequacy assessment processes,

Implementing credit nsk reporting processes based on management information systems,
Deploying comprehensive operational risk {racking, measurement and management processes,
Developing comphant and informative market disclosures

IDisclosure of Information to Auditorgl

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted tn accordance with the provisions of Section
2347A of the Companies Act 1985 Each person who 1s a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that
s So far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which FCE's auditors are
unaware, and
+ Each director has taken all the steps that he/she ought reasonably be expected to have taken as
a director to make himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
FCE's auditors are aware of that information

[Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements|

The directors are required by UK company law to prepare financial statements for each financial year
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group of which 1t forms a
part as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that perntod

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been made in the preparation of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 and that they comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards The directors also confirm that applicable accounting standards have
been followed and that the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responstble for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group, and for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detechon of fraud and other rregulanties

In accordance with Section 384 of the Companies Act 1985, a resclution proposing the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors will be submitted to the Annual General
Meetmg to be held on 28 March 2007

BY ORDER OF TI-(E%S&W

Carol V Rogoff
Company Secretary
28 March 2007

11
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Strategy and performance summary

FCE's objective 1s to support the sales of our automotive partners while returning value to the
shareholder

Our business model goes beyond simply providing the means for customers to finance the purchase
of a motor vehicle It 1s to develop customer loyalty which 1s a critical success factor for the
automotive dealer-based distnbution system  Market research over time and over different markets
and sectors consistently shows that customers who finance their vehicle purchase through FCE are
significantly more hkely to purchase their next vehicle from the same dealer and the same automotive
brand

The customer benefits from convenience of arranging finance and insurance at the vehicle pont of
sale and from the service provided by an crgamsation dedicated to support the customer nght
through the ownership expenence The dealer benefits from increased customer satisfaction and
loyalty, from the support of a bank that supports dealers across the nsk range, and that works closely
and consistently with the vehicle manufacturer The automotive company benefits from increased
customer satisfacton and loyalty, consistent support for the dealer distrnibution model, and the
efficiency of marketing with the aid of a consistent pan-European finance provider FCE benefits
from increased vehicle sales as this increases cur own sales opportunity, through presence at the
dealer point of sale, and through manufacturer support for finance-based marketing programs

Origination Buy it Right, Price 1t Right — We will continue to work closely with our brand partners to
create value for our dealers and customers by seeking opportunities to go into the market place
together, maximising our unique position as Ford's financing company  Risk management 1s also
key to our continued value and profitability We have extensive nsk management experience and
our focus 15 on leveraging and strengthening global nsk skills internally  Through these efforts, we
will continue to optimise profitability as well as generate incremental vehicle sales for Ford

Servicing Operate Efficiently, Collect Effectively, Enhance Owner Loyalty — FCE has continued to
dnive efficiencies by increasing the commonality of business processes and information technology
platforms  This program has enabled us to reduce the number of uniqgue market/brand systems in
core activites  Our two major service centres in Germany and Britain combine with the US service
centres of FMCC to dnve efficiencies globally by sharing best practices  We remain focused on
dnving cost reductions in proportion to the overall size of our business while iImproving customer
service and owner loyalty

Funding Fund it Efficiently, Manage Risk — Our funding strategy 1s to maintain hquidity and access
to diverse funding sources that are cost effective  In recent years, lower credit ratings generally
have resulted in higher borrowing costs and reduced access fo capital markets  Our credit ratings
are closely associated with the credit ratings of Ford, which have been lowered In the last several
years This s mamly a reflection of concerns regarding Ford's automotive cash flow and profitability,
dechning share of the US market, excess industry capacity, industry pricing pressure and nising US
health care costs In July 2006, Standard & Poor's assigned a one notch positive differential credit
rating to the Company versus FMCC  Asset-backed funding programs are more cost-effective
compared with unsecured funding programs, and allow us access to a broader investor base We
plan to meet a significant portion of our funding requirements through secuntisation transactions in
2007

12
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Strategy and performance summary

2006
Sales Results
Automotive Brand share of Western Europe Passenger
Car Market* 12.4%
FCE New Contracts as a percentage of Vehicle Sales 27.6%
FCE Sales of New Retail/Lease Contracts (000's) ™M

*(Source ACEA - European Automobile Manufacturers Association)

2005

12 5%
28 5%
734

Ford, Jaguar, Land Rover, Mazda, and Volvo's combined share of the Western European passenger
car market was 12 4% in 2006, compared with a share of 12 5% 10 2005 and 12 0% at the start of the
decade This reflects a highly competitive automotive market where manufacturers are balancing

profits and volume

Consistent with the funding strategy, FCE's sales efforts are focused on supporting Ford's
automotive brands and our core products which are inherently low nsk  Although new contract sales
reduced, this partly reflects our decision to withdraw from marginal areas outside our core brands
and products This withdrawal together with our partnering strategy for the FSL business largely
accounts for the reduction in managed assets since 2003  For further information in regard to the
FSL partnering strategy refer to the 'Disposals’ section, contained on page 5 of the Annual Report of

the Directors

2006
Satisfaction Indices
Customer Satisfaction Index (CSl)
- Completely and Very Satisfied 86%
- Completely Satisfied 1%
Dealer Satisfaction Index (DSI}
- Completely and Very Satisfied 81%
- Completely Satisfied 44%

2005
85%
41%

80%
45%

We monitor customer satisfaction through sample market research covering a range of questions
The CSI and DSI metrics we use internally reflect the percentage of those customers who are
completely satisfied with their expenence in dealing with us  Customers have different expectations
by country and by automotive brand and these metnics are used internally to drive improvements in

our service as a key contributor to further iImproving customer loyalty

2006
Key Financial Ratios
Return on Equity 10.4%
Margin (Net Income/Receivables) 38%
Cost Efficiency Ratio {Cost/Receivables) 15%
Cost Affordability Ratio (Cost/lncome) 40%
Credit Loss Ratio (Losses/Recevables) 39 bpts
ACE™/ Risk Weighted Assets™ 14 7%
ATE*/ Risk Weighted Assets* 15 9%

*(Refer to page 15 for definitions}

2005

Restated

11 8%
38%
16 %

42%

37 bpts
13 3%
14 6%

The Company Is holding significantly more capital than 1s required by either our regulatory minimum
or our internal nsk-based capital policy  This supplements our funding program and 1s a source of

further reassurance for our unsecured fixed income Investors

12
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Strategy and performance summary

The cost rattos shown below exclude exceptional items in order to show underlying or ‘normalised’
performance as explaned in the table below The cost efficiency ratio has improved from
approximately 2% at the beginning of the decade to 15% in 2006 A key contnbutor to this
improvement has been the implementation of common pan-European systems platforms across the
business, in turn driving process harmonisation and economtes of scale As we operate with a
smaller balance sheet these ratios will be difficult to sustain We have therefore accelerated our cost
efficiency programs which include seeking global process efficiencies and the continued application
of our customer-driven Six Sigma program  As part of this effort to accelerate future cost efficiency
programs, we have included a £16 milhon reserve in our 2006 accounts to support restructunng In
our German operations — for further details refer to Note 8 'Profit before tax’

Memo Kev Financial data
2006 2005
£mil £mil
Restated
Al Average Year Net Recetvabies (™) £15,166 £15 643
Au) Risk Weighted Assets 15,681 13524
8] Average Year Equity 2,228 1682
B ] £nd of penod Adjusted Common Equity {ACE) 2,311 2070
B () End of penod Adjusted Total Equity (ATE) 2,454 2,271
IRCOME
- Operating iIncome £722 £827
- Deduct exceptional tems (Note 8) (8} 21
- Depreciation of Operating lease vehicles (132} (211)
- Deduct exceptional items (Note 8} - [0
c Normahsed Income (Margin) £582 £591
OPERATING COSTS
- Other Operating expenses £(246) £(248)
- Office equipment and leasehold amortisation (2} {m
- Deduct exceptional items (Note &) 16 (1))
D Normalised Operating costs £(232) £{250)
E Net losses (Nate 12) {59) (58)
F Profit after tax £231 £234
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
Return on Equity (F/B[I]} 10 4% 118%
Margin (C/AL]) 38% 3 8%
Caost Effiiency Ratio (D/A[]) 15% 16%
Cast Affordabiity Rave (D/C) 40% 42%
Credit loss Ratio (E/AD]) D 39% 0 37%
ACEfRisk weighted assets {BuJA[u]) 147% 13 3%
ATE/Risk weighted assets (B[mJA[W]) 15 9% 14 6%
{*) Includes Loans and advances to customers (Note 12} and 'Wholesale
consignment vehicles' (Note 18)
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Strategy and performance summary

The credit loss ratic has reduced from a peak in 2002/2003 which reflected the economic cycle
across Europe and difficult trading conditions for dealers particularly »n Germany  FCE's
performance n 2006 on consumer credit losses reflects continued improvements in the deployment
of nsk management tools and improved economic conditions across most of Europe Dealer losses
are stable following a low in 2004 when there were significant recovernies from prior peniods There
have been further enhancements to dealer rnisk models and nsk monitoring in 2008

The credit loss ratto has increased 1n 2006 to 39 basis points from 37 basis points in 2005 We
would normally expect an average credit loss ratio of around 45 to 50 basis points  Almost all our
lending I1s secured, normally against the motor vehicle, and FCE denves strong benefits from the risk
management expertise that has been developed by FMCC in the US market

FCE's capitalisation has been strengthened as a result of both the increase in equity and the
reduction n the balance sheet size in the year to December 2006

The ratio for Adjusted Common Equity (ACE) as a percentage of nsk weighted assets has increased
to 14 7% at December 31, 2006 from 13 3% from a year ago

+ Adusted Common Equity (ACE) = End of penod shareholders' equity less goodwill and
other intangible assets,

* Adjusted Total Equity (ATE) = ACE plus perpetual subordinated debt (see Note 22 'Other
borrowed funds'}),

¢ Risk Weighted Assets = Assets multiplied by the appropriate percentage nsk weighting
utilsed for capital adequacy ratio purposes

Profitability - Profit before tax (PBT) and 'Adjusted PBT' for the periods below was as follows

Adjusted PBT excluding exceptional tems and 2006 2005
derivative fair value adjustments £ mil £ mil
PBT including exceptional items £ 329 f 356
Deduct exceptional tems as detalled in Note 8 (8) 34
PBT excluding exceptional items 337 322
Deduct farr value adjustments to derivative financial mstruments 35 17
Adjusted PBT £ 302 £ 305

Excluding exceptional items and denvative fair value adjustments, adjusted PBT for 2006 was £302
million, reflecting similar earnings to the previous year

FCE uses derivatives to manage interest rate and currency nsks and, as a matter of policy, does not
use denvatives for speculative purposes For interest rate risk management, FCE uses prnimarnly
interest rate recewve-float swaps which change the interest characteristics of debt from floating to
fixed rate Consequently, the farr value of dervatives increases in periods of nising forward interest
rates and decreases in periods of fallng forward interest rates The farr value adjustment to
dervatives for the penods disclosed result primarily from changes i forward interest rates dunng the
same periods. As the denvative far value adjustment does not reflect accruals accounting for the
underlying assets and habilties This adjustment has been excluded in the calculation of 'Adjusted
PBT
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Strategy and performance summary

Future prospects

In 2007 FCE expects the 'Adjusted PBT', which excludes exceptional tems and denvative farr value
adjustments to be similar to 2006 Higher interest rates will increase margin pressure and potentially
increase FCE's credit losses from their current histonically low level, but we are planning on
accelerated operating cost efficiencies to partially mitigate this effect  Our sustained focus will be on
operational effectiveness, increasing customer satisfaction and supporting Ford vehicles sales

The future prospects statement is based on current expectations, forecasts and assumptions and
involves a number of rnisks, uncertainties, and other factors that could cause actual results to differ
FCE cannot be certain that any expectations, forecasts and assumptions will prove accurate or that
any projections will be reahsed Our future prospects statement 1s based on the best avatlable data
at the tme of 1ssuance and will be updated upon publication of the FCE's 2007 Intenm Report and
Accounts Other than the FCE 2007 interm results FCE does not undertake to update or revise
publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise
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Risk management

In the normal course of business, FCE 1s exposed to several types of nsk These nsks include
primarily credit, vehicle residual value, financial market (Including interest rate, currency, counterparty
and hquidity nsks) and operational nsk Each form of nsk 1s uniquely managed in the context of its
contribution to overall nsk Business decisions are evaluated on a nisk-adjusted basts and products
are priced to be consistent with these nsks

FCE continuously reviews and improves its nsk management practices

[Credit risk management]

Credit nsk 15 the possibilty of loss from a customer's or dealer's falure to make payments according
to contract terms Whilst credit risk has a significant impact on our business, it 1s mitigated by the
majonty of FCE retail, leasing and wholesale financing having the benefit of a secunty interest in the
finance vehicle or similar title retention plans In the case of customer default the value of the re-
possessed collateral provides a source of protection FCE actively manages the credit nsk on retail
and commercial portfolios to balance the levels of nsk and return

Retaill products {vehicle instalment sale, hire purchase, conditiona! sale and lease contracts) are
classified by nisk ranking, term and whether the vehicle financed I1s new or used This segmented data
1s used to assist with product pricing to ensure nisk factors are approprately considered In our two
largest markets, Germany and UK data segmentation I1s also used i contract servicing to ensure
contracts receive collection attention approprate to their nsk level In these markets centrahsed
servicing In the respective Customer Service Centres includes the application of enhanced nsk
management techmques and controls, e g harmonised originations and collections practices plus the
realisation of economies of scale through the introduction and use of the latest servicing technology

Retall credit underwnting typically includes a credit bureau review of each applicant together with an
internal review and verification process Retall credit loss management strategy 1s based on historical
expernence of many thousands of contracts Statistically-based retail credit nsk rating models are used
to determine the creditworthiness of applicants Portfolio performance 1s monitored regularly and
onginations processes and models are reviewed, revalidated and recalbrated as necessary

FCE has developed retail behavioural models in the UK and Germany to assist in determining optimal
collection strategies Accounts are placed n nisk categories for collection follow-up Every reasonable
effort 1Is made to collect on delinquent accounts and keep accounts current Repossession 1S
considered a last resort A repossessed vehicle 1s sold and proceeds are applied to the amount owing
on the receivable FCE endeavours to realise maximum vehicle sale proceeds by using various resale
channels Collection of the remaining balance continues after repossession until the account 1s paid in
full or 1s deemed economically uncollectable by FCE

FCE extends commercial credit primarily to franchised dealers selling Ford's brands in the form of
approved lines of credit to purchase inventortes of new and used vehicles In addition, FCE provides
mortgages, working capital and other types of loans to dealers FCE also provides automotive
financing for leasing and daily rental companies, as well as other commercial entities

Each commercial lending request 1s evaluated, taking into consideration the borrower's financial
candition, supporting secunty, debt servicing capacity, and numerous cther financial and qualitative
factors All credit exposures are scheduled for review at least annually at the appropriate commercial
credit committee
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Risk management

[Credit risk management continued|

Financial and judgmental risk evaluation ratings are assigned to each dealer Asset verfication
processes are in place and include the use of physical audits of vehicle inventory with increased audit
frequency for higher risk dealers In addition, inventory-financing payoffs are monitored to detect
adverse deviations from typical payoff patterns, in which case appropriate acttons are taken

Vehicle residual value risk management]

Vehicle residual value nsk i1s the posstbility that the actual proceeds realised by FCE upon the sale of
returned vehicles at contract terminatton will be lower than that forecast at contract mtiation FCE
establishes the expected residual values based on mput from independent consultants (who forecast
residual values), current trade guide valuations and our own propnetary knowledge of historical
experience and forward-looking information available to FCE This information includes new product
plans, marketing programmes and quality metrics Any unfavourable variance between FCE's forecast
and expected residual values for existing contracts results in an adjustment to the carrying value of
the asset on the balance sheet Vehicle residual value provision adequacy 1s reviewed quarterly to
reflect changes in the projected values At contract end, FCE maximises residual value proceeds by
using various resale channels including auctions, trade buyers and dealerships

For further details see Note 29 ‘Vehicle residual values'

Financial market nsk management]

The objective of financial market nsk management 1s to maximise financing margin white imiting the
impact of changes n interest rates and foreign exchange rates Interest rate and currency exposures
are momtored and managed by FCE as an integral part of its overall nsk management programme,
which recognises the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential adverse
effects on FCE's operating results Financial market nisk 1s reduced through the use of interest rate
and foreign exchange denvatives FCE’s denvatives strategy 1s defensive, denvatives are not used for
speculative purposes

For further details on the use of derivatives see Note 11 'Denvative Financial Instruments' and Note
39 ‘Interest rate nsk'

Interest rate risk

FCE's asset base consists pnmanly of fixed-rate retail instalment sale, hire purchase, conditional sale
and lease contracts, with an average life of approximately three years, and floating rate wholesale
financing recewvables with an average life of about 90 days Funding sources consist primarly of
recevable sales (including securiisation and other structured and financing transactions), term debt
{(public and inter-company) and short-term commercial paper To ensure funding avadabiity over a
business cycle, FCE often borrows longer-term debt (two to five years) Interest rate swaps are used
to change the interest charactenstics of the debt to match, within a tolerance range, the interest rate
charactenstics of FCE's assets This matching maintains margins and reduces profit volatility Since a
portion of assets 1s funded with equity, some income volatility can occur as changes in interest rates
impact the repncing of FCE's assets
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Risk management

Financial market risk management continued|

Interest rate risk continued

The interest rate sensitivity of FCE's assets and habilites, including denvatives, 1s evaluated each
month The interest rate repncing gap information i1s shown in Note 39 'Interest rate nisk'

Currency risk

FCE faces exposure to currency exchange rate fluctuations if a mismatch exists between the currency
of recewvables and the currency of the debt funding those receivables Whenever possible, FCE funds
receivables with debt in the same currency, minimising exposure to exchange rate movements When
funding 1s 1n a different currency, FCE uses foreign currency denvatives to convert substantially all of
our foreign currency debt obligations to the currency of the recevables

For further details see Note 38 'Currency Risk'

Counterparty risk

Counterparty nsk 1s the nsk that FCE that could incur a loss If the counterparty to an investment,
interest rate or foreign currency derivatives with FCE defaults Counterparty exposure hmits are
established in order to mimmise nsk and provide counterparty diversification  Exposures to
counterparties, including the mark-to-market on denvatives, are monitored on a regular basis FCE’s
Large Exposure position ts reported to the FSA on a quarterly basis

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the possibility of being unable to meet all present and future financial cbhligations as
they become due One of FCE’'s major abjectives 1s to maintain funding availabilty through any
economic or business cycle FCE focuses on developing funding sources to support both growth and
refinancing of maturing debt FCE also 1ssues debt which on average mature later than assets
hquidate, further enhancing overall hquidity

FCE closely monitors the amount and mix of short-term funding to total debt, the overall composttion
of total debt and the availability of committed credit facilittes in relation to the level of outstanding
short-term debt

FCE has the ability to use committed lines of credit from major banks, prowiding additional levels of
hquidity For further details of these facilities see Note 40 'Liquidity Risk' on page 82 These facilites
do not contain restnctive financial covenants (e g debt-to-equity Iimitations) or matenal adverse
change clauses that could preclude borrowing under these facihtes FCE's liquidity position 1s
reported to the FSA on a quarterly basis

In the normal course of funding transactions, FCE may generate more proceeds than are necessary
for iImmediate funding needs These excess amounis are mantaned pnmanly as highly liquid
nvestments, providing hquidity for our short-term funding obligations and flexibiity 1in the use of other
funding programs We monitor our cash levels dally and adjust them as necessary to support our
short-term liquidity needs
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Risk management

[Operational risk management]

Operational nsk 1s the nsk of loss resulting from inadequate or failled internal processes, people or
systems, or from external events This definition of operational nsk captures events such as IT
problems, human error and shortcomings in the organisational structure, legal changes and lapses in
internal controls, fraud or external threats

FCE takes a pro-active approach to operational nsk management, anticipating risks and minimising
exposure through nsk identification, assessment, monitoring, control and miigaton FCE seeks to
maintain a strong and open operational nsk management culture throughout the organisation,
embodied within a sound corporate governance structure and supported by company-wide operational
risk management processes, policies and procedures

The Operational Risk Committee (ORC) has responsibility for reviewing and momnitoring major
operational nsks and for promoting the use of sound operational nsk management across FCE
Among some of the main areas of focus for the ORC are the implementation of appropriate policies,
processes and procedures to control or mitigate matenal exposure to losses and the maintenance of
suitable contingency arrangements for all areas to ensure that FCE can continue to function in the
event of an unforeseen interruption

The guiding pnnciple ts that management at all levels 1s responsible for managig operational nsks
FCE also maintains a strong internal control culture across the organisation through the Operations
Review Program, a self-assessment control process used by the locations, which 1s reinforced by
central controls from the Internal Control Office (ICO) and Ford General Auditors Office (GAQ)
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Corporate governance

FCE considers effective corporate governance as a key factor underlying the strategies and
operations of the Group Since only some of the Company's debt securities are listed on Stock
Exchanges there are significantly fewer reporting obligations on the Company compared with a
company with listed equity Nevertheless the Company chooses to comply with many of the
provisions of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance apphlicable to UK hsted companies
except for those provisions that are not appropriate for a wholly-owned subsidiary The Company
annually undertakes a benchmarking exercise against the latest gwidelines on corporate governance
making any adjustments as it deems necessary and appropnate The Company has developed
internal standards to ensure that the Group's business I1s conducted within a strong and defined
control framework  These internal standards are well suted to the evolving demands of corporate
governance in highly regulated, multi-national envtronments

[Board of Directors)

The Company 1s controlled through its Board of Directors The Board's man roles are to create value
to the shareholder, to provide leadership to the Company, to approve the Company's strategic
ohjectives and to ensure that the necessary financial and other resources are made available to the
management to enable them to meet those objectives In addition, the Board of Directors has the
ultimate responsibibity for ensunng that the Company has systems of corporate governance and
internal control appropnate to the vanous business environments in which it operates The Board
regularly evaluates all nsks affecting the business and the processes put in place within the business
to control them  The process 1s focused on the key nsks, with format nsk mitigation, transfer or
acceptance documented FCE controls are based on Ford standard controls to safeguard assets,
check the accuracy and reliability of financial and non-financial data, promote operational efficiency
and encourage adherence to prescribed managenal policies Policy Statements governing credit and
treasury nsk management are reviewed annually The Board also reviews the Group’s commercial
strategy, business and funding plans, the annual operating budget, capital structure and dwidend
policy, statutory accounts, financial performance and operaton of each of the Company's
businesses, together with receving other business reports and presentations from senior
management, and Is responsible for the appropnate constitution of Committees of the Board and to
regularly review therr activities and terms of reference as part of an annual review of corporate
governance (see below)

The compositicn of the Board 1s shown on internal cover page 2 The Board of Directors met four
times during 2006 With the exception of Mr Corbello and Mr Noone, who were unable to attend the
third meeting held in September 2006, all directors in post at the relevant time attended all the Board
meetings Four Non-Executive Directors were in post for and attended the first two meetings Five
Non-Executive Directors were in post at the time of the third meeting with four attending and six Non-
Executives were in post and attended the fourth meeting in November 2006 All directors are equally
accountable under the law for the proper stewardship of the Company’s affairs Throughout the year
under review, the Board and s Committees have been supplied with information and papers to
ensure that all aspects of the company's affairs are reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with a
roling agenda of wark
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Corporate governance

{Board of Directors continued|

The Non-Executive Directors fulfill a wital additional role 1n corporate and regulatory accountability
The Board considers that, with the exception of Mr Corbello, all the other Non-Executive Directors
are independent in that they have no matenal business relationship with the Company (erther directly
or as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organisation that has a relationship with the Company)
and that they nerther represent the sole shareholder nor have any involvement in the day to day
management of the Company or its subsidianies As such they bnng objectivity and independent
Jjudgement to the Board, complement the Executive Directors’ skills, expenence and detalled
knowledge of the business and play a wital role in the governance of the Company through therr
membership of the Audit Committee

There 1s no mitation on the term of office for the Non-Executive Directors Each year the Non-
Executive Directors hold a meeting with the Chairman to discuss Executive Director succession
planning, corporate governance and any cther relevant i1ssues The Board reviews the number of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors penodically to maintain an appropnate balance for effective
control and direction of the business

Within the financial and overall objectives for the Company, the management of the Company 1s
delegated to Directors and management through the Chairman Each of the six Executive Directors
1s accountable for the conduct and performance of their particular business within the agreed
business strategy They have full authonty to act subject to the reserved powers and sanctioning
Iimits laid down by the Board and Company policies and guidelines

'Selection of Directors|

Generally, speciahst executive recruitment agencies are employed to find suitable Non-Executive
Directors benchmarked against formal competency cntena Formal interviews are held with senior
Company management before a preferred candidate meets other members of the Board including all
the current Non-Executive Directors Durning the year, to address the mminent retrement of Mr
Thomson as Chairman of the Audit Committee, an additional Non-Executive Director, Mr Romer-Lee,
was appointed to the Board to broaden the skills, expenence and diversity of the Board and
specifically to take Charmanship of the Audit Committee upon Mr Thomson's retirement Five years
had elapsed since Mr Romer-Lee had been a Partner at PncewaterhouseCoopers, FCE's external
auditor, and he had severed all business and pension hnks with tus previous employer and as such
he was considered independent in line with current corporate governance best practice Executive
Directors (including the Chaiwrman) are selected through a Ford Financial Personnel Development
Committee process Succession plans for Directors and other senior appointments are reviewed with
senior representatives of the Company’s parent and the Non-Executive Directors Proposals for all
new Executive and Non-Executive Director appointments are then submitted for corporate approval
both by senior FMCC Management in the US and to the Ford Corporate Governance Committee
befere being submiited to the Company's Board of Directors for formal legal approval
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Corporate governance

[Training of Directors|

Consideration 1s given to the training needs of Directors on their appointment to the Board and Non-
Executive Directors benefit from a comprehensive induction to the Company's business, nsk
management and regulatory environment Also there i1s at least one off-site senior management
financial review and strategy meeting held each year to which the Non-Executive Directors are
invited and a training day 1s availlable as required for the Non-Executives where topical 1ssues and
developments can be discussed From time to time Ford develops training programs for varous
aspects of Director's duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and regulatory and general
compliance matters

[Evaluation and Compensation of Directors|

Each Executive Director 1s evaluated by FCE's performance review process and remuneration 1s
determined in ine with the global compensation policy of FMCC and Ford Senior representatives of
FMCC evaluate the performance of the Chairman

Non-Executive Directors recewe a flat fee for thewr services The level of the fee i1s reviewed
penodically with the last review undertaken in 2005 and the fee level 1s approved by senior
representatives of FMCC The Non-Executive Directors do not receive any other remuneration or
participate n any incentive arrangements

During 2006 whilst still a Non-Executive Director of the Company Mr Thomson was in receipt of a
pension from Ford Motor Company Limited ('FMCL") accrued from completed service with FMCL
prior to his appointment to the Company's Board of Directors In addihion, as a senor management
FMCL pensioner Mr Thomson was entitled to a loan from the Company to purchase a new vehicle
from FMCL (see Note 6 'Other operating expenses')

[committees of the Board|

Three Committees reporting directly into the Board were estabhshed in 1998 and a fourth, the
Administrative Committee, was established on 30 November 2004 Each of the Board Commitiees
has specific delegated authorty and detailed terms of reference which 1s reviewed annually with a
report on the activities of each Committee presented to each meeting of the full Board of Directors
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ICommittees of the Board continued|

The following chart shows the interrelationship of the Company's Board and Committees that deal
with corporate governance
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ITQ Operatng Data European Personal Anb Maney
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Commtiee Steenng Portfolio Board Commtiees Steenng Group
Comnuriee

The Administrative Committee on behalf of the Board 1s responsible for

» the review and approval of the terms and conditions of secuntisation and debt i1ssuance
transactions in hne with applicable policy statements estabhshed by the Company's Board of
Directors from time to time

* consideration and approval of other day-to-day business matters delegated to t for which formal
deliberation andfor documentation 15 legally required to evidence approval rather than approval
under general management delegated authorities

The membership of the Administrative Committee compnses all statutory directors of the Company

but excludes Mr Noone and the Non-Executive Directors, with any two directors constituting a

quorum  The Administrative Committee has no formal meeting schedule and meets as required

The Audit Committee on behalf of the Board has responsibilities which include

¢ the review of financial statements

+ overseeing the effectiveness of internal control over reporting and operations

+ overseeing the process of monitoring comphance and regulatory matters
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[Commiittees of the Board continued|

Audit Committee continued

Dunng 2006 the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr Thomson, and met four times With the
exception of Mr Corbello who 1s not considered to be independent, all other Non-Executive Directors
are members of the Audit Committee

There 1s no imitation on the term of appointment to the Audit Committee For the first three meetings
of 2006 the Company had four Non-Executive Directors who all were members of the Commitiee
and, with the exception of Mr Toner who missed the first meeting, they all attended on all three
occasions From 1 October 2006, when Mr Romer-Lee was appointed as a Non-Executive Director,
the Audit Committee had five members untl the year-end who all attended the final meeting In
November 2006

The quorum for the Audit Committee 15 any two members Mr Thomson resigned as a Non-
Executive Director and conseqguently as Chawrman of the Audt Committee effective 31 December
2006 and since then the Audit Commitiee has had four members Effective 1 January 2007 Mr
Romer-Lee was appointed Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee's main duties include the review of the FCE Annual Report and Accounts, audit
reports from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), the Ford GAO, the Internal Control Office (iCQO)
and the review of nsk management systems Specific tems reviewed dunng the year included
preparations for the Basel Il Capital Requirements Directive, on-going Sarbanes-Oxley comphance,
and preparations for the publication of the Company's first half yearly intenm accounts in September
2006 For further information in regard to the Basel | Capital Requirements Directive refer to the
'‘Basel Il revised international capital framework' section of the Annual Report of the Diectors which
commences on page 10

The Company has established a whistle-blowing procedure for the confidental and anonymous
submission by employees of concerns regarding accounting, internal controls or auditing matters A
report on any incidents reported I1s presented to each Committee meeting The external auditors and
representatives from GAO and ICO, together with the Executive Director Finance and Strategy and
the FSA Complance Officer attend meetings under a standing invitation whilst the Company
Secretary attends as Secretary to the Audit Commuittee In addition, the Audit Committee often
requires other Directors, managers and staff to attend and agree audit/review actions in response to
the Audit Committee’s enquines and recommendations The Non-Executive Directors also held
private meetings with the external auditors during the year

The Board 1s confident that the collective expenence of the Audit Commitiee members enables them,
as a group, to act as an effective audit committee The Committee also has access to the financial
expertise of the Group and its auditors, internal and external, and can seek further professional
advice at the Company's expense if requred The Board considers that Mr Romer-Lee, in particular,
qualifies as having recent and relevant financial expenence to brning to the delberations of the
Committee as required by the Combined Code on Corporate Governance
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[Committees of the Board continued|

The Credit Policy and Credit Risk Committee (Credit Policy Committee), usually chaired by the
FCE Charman, determines on behalf of the Board, the general credit policy of the Group on a pan-
European basis It oversees and reviews retall and commercial credit nsk and vehicle residual value
nsk It reports to each full Board meeting held during the year Six of the ten members of the Credit
Pohcy Committee are members of the Board of Dwectors The Credt Policy Committee consists of
individuals responsible for the key components of the business, Brihsh, German and European
markets, brand directors and pan-European and cross-brand functions such as credit policy and
credit nsk, marketing, sales, and finance

The quorum for the Credit Policy Committee 15 five members to include two from either the
Chairman, the Executive Director Finance and Strategy, the Executive Director, Marketing, Sales and
Strategy and the Director Credit Policy and Risk Management provided one 1s either the Executive
Director Finance and Strategy or the Director Credit Policy and Risk Management In additton a
Business Unit Head s required for the quorum The Credit Policy Committee meets monthly Durning
2006 It held eleven meetings No more than three members were absent at any of the meetings held
dunng 2006

The Commercial Credit Committees have been established as sub-committees of the Credit Policy
Committee to review and approve commercial lending requests across Europe The Commercial
Credit Committees are constiiuted and operate at district, country, European and international levels
according to delegated approval authonties and nisk assessment

The Executive Committee usually chared by the FCE Chairman, reviews, on behalf of the Board,
the Group's strategic direction and pohcy and the enhancement of shareholder and customer value
whilst improving growth, efficiency and profitability The Executive Committee reports to the Board at
each of the full Board meetings held duning the year For the first six months of 2006 the Executive
Committee had thiteen members and thereafter fourteen members of whom six are members of the
Board of Directors

The Executive Committee consists of mdividuals responsible for the key components of the business,
British, German and European markets and brand directors, as well as pan-European and cross-
brand functions such as credt policy and credit nsk, mformation technology, marketing, sales,
general counsel, strategy and finance Etther the Chairman or the Executive Director Finance and
Strategy are required in attendance as one of seven members needed to constitute a quorum The
Executive Committee meets monthly and held 12 meetings durning 2006 With the exception of the
August meeting when four members were absent no more than two members were absent from any
meeting
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[Committees of the Board continued|

Several sub-committees have been established and meet regularly and cover all areas of the
business These sub-committees report into the Executive Committee

The Regulatory Compliance Committee informs senior management and the Audit
Committee on regulatory compliance i1ssues Its responsibilities include monitoring and
evaluating regulatory changes and determining the Company's response or changes needed
The Committee also reviews returns submitted to the FSA

The Information Technology Office Operating Review Committee monitors, aligns and
resolves plans and priorities across FCE to support key information technology related
projects and inthatives

The Operational Risk Committee has the overall responsibiity for reviewing and monitoring
major operational nsks and for promoting the use of sound operational nsk management
across FCE

The Data Management Steering Committee provides a co-ordinated input to process and
IT application development to meet business requirements through data solutions that are
consistent with strategic priorities

The Sales and Marketing Committee facilitates regular and timely information exchanges
between business units and functional areas covernng sales, marketing and operational
matters

The European Project Portfolio Board coversees the management of FCE's strategic
projects This sub-committee meets on a monthly basis to review, approve and pniortise
large / strategic projects

The Pricing Committee reviews and approves pricing strategies and policies on a national,
regional and European basis

The Personnel Development Committees dnve personnel development and career and
vacancies planning The sub-committees are compnsed of members of management, who
are assisted by Human Resources representatives

The Securitisation Programme Board approves and reviews structural and policy matters
concerning planned secuntisation transactions and secuntisation issues raised at other
committees and forums may be referred to it for further deliberation

The Anti-Money Laundering Executive Steering Group oversees compliance with the
provisions of the relevant European Community Money Laundenng and related directives as
applied to those markets in which FCE operates

In addition, the Executive Committee may from ttme-to-time appoint working groups or steering
committees to address specific business nsks and opportunities
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|Audit and internal control]

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) conducts audits of FCE's financial statements, in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) PwC prowvides external audit opinions on FCE's financial statements

To help ensure that the auditors’ independence and objectivity are not prejudiced by the provision of
non-audit services, the Audit Committee has agreed that the external auditors should be excluded
from providing management, strategic or Information Technology consultancy services and all other
non-audit related services, unless the firm appointed as external auditor s

- the only prowider of the specific expertise/service required, or

- the clear leader in the provision of the service and 1s able to provide that service on a
competitively priced hasis

As auditors, PwC will undertake work that they must or are best placed to complete This includes
tax-related work, formalities related to borrowings, regulatory reports or work In respect of
acquisitions and disposals

Ford's GAO s fully independent from FCE, its coverage I1s based on the relative nsk assessment of
each 'audit entity’, which i1s defined as a collection of processes and systems that are closely related
The GAQO's mission I1s o provide objective assurance and advisory services to Management and the
Board of Ford and to the Company's Audit Committee in order to mprove the efficiency and
effectiveness of Company operations and assist the Company in achieving its objectives through
systemic and disciplined auditing

ICO s based within FCE to offer control consultancy, audits, process reviews, advice on systems
controls and control training across all locations ICO access to internal reports and operational
experience Informs the conduct of operational reviews and audits The department has created and
delivered training in ongoing controls as part of formal feedback to reflect learning points denved
from the audits and reviews This matches industry leading-edge practices to assist management in
early identification of potential control nsks which s an essential element of the process to ensure
comphance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

The Operations Review Programme (ORP) has been designed, implemented and revised for the last
several years to embed the assessment of nsk and opportunity across the Group The ORP provides
the means for the management of each location or activity to continually moniter control mtegrity
throughout therr operation by the performance of regular and appropnate checks and embeds sound
governance principles in key processes The ORP faciitates high levels of control self-assessment
as part of good business practice It also embodies the principles established by the UK's Turnbull
Committee on achieving the standards in the Combined Code of Corpearate Governance The ORP
was modified for, and provides a key structure in FCE's comphance with the US Sarbanes-Oxley
legislation
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of FCE Bank plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of
FCE Bank Plc for the year ended 31 December 2006 which compnse the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash
Flow Statements, the Group and Parent Company Statements of Recognised Income and Expense
and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiities for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the
opinton, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report I1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and far view and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

in addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or If information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent
with the audited financial statements The other informaticn compnses only the Directors’ Report, the
Chairman’s Statement, Risk Management and Corporate Governance We consider the implications
for our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the
financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Issued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s and company's
circumstances, consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary tn order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from materal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
imegulanty or efror In forming our opmion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of FCE Bank plc

Opinion
In our opinion

+ the group financial statements give a true and fairr view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended,

+ the parent company financial statements give a true and farr view, in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Unton as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and cash flows for
the year then ended,

= the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

s the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

A (e

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

28 March 2007

Notes:

The maintenance and integnty of the FCE Bank Plc website 1s the responsibility of the directors, the
work carned out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements
since they were initally presented on the website

Legislation n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Consolidated income statement
GROUP
for the year ended 31 December Notes 2006 2005
£ mil £ mil
Restated*
interest income £ 1,114 £ 1,143
interest expense (627} (630)
NET INTEREST INCOME 2 487 513
Fees and commissions Income 82 64
Fees and commissions payable {7 (6)
NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME 3 75 58
Dwidend income 4 - 1
Other operating Income 5 160 255
OPERATING INCOME 722 827
Impairment losses on loans and advances 12 (48) (28)
Other operating expenses 6 (246) (248)
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 16 {134) (212)
Farr value adjustments to derivative financial istruments 7 35 17
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 329 356
Income tax expenses 9 {98) (122)
PROFIT AFTER TAX AND PRCFIT FOR THE YEAR £ 231 £ 234
Statement of total recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31 December COMPANY GROUP
Notes
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £mil £ mil £mil
Restated* Restated™
Profit for the financial year £ 218 £ 196 £231 £234
Cash flow hedges farr value gains 7 - 7 - 7
Currency translation differences on foreign 31 (30) (15) {30) 7
currency net investments
Capttal contnbution 31 38 28 38 28
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME RELATING
TO THE YEAR SINCE LAST ANNUAL REPORT £ 226 £216 £239 £252

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
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Balance sheets

as at 31 December

CCMPANY GROUP
Notes
2006 2005 2006 2005
£mil £mil £mil £ mit
Restated* Restated™

ASSETS
Cash and advances to other banks 10 £ 479 £ 612 £14,133 £1,042
Denvative financial instruments 11 35 37 34 39
Loans and advances to customers 12 14,601 15,080 14,868 15,333
Investment in group undertakings 14 72 72 - -
Goodwill and other intangible assets 15 183 186 36 38
Property and equipment 16 197 262 281 342
Deferred tax assets 17 56 45 66 51
Other assets 18 1,514 1,178 544 656
TOTAL ASSETS 1 £17,137 £17.472 £16,962 £17,501
LIABILITIES
Due to other banks 19 £ 2683 £ 2,489 £ 6,669 £ 4,105
Due to parent and related undertakings 20 8,554 7,397 3,992 4,950
Denvative financial instruments 11 72 80 59 80
Debt secunties in issue 21 2,517 4,295 2,962 5,210
Other borrowed funds 22 464 520 464 520
Other kabthties 23 379 439 408 470
Income taxes payable 24 13 13 18 5
Deferred tax habiihes 17 35 45 43 53
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1 £14,717 £15,278 £14 615 £15,393
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Ordinary shares 30 614 614 614 614
Share premium 30 352 352 352 352
Retained earmings 3 1,454 1,228 1,381 1,142
Total sharehclders' equity 32 £ 2,420 £ 2194 £ 2347 £ 2108
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY £17,137 £17.472 £16,962 £17,501

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures.

The financial statements on pages 31 to 95 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2007 and were signed on its behalf by

E R o

Bernard B Silverstone
Chairman Exedutive Director, Finance
and Strategy
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FCE Bank plc ==
Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December
COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £ mi £mil £ mul £mi
Cash flows from operating activiies Restated® Restated”
Cash from operating activities 42 £ (3) £401 £ 411 £529
interest paid {605) (630) {628) (716)
Interest received 1,086 1,068 1,188 1,132
Income taxes paud {110) (165} (110 {168)
Net cash from operating activities 368 675 861 777
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (5) (8) {6} (8)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 4 5 5 5
Purchase of operating lease vehicles (465) (680) (526) (745)
Proceeds from sale of operating lease vehicles 426 893 452 930
Purchase of intangible assets 15 {2) (4) (2} {4)
Net cash from/(used i) investing activilies {42} 208 {77) 178
Cash flows frem financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowed funds and debt secunties 3,892 3853 2424 5,079
Repayments of borrowed funds and debt securties {2,269) (4,715) (2,000) (4,662)
Proceeds provided by parent and related undertakings 2,815 2844 3,797 1,407
Repayment of funds provided by parent and related undertakings (4,844) (2,418) (4,844) {2,418)
Net increase in short term borrowings (87) (637) (113) {638)
Dividends paid
Capital contnbution from parent undertaking 31 38 28 38 28

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase/(decrease) cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnuing of penod

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pertod 42

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
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9 3 17 10
(120) (361) 103 (239)
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Accounting policies

Index to accounting policies|

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consohdated financial
statements are set out below

Description Page
A Basis of presentation 34
B Group accounts 37
Cc Net interest Income 38
D Fees and commissions income/payable 38
E Other operating income 39
F Cash and cash equivalents 39
G Derivative financial instruments and hedging 39
H Loans and advances to customers 41
| Allowance for imparment losses 41
J Vehicle residual value provisions 42
K Sales of recervables and related financing 42
L Investment in group undertakings 42
M Goodwill and other intangible assets 42
N Property and equipment 43
0 Leases 44
P Other assets 44
Q Offsetting of a financial asset and a financial hiability 44
R Debt securnties 1n 1ssue and other borrowed funds 44
S Other habilities and provisions 45
T Deferred and current income taxes 45
U Critical accounting estimates 45
v Segmental reporting 46
W  Employee benefits 47

A Basis of presentation

These conscohdated financial statements are prepared n accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC} interpretations and with those parts of the Companies Act, 1985 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS

The standards apphed are those 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
endorsed by the European Union as at 31 December 2006 The consolidated financial
statements are prepared under historical cost conventions with the exception of dervative
contracts and share based payments which are stated at farr value
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Accounting policies

A Basis of presentation continued

Restatements of prior year reported figures as at 31 December 2005 has been made

« To incorporate interest income and expense within the Cash flow statement This has
resulted in no change to ‘Net cash from operating activities’ previously reported

» To reclassify in the Company balance sheet the net proceeds received from Special
Purpose Entiies This adjustment has resulted in a reduction of amounts 'Due to cother
banks' and '‘Debt securities in rssue’ of £653 million and £738 million respectively and an
increase in amounts 'Due to parent and related undertakings of £1,389 milion

« To reclassify wholesale consignment vehicles to ‘Other assets' from ‘Loans and advances
to customers’ This has resulted in an increase to other assets of £66 million and a
reduction of loans and advances to customers of a corresponding amount

o To appropnately reflect deferred tax habilities This adjustment has resulted in an increase
to deferred tax habilities of £10 milion and a reduchion of total shareholders’ equity of a
corresponding amount

» To reclassify reported recewables between subsidiary undertakings, Special Purpose
Entities, externat and related parties within Note 18 'Other Assets'

s To incorperate all transactions with Special Purpose Entities within Note 34 'Related party
transactions’

The following new standards and amendments to standards are mandatory for the financial year
ending 31 December 2006

* |IAS19 'Employee Benefits’, amendment to 'Actuarial gains and losses, group plan and
disclosures’ effective for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2006 FCE
appled the amended version of 1AS 19 effective from 1 January 2004

+ |AS 39 'Financial mstruments, recognition and measurement’, amendment to 'The farr
value option’ effective for annua! penods beginning on or after 1 January 2006 This
amendment does not have any impact on the classification and valuation of financial
instruments classified at far value prior to 1 January 2006

 IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments, recognition and measurement’ and IFRS 4 ’‘Insurance
Contracts’, amendment to 'Financial guarantee contracts’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2006 The impact of this amendment 1s not significant to
FCE

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which are effective
for annual periods begmning on or after 1 Janvary 2006 are not relevant to FCE and have no
impact on FCE's consolidated financia! statements

+ |AS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ amendment to 'Net
investment in a Foregn Operation’

+» 1AS 39 'Financial instruments, recognition and measurement’ amendment 'Cash flow
hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions’

s IFRS1 (Amendment), First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’
and IFRS6 (Amendment) 'Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources’
IFRS6 ‘Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources'
IFRIC4, 'Determuining whether an arrangement contains a lease'
IFRICS, ‘Rights to interests ansing from decommssioning, restoration and environmental
rehabilitation funds'

+ IFRICG ‘Liabdittes ansing from participating in a specific market — waste electrical and
electronic equipment’
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Accounting policies

A Basis of presentation continued

The following new standards have been i1ssued but are not effective for annual periods beginning
on 1 January 2006 and will be adopted by FCE beginning 1 January 2007

« [FRS7 ‘Financial Instrumenis Disclosures’, and IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial
Statements’ amendments to capital disclosures’ are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007 FCE has assessed the impacts of IFRS7 and the
amendments to IAS1 and conciluded that the main additional disclosures will be the
sensitivity analysis to market nsk and capital disclosures required by the amendment to
IAS1  FCE intends to apply IFRS7 and the amendments to !AS1 from annua! penods
beginning 1 January 2007

The following new interpretations have been issued but are not effective for annual periods
beginning on 1 January 2006 and have not been early adopted by FCE as the interpretations are
etther not expected to be relevant or significant to FCE

+ IFRIC7, 'Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS29 effective for annual periods
beginning on or after * March 2006 This interpretation 1s not expected to be relevant to
FCE

» IFRICS, 'Scope of IFRS 2, effective for annual periods begmning on or after 1 May 2006
FCE s currently assessing the impact of IFRIC 8 which 15 not anticipated to be
significant

s IFRICY 'Reassessment of Embedded Denvatives’ effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2006 FCE believe that this interpretation wil not have a significant
impact on the reassessment of embedded dervatives as FCE already assess of
embedded denvatives should be separated using prnciples consistent with IFRIC 9

» |IFRIC10 ‘Internm Financial Reporting and Ilmparment' effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 November 2006 FCE believe this interpretation will not have any
significant mpact as it already apphes pninciples on impairment losses consistent with
IFRIC 10

» |FRIC11, IFRS 2- Group Treasury Share Transactions' effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2007 This interpretation 1s not expected to be significant
to FCE

s |FRIC12, 'Service Concession Arrangements’ effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009 This interpretation I1s not expected to be relevant to FCE

Income statement — As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, a separate
income statement has not been presented in respect of the Company The profit after tax of the
Company 1s reported in the notes to the financial statement within the Company disclosures
contained in Note 31 'Retained earnings and other reserves' and Note 32 'Total shareholders'
equity’

Cash flow statement - FCE has elected to preduce an indirect Cash flow statement and as such

will show cash flow from operating activities by adjusting profit or loss for non cash items and
changes in operating assets and habilities
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Accounting policies

B Group accounts
{i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, which are those companies and other entities (including Special Purpose Entities)
in which FCE directly or indirectly has power to govern the financial and operating policies are
consoldated

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group, and are
no longer consohdated from the date that control ceases The purchase method of accounting 1s
used to account for the acquisitton of subsidianies The cost of acquisition 1s measured at the far
value of the assets given up, shares 1ssued or habilities incurred at the date of acquisition, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquistion The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired i1s recorded as goodwill See Note M for the
accounting policy on goodwill Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between companies within the Group are eliminated

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to the end of the financial year The
Company's interest in Group undertakings 1s stated at cost less any provisions for impairment

For commercial reasons, the accounting reference dates of Jaguar Financial Services Limited
(31 March), Automotive Finance Limited (30 June), Mentpomt Limited (30 June), and Ford
Automotive Leasing Limited (30 September) are not coterminous with that of the Company
Accordingly the results of those companies are based on the management accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2006

(n) Branches

In addion to operating n the UK, the Company operates on a branch network in 15 other
European countries and the branches are included within the Company's financial statements

{m} Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling Assets and habifities of each
entity of the Group which are denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at
the exchange rates published at the balance sheet date

Income statements and cash flows of branches and subsidiaries outside of the UK are
translated into the Group's reporting currency at average-penod exchange rates

Exchange differences arnsing from the application of year end rates of exchange to opening net
assets of foreign branches and subsidiaries are taken to sharehclder's equity, as are those
differences resulting from the restatement of the results of foreign operations from average to
year end rates of exchange As permitted by IFRS 1 'First-time adoption of International
Financial Reporting’, FCE on the introduction of IFRS has brought forward a ndl opening
balance on cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment arising from the re-translation of
foreign operations, which 1s shown as a separate item in shareholders equity at the date of
transition 1n Note 31 'Retained earnings and other reserves’
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Accounting policies

B Group accounts continued
(1)) Foreign currency translation continued

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of foreign entities, prior to the
date of transition to IFRS, are treated as assets and habilthes of FCE and reported using the
exchange rate apphied under previous GAAP

C Net interest income

Interest iIncome and expense s recognised in the income statement using the effective interest
method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
habity and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period The
effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life The application of this method has the effect of recognising
income and expense evenly In proportion to the amount outstanding over the penod to matunty
or repayment

Certain loan ongination fees (income) and costs (expenses) which can be directly assoctated to
the ongination of loans and advances to customers are regarded as part of the economic return
on the loan and included in the loan's carrying value and deferred The amount deferred 1s
recognised In interest income, using the effective interest method, over the term of the related
recevable

Interest supplements and other support payments from related parties {(including Ford and
affillated manufacturers) provided for certain financing transactions are recognised on the same
basis as the related financing transaction

D Fees and commissions income/payable

Fees and commissicn iIncome I1s recognised on an accruals basis and mncludes the following

« Insurance commission — FCE offers branded insurance products in partnership with
local insurance providers through dealerships in many European markets FCE 1s not
subject to insurance risks on policies sold

» Operating lease vehicle marketing and sales income - In many European markets
vehicles provided under operating leases are owned by business pariners to whom the
Company has outsourced certain functions whilst retaining responsibility for marketing
and sales for which fee income is recerved

Fees and commissions payable include commissions and other bonuses payable to dealers
Dealer commission which can be directly associated with the ongination of financed recewables
is regarded as part of the economic return of the loan and s deferred The amount deferred 1s
recognised as a reduction to interest income using the effective interest rate method over the
term of the related recevable Other bonus payments are recegnised in the income statement
as they are incurred
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Accounting policies

E Other operating income

Other operating mcome reflects the rentals recevable for vehicles provided under operating
leases Rental income on operating leases 1$ credited to income on a straight-line basis

Certain loan ongination fees (income) and costs (expenses) which can be directly associated to
the ongination of operating leases are regarded as part of the economic return on the loan and
are offset and deferred The amount deferred 1s recognised In other operating mcome on a
straight-line basis over the term of the related recevable

F Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse of balances if
matunty at acquisition 15 less than 90 days including treasury bills and other eligible bills,
amounts due from other banks and petty cash

G Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Transactions are undertaken in denvative financial instruments, ‘denvatives’, which include
interest rate and cross-currency swaps and forward exchange contracts All denvatives entered
inte by FCE are entered into for the purpose of matching or mimimising nisk from potential
movements in foreign exchange rates and interest rates iherent in FCE's financial assets and
habihties

Interest rate swaps are used 1o manage the effects of interest rate fluctuations Foreign currency
exchange agreements, including forward contracts and swaps, are used to manage foreign
exchange exposure

Risk 1s reduced as follows

(n  through the use of funding instruments that have interest and maturity profiles similar to the
assets they are funding, and

(i) through the use of interest rate and foreign exchange denvatives

Denvatives are measured at far value The fair values of dernvatives are calculated using quoted
rmarket rates and discounted cash flow models All denvatives are included in assets when the
farr value ts positve and n liabiliies when the far value 1s negative, unless there 1s the legal
ability and intention to settle net

When a dervative contract 1s entered into, FCE may designate certain denvatives as a hedge of
the fawr value of a recognised asset or iability (fair value’ hedge) or of the vanability of cash flows
to be received or paid related to a recogrused asset or hability (‘cash flow' hedge) FCE applies
the settlement date of accounting for the purchase or sale of a financial asset

The far values of derwative instruments are disclosed In Note 11 'Derivatve financial
instruments’
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Accounting policies

G Derivative financial instruments and hedging continued
Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting 1s applied for derivatives only when the following critena are met

a) formal documentation of the hedging instrument, hedged item, hedge objective, strategy
and relationship 1s prepared at or before inception of the hedge transaction,

b) the hedge 1s documented showing that it 1s expected to be highly effective in offsetting the
nsk in the hedged item throughout the reporting penod, and

c) the hedge 1s highly effective on an ongoing basis, as measured by re-performance of
effectiveness testing on a gquarterly basis

All forms of hedge accounting result iIn hedging denivatives being carned at fair value i the
batance sheet

Fair value hedge accounting

Changes n the farr value of dernivatives that qualfy and are designated as farr value hedges are
recorded In the iIncome statement, together with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
hability that are attnbutable to the hedged nsk

if a hedge no longer meets the critenia for hedge accounting for example, a) when the terms of
an underlying transaction are modified, or b} when the underlying hedged item 1s settied prior to
maturity, the carrying amount of the hedged interest-bearing financsal instrument 1s amortised to
the income statement over the period to matunty of the instrument All such changes are
included in the iIncome statement under the caption 'Fair value adjustments to denvative financial
instruments'

Cash flow hedge accounting

To the extent that the hedge 1s effective changes in the value of a dernvative that 1s designated as
a cash flow hedge are recognised in the hedge reserve in shareholders’ equity  Amounts
deferred in equity are transferred to the income statement and classified as revenue or expense
in the periods dunng which the hedged transaction affects the income statement If a cash flow
hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing n
equity 1s recognised in the ncome statement in the penods during which the hedged transaction
affects the income statement Al such changes are included in the income statement under the
caption ‘Fair value adjustments to dernivative financial instruments’

Dervatives not qualhifying for hedge accounting

Certain dervative transactions (referred to as non-designated in Note 11), while providing
effective economic hedges under the Group’s nsk management polcies etther do not quatify for
hedge accounting under the specific rules in IAS 39 'Financial instruments, recognition and
measurement’ or we elect not to apply hedge accounting These denvatives are held at far
value and faw value gains and losses are reported in the income statement All such changes
are included in the income statement under the caption 'Fair value adjustments to denvative
financial mstruments’
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Accounting policies

H Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers including finance lease receivables are non-dervative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and
which are not classified as availlable for sale Loans and advances to customers are initially
recognised at farr value including direct and incremental transaction costs They are
subsequently valued at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method - refer to
Accounting Policy C 'Net interest income’

The major types of loans and advances are as follows

+ Retall financing — includes retail finance and lease contracts introduced from dealers, and
offenng finance to commercial customers, pnmarnly vehicle leasing companies and fleet
purchasers, to lease or purchase vehicle fleets (includes operating lease vehicles included
within Property, plant and equipment),

+ Wholesale financing — making loans to dealers to finance the purchase of new and used
vehicles held in inventory,

+ Other financing — making loans to dealers for working capital and property acquisitions
I Allowance for impairment losses

An allowance for imparment losses 1s established when FCE considers the credt-worthiness of
an indwidual borrower or lessee has detenorated such that the recovery of the whole or part of
an outstanding advance or group of loan assets 1s In doubt The allowance takes nto
consideration the financial conditton of the borrower or lessee, the value of the collateral,
recourse to guarantors and other factors Loan assets with similar credit charactenstics are
grouped together and evaluated for impairment on a collective basis Collateral held for resale,
included in 'Other Assets’, 1s carned at its estimated fair value at the date of the repossession net
of estimated disposal costs Recovernes previously charged off as uncollectible are written back
to allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

An allowance for impairment losses 1s made aganst loans and advances and operating lease
assets to cover bad and doubtful debts which have been incurred and not separately identified,
but which are known from expernence {o be present in portfolios of loans and advances and
operating leases The allowance 1s determined based on a number of factors including historical
loss trends, the credit quality of the present portfolio and general economic factors Allowances
for impairment losses relating to operating lease assets are presented as an adjustment to
accumulated depreciation

Allowance for impairment losses are deducted from loans and advances to custemers and
Property and equipment and are included in the income statement under the caption 'Impairment
losses on loans and advances' and 'Depreciation of operating lease vehicles' respectively The
allowances for impairment losses compnses the brought forward balance at the beginning of the
peniod plus the income statement charge as referred to above less 'Net losses’ and includes
exchange adjustments relating to foreign currency translation ‘Net losses’ compnses of loans
which have been written off when there 1s no reahstic prospect of recovery less any subsequent
recoveries of bad debts which had previously been written off
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J Vehicle residual value provisions

Residual values represent the estimated value of the vehicle at the end of the retall or leasing
financing plan Residual values are calculated after analysing published residual values and
FCE's own historical expenence in the used vehicle market

Residual value provistons and accumulated depreciation on vehicles subject to operating leases
are based on assumptions as to the used car prnices at the end of the financing plan and the
number of vehicles that will be returned Vehicle residual value provisions are reviewed regularly
and are accounted for as an adjustment to the carrying value of the assets The amount of any
impairment to residual values s accounted for as supplemental depreciation for operating leases
and as a deduction from ‘Loans and advances to customers’ for retal and finance lease
contracts These assumptions and the related reserves may change based on market conditions
- refer to Accounting Policy U 'Crtfical accounting estimates’

Changes to residual value provisions for retall and finance lease contracts are mcluded in the
income statement under the caption 'Interest income' and for operating leases within
'Depreciation of cperating lease vehicles’

K Sales of receivables and related financing

FCE has entered into financing arrangements with tenders in order to finance loans and advances
to customers Such receivables have typically been scld for legal purposes to consoldated
Special Purpose Entities (SPE's) As FCE 1s not fully isolated from the rnisks and benefits of
securitisation transactions, the requirements of [AS 39 'Financial instruments, recegnition and
measurement' have been followed which requires the SPE to be consolidated under the
consolidation principles of IAS 27 'Consohdated financial statements and accounting for
investments in subsidiaries’ All receivables subject to such arrangements continue to be
reported on the balance sheet and a hability is recognised for the proceeds of the funding
transaction

L Investments in group undertakings

The Company's interest in group undertakings are stated at cost less any provisions for
impairment

M Goodwill and other intangible assets

(1} Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the farr value of FCE's
share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisthon Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidianies occurring on or after 1 January 1995 1s reported in the balance sheet
as an intangible asset and was amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful
Ife, untit 1 January 2004 when amortisation of goodwill ceased Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidianes that occurred prior to 1 January 1995 was charged n full to retained profits n
shareholder's equity, such goodwill has not been retrospectively capttalised and amortised

As permitted by IFRS 1 'Fiurst-time adoption of International Financial Reporting' FCE has not

appled IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ retrospectively to business combinations prior to the
date of transition
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M Goodwill and other intangible assets continued
(1) Goodwill continued

At each balance sheet date Goodwill 1s tested for impairment and carned at cost less
accumulated impairment losses  Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing

(n) Other intangible assets relate to computer scftware development costs Such costs
typically are expensed as incurred Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique
software products controlled by FCE and which are anticipated to generate future economic
benefits exceeding costs are recognised as intangible assets Direct costs include staff costs of
the software development team A minimum capitalisation hmit applies to mternally developed
software projects

Expenditure which significantly enhances or extends the performance of computer software
programmes beyond ther ongmnal specifications 15 recognised as capttal improvements and
added to the oniginal costs of the software  Computer software development costs recognised
as assets are amortised using a straight ine method over ther useful ives of three or eight years
for PC/network and manframe applications respectively Other intangible assets are carned at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment charges Impairment 15 tested at each
reporting date The amortisation of intangible assets 15 recorded within the income statement
within other operating expenses

N Property and equipment

All property and equpment 15 stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
Deprectation I1s calculated on a straight ine method to wnte down the cost of such assets to ther
residual values at the following rates

Asset Type Annual Depreciation Rate
Computer EQuipment 16 67%
Other office equipment 8 00%
Company motor vehicles 25 00%

Where the carrying amount of an asset 1s greater than ts estimated recoverable amount, it 1s
wniten down immediately to its recoverable amount  Gains and losses on disposal of property
and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are included in 'Other
operating expense' in the income statement

Operating lease assets over which FCE has entered into Operating Lease agreements as the
lessor are included in Property and equipment Depreciation 1s charged on Operating Lease
assets over the period of the lease to its estimated residual value on a straight line basis

The depreciation policy for leased vehicles (including vehicles subject to operating leases) 15
reviewed on a regular basis taking into consideration vanous assumptions, such as expected
residual values at lease termination (including residual value support payments from
manufacturers) and the estimated number of vehicles that will be returned Adjustments to
reflect revised estimates of expected residual values at the end of the lease terms are recorded
on a straight-hne basis Upon return of the vehicle, depreciation expense 1s adjusted for the
difference between net book value and expected resale value and the vehicle is transferred to
‘Other assets'
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O Leases
(i) Where FCE Is the lessor

Finance leases — Assets purchased by customers under conditional sale agreements and
leased under finance leases are included m ‘Loans and advances to customer at the gross
amount receivable, less unearned finance charges Finance income 1S recognised over the lease
term using the net investment method so as to reflect a constant penodic rate of return in
proportion to the net investment in the contract

Operating leases — Assets leased to customers under operating leases are included i
"Property and equipment’ Income recognised in the income statement 15 described in
accounting pelicy E

{n) Where FCE is the lessee.

To date, the leases entered into by FCE are all operating leases Operating lease rental expense
is charged to the income statement within 'Other operating expense’ on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease

When an operating lease 1s terminated before the lease period has exprred, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty 1s recognised as an expense in the perod in
which termination takes place

P Other assets

The carrying value of 'Other assets’ 1s stated at cost less any provision for impairment Vehicles
returned to FCE from Operating lease, retall and finance leases which are awaiting resale are
carned at net book value after adjusting for any residual value provisions Vehicles consigned to
dealers on consignment financing arrangements are disclosed in Note 18 'Other assets'

Gans and losses on disposals of Operating lease vehicles are included in the iIncome statement
under the caption depreciation expense and for vehicles returned from retail and finance lease
contracts under 'Interest income’

Q Offsetting of a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and habihties are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, there 1s a current enforceable legal nght to set off the recognised amounts and there 15 an
intention to settle on a net basis

R Debt securities in issue and other borrowed funds

Debt securities i issue and other borrowed funds are stated at fair value net of transaction costs
tncurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost and any differences between net
proceeds and the redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement over the life of the
underlying debt
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S Other liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when FCE has a present and legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it 1s probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made

Prowvision 1s made for the anticipated cost of restructuring including employee separation costs,
when an obligation exists An obligation exists when FCE has a detailed formal plan for
restructuring an operation and has raised valid expectations in those affected by the restructunng
by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features

Contingent habilities are possible obhgations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain
future events or present obligations where the transfer of econemic benefit 1s not probable or
cannot be relrably measured Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed unless
they are remote

T Deferred and current income taxes

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences arnsing
between the tax bases of assets and labities and therr carrying amounts in the financial
statements Deferred tax 1s recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case It 1s recognised in equity

Deferred tax 15 determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or the
deferred tax hability 15 settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will
be avallable against which the temporary differences can be utlised

Income tax payable on profits 1s based on the apphcable tax law in each company's jurtsdiction
and 1s calculated at rates of tax enacted at the balance sheet date Income tax payable 15
recognised as an expense In the period in which the profits anse The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it 1s probable that future
taxable profits will be availlable which these losses can be utiised against

U Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with general accepted accounting principles
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
habilites and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Although these
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results ulbimately may differ from those estimates
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U Critical accounting estimates continued
An accounting estimate 1s considered to be critical if

+ The accounting estimate requires assumptions to be made about matters that were
uncertain af the time the accounting estimate was made, and

= Changes in the estimate are reasonably hkely to occur from perniod to perod, or use of
different estimates that reasonably could have been used in the current penod, and

« The accounting estimate could have a materal impact on the financral condition or results
The accounting estimates that are most important to FCE's business involve

+ Allowance for mparment losses on loans and advances and aperating lease assets (refer
to Note 12 'Loans and advances to customers’),

» Vehicle residual value provisions and the depreciation rate utilised on vehicles subject to
operating leases (refer to Note 29 'Vehicle residual values’)

V Segmental reporting

Business segments are distinguishable components of FCE that provides products or services
that are subject to nsks and rewards that are different to those of other business segments
Geographical segments provide products or services within a particular economic environment
that 1s subject to different nsks and rewards that are different to those of compoenents operating In
other economic environments

Primary reporting segments For the purposes of these financial statements and in accordance
with IAS 14 'Segment reporting’ FCE has pnimary reporting segments based around the group’s
business unit structure representing the various geographic locations of its operations These
primary segments comprise

. United Kingdom (Company and UK subsidianes)

. Germany
. ltaly

. Spain

. France

. Other Euro currency locations {consisting of Austna, Belgium, Finland, Greece, Ireland,
Netherlands and Portugal)

. Other focations (consisting of the Czech Republic, Denmark, Hungary, Norway, Poland,
Sweden, Switzerland and the Worldwide Trade Financing division)

. Central operations and staffs including funding of FCE branches and subsidianes

Previously FCE has included within the UK segment both Central operations and WTF It 1s now
considered appropnate to report WTF within 'Other locations' and to report ‘Central operations’ as a
separate segment As a result of this revision the UK segment 1s now reported on a similar basis to
other locations

In accordance with IAS 14 all segments representing 10% or more of the total group revenue, total
group assets or total group turmover are to be reported as individual geographical segments

46




FCE Bank pic e

Accounting policies

V Segmental reporting continued
Secondary reporting segments relate to FCE's range of products and comprise

* Retal — includes retall finance and lease contracts introduced from dealers and finance
provided to commercial customers Commercial customers are primarly vehicle leasing
compantes and fleet purchasers Such contracts are pnmarnily fixed-rate retail finance and
lease contracts which generally require customers to pay equal monthly payments over the
life of the contracts,

» Wholesale financing — primanly recewvables onginated to finance new and used vehicles
held in dealers inventory and generally require dealers to pay a floating rate,

» Other financing — making loans to dealers for working capital and property acquisitions and
operating lease vehicle financing programs to commercial customers

Previously FCE has reported the secondary reporitng segments containing 'Financial Services’,
'‘Operating lease business' and 'Insurance Commissions' Following the completion of the sale of
the European Full Service Leasing portfohos completed in 2006 the majonty of the group revenue
1s now classified as 'Financial Services' and therefore it 1Is now considered appropnate to revise the
secondary reporting segments as detalled above

Allocation of costs- The main costs which are required to be allocated between segments and
the basis of allocation are as follows

+ Central staff costs These are analysed by department and type of cost and allocated to
the location benefiting from the service Various allocation methods are used that ensure
an equitable allocation between locations of central staff costs

« Central funding In certain of FCE's European branches and subsidianes funding 1s
obtained by a mixture of local and centrally allocated funding The costs of central funding,
including derivative costs are, where possible, directly allocated to locations where
transactions can he speciffically identified Operational efficiencies are also obtained by
pooling certain funding, and the related financing costs are allocated across locations to
ensure an appropriate allotment of funding costs

Income and cosis on allocation of intra and inter-company transactions are eliminated on
consolidation

W Employee benefits

() Retirement benefit obhgations
Most of FCE's branches and subsidianes operate defined benefit schemes

In some locations FCE participates in pension schemes that share the nsks between related
parties, and there 1s no contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit costs In such
cases FCE recognises a cost equal to contributions payable for the penod only and discloses
such schemes as ‘Accounted for as defined contribution’ The funds are valued at least every
three years by a professionally qualfied independent actuary (the principal UK fund 1s valued
every two years) and the actuary provides advice on the future rates of contnbutions payable into
the schemes
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W Employee benefits continued

)] Retirement benefit obligations continued

For defined contrbution plans, FCE pays contnbutions to publcly or pnvately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis Once the contributions
have been paid, FCE has no further payment obhgations The regular contriibutions constitute net
perodic costs for the years in which they are due

FCE's Spanish branch operates a defined benefit plan for management employees and
recogrises the net hability or asset n the balance sheet Actuanal gans and losses are
recognised n profit and loss as they occur, together with contributions payable for the pernod

For all of the above costs are included within 'Other operating expenses’
() Share-based payments

Share options which can be exercised over Ford Common Stock, are granted to directors and to
employees of FCE The options vest and may be exercised in instaiments as follows

a) One year from the date of the agreement 33% of the shares may be exercised

b) Two years from the date of the agreement an additional 33% of the shares granted may be
exercised

¢) Three years from the date of the agreement an additional 34% of the shares granted may be
exercised

The far value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options 1s
recognised as an expense and a corresponding increase In 'Other reserves, which 1s part of
shareholder's equity, over the vesting period

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period 1s determined by reference to the farr
value of the options granted, excluding any non-market vesting conditions Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account so that the amount expensed 1s based on the number of share
options that eventually vest

Costs of providing the share options are charged to FCE by Ford in the year granted and are
recogmsed In 'Other reserves’ over the vesting penod
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i SEGMENTAL REPORTING]

Geographic segmentation Is the primary reporting segment as FCE 1s organised on a gecgraphic basis

through s branches and subsidianies

FCE measures the performance of its operations pnmarily on a

profit before tax basis, after excluding the impact of earmings from fair value adjustment to derivatives, and
other related fair value accounting adjustments Fair value adjustments to dernivatives are recorded within
the UK geographic segment as denvatives are administered on a centralised basis for FCE

Product segmentation 1s the secondary reporting segment and includes retall, wholesale and other
products for which revenue and assets are reported within the boxes in the tables

COMPANY UK Germany Italy Spamn France
Notes 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil Emil £mil £mil £mil £ mil £ mil Emil  E£mil £mil
Interest income 2 £266 £333 £267 £293 £115 £115 £121 £1086 £64 £50
Fees and commissions 3 20 15 22 22 10 6 3 2 6 7
Other operating income § 1 9 94 107 - 1 1 - - 59
Total revenue 287 357 383 422 125 122 125 108 70 116
- Retail revenue £223 £278  £152 £168 £98 £103 £86 £63 £48 £34
- Wholesale revenue 59 64 73 65 17 17 35 45 14 15
- Other revenue 5 15 158 189 10 2 4 - 8 67
Profit before tax 8 84 a5 54 110 26 22 27 24 17 18
« Rotail asseots 12 1,796 1,930 2,294 2,461 921 Q87 983 928 283 265
- Wholesale assets 12 2,056 2,075 944 951 923 895 843 879 627 647
- Other assets 1,006 103 1,111 1,130 123 101 142 127 95 346
Total assets 4,858 4,108 4,349 4,542 1,967 1,983 1,958 1,934 1,005 1,258
Total liabilities 2,453 3,075 3,980 4,191 1,854 1,860 1,831 1,818 934 1,195
Additions
Property & Equipment 16 1 7 330 452 - - 1 1 86 109
Intangible assets 15 - - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation/amortisation 8 - 8 86 84 - - - - - 48
Loan impairment losses 12 9 7 21 13 8 11 7 7 - -
Other Euro Other locations Central Office Eliminations Total Company
Currency
locations
CONPANY 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Notes £ mil Eml  Emil £mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £mil £ mil £mil
Interest income 2 £108 £101 £88 £84 £363 £342 £(269) £(295) £1.121 £1,129
Fees and commissions 3 7 6 6 4 - - - - 74 62
Other operating income 5 25 42 1 - - - - 122 219
Total revenue 138 149 95 89 363 342 (269) (295) 1,317 1,410
- Rotail rovenue £86 £78 E49 £48 £- - £- - 742 772
- Whotesale revenue 20 21 38 34 - - - - 256 261
- Other revenue a2 50 8 7 363 342 (269) (295) 19 377
Profit before tax 8 34 31 29 28 36 17 - - 307 346
- Retail assets 12 701 774 708 713 - - - - 7,684 8,058
- Wholesale assets 12 938 872 546 657 - - - - 6,877 6,976
- Other assets 304 334 177 125 5,906 8,416 (6,288) (8,244) 2,576 2,438
Total assats 1,943 1,980 1,429 1,495 5,906 8,416 {6,288) (8,244) 17,137 17,472
Total liabilities 1,830 1,885 1,282 1,367 6,841 8,131 (6,288) (8,244) 14,717 15,278
Additions
Property & Equipment 16 44 80 8 39 - - - - 470 688
Intangible assets 15 - - - - 2 4 - - 2 4
Depreclation/amortisation 8 18 33 - 4 4 4 - - 108 181
Loan Impairment losses 12 2 2 - 2 - - - - 47 28

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
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H SEGMENTAL REPORTING continued|

GROUP UK Germany Italy Spamn France
Notes 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil Emil  Emil £ mil £ mil £mil £ mil Emil  Ewml £ mil
Interest income 2 290 £338 £288 £293 £114 £116 £123 £108 £64 £50
Fees and commissions 3 25 13 22 22 10 7 3 2 6 7
Other operating income 5 5 13 93 107 - - 1 - - 59
Total revenue 320 364 403 422 124 123 127 110 70 116
- Retail revenue £197 £279  £150 £168 £97 £104 £85 £78 £48 £32
- Wholesale revenue 44 63 73 65 17 18 35 32 14 16
- Other revenue 79 22 180 188 10 1 7 - 8 68
Profit before tax 8 95 96 54 111 26 21 30 27 17 19
- Retail assets 12 1,796 1,931 2,294 2,462 921 087 983 928 283 265
-Wholesale assets 12 2,056 2,140 944 951 923 895 843 879 627 647
. Other assets 1,979 842 1,873 1,214 135 104 293 279 106 419
Total assets 5,831 5013 5,111 4,627 1,979 1,986 2,119 2,086 1,016 1,331
Total liabilities 3,566 4,102 4,741 4,283 1,864 1,875 1,979 1,969 945 1,267
Additions
Property & Equipment 16 26 26 nm 327 - - 1 1 117 277
Intangible assets 15 - - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation/amortisation B - 5 84 84 - - - 75 - 48
Loan impairment losses 12 9 7 21 13 8 11 7 7 - -
GROUP Other Euro Other locations Central Office Eliminations Total Group
Currency
locations
Notes 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil Emil Emil £ mit £mil £mil £mil £ mil £ mil £mil
Interest income 2 £139 £137 £105 £101 £363 £342 £(372) £(342) E1,114 £1,143
Fees and commissions 3 7 7 9 6 - - - - 82 64
Dividend income 4 - - - 1 - - - - - 1
Other operating income 5 35 52 26 24 - - - - 160 255
Total revenue 181 196 140 132 363 342 {372) (342) 1,356 1,463
- Retall revenue £87 £82 £65 £63 £- £- £- £- £729 £806
- Wholesale revenue 20 21 40 37 - - - - 243 252
- Other revenue 74 93 35 32 363 342 {372) {342) 384 405
Profit before tax 8 35 30 36 35 36 17 - - 329 356
- Retail assets 12 808 881 750 753 - - - - 7,835 8,207
- Wholesale assets 12 939 872 661 696 - - - - 6,993 7,080
- Other assets 1,185 1,464 241 249 5,906 8,416 {9,584) (10,873) 2,134 2,214
Total assets 2,932 3,217 1,652 1,698 5,906 8,416 {9,584) (10,873) 16,962 17,501
Total liabilities 2,795 3,101 1,468 1,538 6,841 8,131 (9,584) (10,873} 14,615 15,393
Additions
Property & Equipment 16 49 - 37 56 - 67 - - 531 754
Intangible assets 15 - - - - 2 4 - - 2 4
Depreciation/amortisation 8 26 - 24 - 4 5 - - 138 217
Loan impairment losses 12 2 2 1 2 - - - - 48 28

*Refer to page 35 Accounting Policies A and V respectively, for details of 2005 restated figures and further information in regard to segments 2005 asset
balances have been restated to separately reflect hability amounts and to present these amounis across retal wholesale and other segments In line with

this the eliminations amount has been adjusted to show asset and hability balances correctly
Other Euro Currency locations relate to Austna, Belgium, Finland, Greece, Ireland, Netherlands and Portugal
Cther locations relate to the Czech Republic, Denmark, Hungary, Norway, Poland, Sweden, Switzerland and WTF

Elminations are required to adjust for intra and inter-company transactions which are ehminated on consolidation
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7] NET INTEREST INCOME|

Net interest income 15 the difference between interest income and interest expense Net interest income
mncludes revenue from 'retall’, 'wholesale’ and 'other’ segments as defined in Note 1 'Segmental reporting'
except for Income from operating lease vehicles which is reported within Note 5 ‘Other operaling income’

Interest earned on maost retail recevables 1s generally fixed at the time the contracts are ongnated On
some recewables primanly wholesale financing FCE charges interest at a floating rate that varies with
changes in shori-term interest rates

GROUP
2006 2005
£ mil £mil
Interest income
Loans and advances to external parties £785 £827
Interest iIncome related parbies 344 301
Cash and shorl term deposits ncome 5 15
1,114 1,143
Interest expense
Interest expense external parties (403} (372)
Interest expense related parties (224) {258)
(627) {630)
Net interest income £487 £513

'Interest income related parties’ pnimarnly relates to wholesale receivables income with enhities that are
reported as consohdated entilies of Ford and include both wholty and partially Ford owned dealers

In the normal course of FCE's funding actmvities, more proceeds than are necessary for mmediate funding
needs are generated These excess amounts are maintained primarily as highly hquid investments and the
associated interest iIncome Is reported within the caption '‘Cash and short term deposit income’

3 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME]

Net fee and commission income i1s the difference between fee and commission Income and expense

GROUP

2006 2005
Fee and commission income £ mil £mi
Finance related and other fee iIncome £ 44 £ 26
Insurance sales commission iIncome 38 38
82 64

Fee and commission expense
Finance related and other fees expense 4) (3)
Commuission and incentives expense (3) (3)
(7) {6)
Net fee and commission income £ 75 £ 58

'Finance related and other fee income’ relates to other fees received which cannot be directly associated
with the ongination of the finance recewvables  Other fee income includes Fuli service leasing (FSL)
commussion income received by FCE from the provision of marketing and sales of commercial operating
lease customers to a non-affilated business partner The preferred third party FSL business partner in
each market 1s responsible for financing, maintenance, reparr services and the resale of vehicles at the
end of the lease perod

‘Insurance sales commission income’ pnmarily relates to Ford branded insurance products which are
offered throughout Europe These insurance products which are mamnly vehicle insurance related and
payment protection plans are underwritten by non-affiliated local insurance companies from which FCE
receive fee income but the underwnting risk remains with the third-party insurance companies

'Fee and commission expense' includes commissions and other bonuses payables to dealers which
cannot be directly associated with the ongination of the finance receivables
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n DIVIDEND INCOME|

Dividend receved of Polish Zloty (PZL) 2006 nil (2005 PZL 3 7 milhen or approximately £808,000) by
FCE Credit Poland S A from a related party, Ford Polska Sp Zoo FCE Credit Poland SA has a
beneficial interest of approximately 4% in Ford Polska Sp Zoo

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME]

Other operating income includes rentals recewved from operating lease vehicles to commercial
customers including leasing companies, daily rental companies and fleet customers For operating
leases the financing margin equals rentals received as recorded in 'Cther operating income' less
depreciation expense as recorded within Note 16 'Property and equipment' and the cost of borrowed
funds as recorded within the caption ‘Interest expense’ within Note 2 'Net interest income’

GROUP

2006 2005

£ mil £ mil
Income from operating leases E 159 £ 251
Gain on sale of operating lease portfolios (Note 35) 1 4
Other operating income £ 160 £ 255
6 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES)

GROUP

2006 2005

£mil £ mil
Staff costs'
Wages and safanes * £ 124 £ 125
Social secunty 14 14
Retrement benefits (Note 25) * 21 19
Total staff costs* 159 158
Scftware amortisation (Note 15) 4 5
Other expenses:
Administrative expenses 69 71
Operating lease rental expense 11 12
Other expenses 2 3
Loss/{gan) on foreign exchange 1 {1}

83 85

Other operating expenses £ 246 £ 248

Number of persons

Average monthly number of permanent employees 2,789 2,928

* Included n pension costs and wages and salaries 1s £16 million (2005 £9 miliion) relating to
restructuring actions — refer to exceptional tems detaded in Note 8 'Profit before tax'

Included with 'Administrative expenses’ are amounts paid to Ford and its related companies for services
received which are detalled within Note 34 'Related party transactions’
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1 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES continued

Directors and officers: Detals of transactions, outstanding balances at the beginning and end of
periods, maximum amount outstanding and related income and expense in the period are as follows

COMPANY 2006 2005
Directors  Officers Total Directors  Officers Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's  £000's £000's
Loans Restated*
Loans cutstanding at 1 January £127 £180 £307 £134 £258 £ 392
Loans 1ssued in the year 133 312 445 151 309 460
Loan repayments dunng the year {166) {282) (448) (205) (340) (545)
Reclassification - - - 47 {47) -
Loans outstanding at 31 December £94 £210 £304 £127 £180 £307
Maximum loans amount in penod £128 £ 225 £ 353 £134 £258 £ 392
Revenue
Interest revenue from loans 18 33 51 22 34 56
Compensation payments
Salanes/other short-term benefils 1,194 1,024 2,218 1,112 728 1,840
Post-employment benefits 120 150 270 232 205 437
Share based payments 108 43 151 128 58 186
Total compensation payments £ 1,422 £1,217 £ 2,639 £1,472 £ 991 £2,463

* Loans cutstanding at 1 January 2005 have been restated to include all loan arrangements with direciors and officers

‘Salaries/other short-term benefits' includes termination payments made to one director and one officer
Officers are the eight (2005 seven) remaining members of the Executive Committee who are not
directors of the Company The full Iist of present directors and details on the Committees of the Board
are displayed on page 2 and from page 23 respectively

Loans: A loan arrangement exists for certan directors and officers of the Company {(including
connected persons), whereby the director or officer purchases vehicles from Ford Motor Company

Limited (FMCL), and the Company provide individuals with loans to finance the purchase

The

individual pays the Company only the interest on the loan When the loans mature, the vehicles are
returned to FMCL for resale, and the Company 1s repaid the loan value from the proceeds of sale

Compensation payments: Aggregate emoluments for the highest paid director including dividends
received under long term incentive schemes were £184,208 (2005 £227,696) No share option awards

were received under a Long Term Incentive Scheme

The highest paid director in 2006 1s a member of the Ford Motor Company Limited Pension Scheme for
Senior Staff The projected accrued annual benefit at age 65 for the highest paid director at 31
December 2006 1s £79,472 (2005 £83,999) Employer contnbutions made to the pension of the
highest paid director during 2006 totalled £28,715 (2005 nil) The pension scheme allows for some of
the accrued annual pension benefit to be commuted {o a lump sum payment on retrement The
maximum projected lump sum available at age 65 for the highest paid director in 2006 15 £305,506
The highest paid directer in 2005 was a member of the Ford {US) General Retirement Plan (GRP) and
comparison between the two pension schemes could be misleading due to their different features and

structures The GRP does not allow for an accrued lump sum

Post-employment benefits: Retrement benefits are accruing to six current drectors and eight

officers (2005 seven directors and seven officers) under various Ford defined benefit schemes

Share-based payments: During the financial year ended 31 December 2006 no directors or officers
who received remuneration from the Company in respect of therr services to the Company, including

the highest paid director, exercised options held over Ford Common Stock (2005 nil)

As the share

options vested before 1 January 2006 they did not fall under the scope of IFRS 2 'Share based
payments’ and therefore are excluded from Note 37 'Share based payments’ No shares (2005 1,150)
under a Long Term incentive scheme were received by the highest pard director in 2006

54




FCE Bank plc g e

Notes to the financial statements at 31 December 2006

7 FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT TO DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS]

The following table analyses by type of contract the resulting farr value adjustments recogrised in the
income statement and to shareholders equity within the captions 'Farr value adjustments to denvative
financial Instruments' and 'Cash flow hedges farr value gains' respectively

GROUP

2006 2005
Net gains/{losses) recognised in the £ mil £ mil
income statement — pror to tax
Type of contract
Forward foreign exchange £ - £ 1
Interest rate (IR) swaps 37 15
Cross currency IR swaps (2) 1
Income statement fair value gain £ 35 £ 17
Net gains/(losses) not recognised in the
income statement
Cash flow hedges (IR swaps)
Fair value gains - 7
Shareholders’ equity fair value gain £ - £ 7

During 2005 certain derivatives that were previously in qualfied hedge relationships were reclassified
as non-designated derivatives in accordance with IAS 39 'Financial instruments, recognition and
measurement The derivatives continue to comply with the Group's nsk management policies as
detalled in Note 11 'Derivative Financial Instruments’

B PROFIT BEFORE TAX|

Exceptional items are typically non-recurring events or transactions of which disclosure aids the
interpretation of performance compared to the prior year Exceptional items represented a reduction in
profits of £8 million in 2006 as compared to a £34 million increase In profit before taxes for 2005

Exceptional items GROUP
(Brackets indicates geographic location) 2006 2005
Profit before tax is stated after crediting/(charging) £ mil £ mil
Operating Income

- VAT rebate (UK} £5 £-

- Non-refundable fee income recesved from insurance provider 3 -

- Adjustment to ncome recognition of retail portfolio (Germany) - 12

- Adjustment to value of denvatives (UK) - 5

- Gamn on sale of operating lease/FSL portfolios (Vanous) - 4
Sub-total Operating Income £8 £21
Impairment losses on loans and advances

- Reduced emergence penod for losses (UK} - 8
Operating expenses

- Tax reserve adjustments (Vanous) £ - £10

- Restructunng and employee separation (Vanous) see below (16} {9)
Sub-total Operating expenses £(16) £ 1
Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets

- Accumulated depreciation for operating lease vehicles (Germany) - 4
Total exceptional items £ (8) £ 34

In 2006, the Company announced a plan to restructure its business in Germany that supports the sales
activites of automotve financial services for Ford, Jaguar, Land Rover and Mazda vehicles in
Germany The plan includes the consolidation of branches into distnict offices These actions will
exploit economies of scale and facilitate the spread of best practice in a manner that will deliver cost
effiency The Company recognised pre-tax charges of £16 million in 2006 The costs associated with
the business restructuring are prmanly related to employee separations and were charged to operating
expenses The restructuning will be completed in 2007
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B PROFIT BEFORE TAX continued|

During the year FCE obtained the following services from the group's auditors as detailed below

Auditor remuneration

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ 000's £ 000's £ 000's £000's
Nature of services - Restated Restated

Audit services

Audit of parent company and consolidated

accounts £ 974 £ 871 £ 974 £ 871
Non audit services

- Audit of subsidianes pursuant to legislatton - - 238 227
- Other services 130 296 130 296
- Tax services 161 221 176 245

Total fees £ 1,265 £ 1,388 £ 1,518 £ 1,639

Definition of nature of services’

» 'Audit of parent company and consclidated accounts’ relates to the audit of the annual financial
statements of the Company

¢ C'Audit of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation’ relates to the audit of the annual financial
statements of the subsidiaries in the UK, Czech Republic, Finland, Hungary, Poland and
Special Purpose Entities

s 'Other services' relates mamnly to secuntisatton and debt offerings and assistance provided
concerning financial accounting and reporting standards

e 'Tax services’ — refates to tax compliance, tax planning and international service tax support
Further explanatory information:

Included in the Corporate governance section within the caption 'Audit and internal control’ on page 28
are details of the audit arrangements with PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC)

Included in 'Other services' and 'Tax services’ 1s £114,000 (2005 £2896,000) pad by the Company to
the UK firm of PwC

Pre-approval policies and procedures

The Ford Audit Committee has established approval policies and procedures that govern the
engagement of PwC The services provided by PwC are pre-approved in accordance with Ford's
policies and procedures and also by the Company's Audit Committee

Depreciation and amortisation

Detailed below I1s an analysis of depreciation and amortisation reported within Note 1 'Segmental
reporting’

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ 000's £ 000's £000's £000's
Depreciation *

- Operating lease vehicles £ 102 £ 176 £ 132 £ 211

- Company vehicles and Office equipment &
leasehold improvements 2 - 2 1
Total depreciation (Note 16) 104 176 134 212
Amortisation’ of intangible assets (Note 15) 4 4 4 5
Total depreciation and amortisation £ 108 £ 180 £ 138 £ 217
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSES)

The charge for taxation on the profit for the year 1s made up as follows

Current tax

UK Corporation tax of 30% (2005 30%)
Qverseas taxation

Relef of overseas taxation

Pnor year corporation tax

Income tax expense-current
Deferred tax

Current year deferred tax movement
Pnor year deferred tax movement
Overseas deferred taxation

Income tax-deferred

As recorded 1n Income statement

GROUP
2006 2005
£ mil £ mil
Restated”
£ 81 £ B2
66 72
(50) (57}
26 14
123 111
2 -
(15) 1
(12} 10
(25) 11
£ 98 £ 122

The taxation charge for the penod 1s lower (2005 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in

the UK (30%)

The factors affecting the tax charge for the period are explained below

Profit on ordinary activibes before tax

Profit multphed by standard rate of UK
Corporation tax of 30% (2005 30%)

Effects of
Foreign taxes higher than UK tax rate

Prior Year Corporation tax

- UK

- Overseas

Group relief

Pnor year deferred tax

- UK

- Qverseas

tincome not deduchibte for tax
Income tax expenses

* Refar to page 35 Accounting Policy A for detarls of 2005 restated figures
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2006 2005
£mil £ mil
Restated
£ 320 £ 356
99 107
14 5
17 14
9 -
(12) {15)
(15) 1
(12) 10
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£ 98 £ 122




FCE Bank plc P

Notes to the financial statements at 31 December 2006

1o CASH AND ADVANCES TO OTHER BANKS)

Cash and highly kquid investments with a matunty of 90 days or less at date of purchase are included
within this note  The net book value of cash and advances to other banks approximates fair value due
to the short maturities of these investments

COMPANY GROUP

2006 2005 2006 2005

£ mil £ mil £mil £ mil
Cash in bank £ 220 £ 186 £ 239 £ 204
Cash in transit 1 198 11 198
Cash equivalents 128 159 128 159
Cash and cash equivalents 359 543 378 261
Other bank deposits 49 - 366 240
Collateralised deposits 25 - 343 172
Cash associated with secuntisation transactions 74 - 709 412
Central bank deposits 46 69 46 69
Cash and advances to other banks £ 479 £ 612 £ 1,133 £ 1,042

The following balances at the year end which are included n 'Cash and advances to other banks' are
not availlable for use in FCE's day to day operations

» 'Cash associated with securitisation transactions' includes both cash retained in the Company
and consolidated SPEs For further information on SPE's refer to Note 13 'Sales of recevables
and related financing'

» 'Central bank deposits' represent balances with the Bank of England and other Central banks in
Europe which FCE 1s required to mantain

The effective interest rate of cash and advances to other banks 1s disclosed within Note 39 'Interest rate
nsk’

11 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS|

FCE maintains an active asset-lability management programme to maximise financing margins while
Iimiting the iImpact of changes in interest rates and foretgn exchange rates

The following table provides examples of certain activities undertaken, the related nsks associated with
such activiies and the types of derivatives used 1n managing such risks

Activity Risk Type of denvative

Investment and funding In Sensitivity to change in foreign  « Cross-currency interest swaps

foreign currencies exchange rates « Foreign exchange spot and forward
contracts

Investment in Floating and Repricing charactenstics of » Pay fixed rate and receive floating-

Fixed-Rate Assets assets not matching repnicing rate swaps

of hablties » Pay floating rate and receive floating
rate swaps
« Pay floaling rate and receive fixed

rate swaps

The use of dernivatives 1s an integral part of FCE's nsk management programme, providing reduced
exposure to financial market volatility and substantial funding flexibility at an acceptable cost Company
policies and controls are in place, including derivative effectiveness testing at each reporting date, to
manage these nsks and are detailled on the following page
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[11 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued|

The key derivative policies are:

Prohibition of use for speculative purposes

Prohibition of use of leveraged instruments

Requirement for regular in-depth exposure analysis

Establish and document accounting treatment at onset of trade
Establish exposure imits (including cash deposits) with counterparties
Compensation system not being tied to traders’ profits and losses

o0 Q0O TL

The key derivative controls are.

a Reviews of policies, positiens and planned actions with management

b Transactiona! controls including segregation of duties, approval authonties, competitive quotes
and confirmation procedures

c Regular management review of portfollie mark to market valuations and potential future
exposures

d Monitoring of counterparty credit worthiness

e Internal audits to evaluate controls and adherence to policies

Exposure to counterparty nsk ts managed by dwersifying dertvative activity amongst highly rated
counterpartes FCE does transact with certain Ford related parties, which are non-rated entities
Substantially all of FCE's activites are transacted with financial inshtutons Wherever legally
enforceable, FCE nets payments for denvative transactions Counterparty offset 1s completed where
there is a current enforceable legal night to set off the recognised amounts and there i1s an intention to
settle on a net basis FCE applies the settlement date of accounting for the purchase or sale of a
financial asset

The following tables analyse the treasury activities by type of contract, giving the underlying principal
amount and farr value obtained by marking to market contracts and offsetting positive and negative
values by counterparty The far values reported below are included in both assets and liabilities
sections of the balance sheet withun the caption 'Derwvative financial instruments’

2006 2005
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

COMPANY Amount Assets Liabilities Amount  Assets Liabilities

£ mil £mil £ mil £ mul £ min £ mul
Designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps £ - £ - £ - £ - £ - £ -
Cross currency interest rate swaps 7 - - 11 - -
Total designated as fair value hedges 7 - - 11 - -
Non-designated denvatives
Exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange 1,687 5 3 2,234 25 1
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 8,534 40 25 8,348 12 53
Cross currency interest rate swaps 1,378 10 64 1,107 28 54
Total non designated 11,599 55 92 11,689 65 108
Total denvatives excluding offset 11,606 55 92 11,700 65 108
Counterparty offset - (20) {20} - {28) (28)

Total denvatives including offset £ 11,606 £ 35 £ 72 £ 11,700 £ 37 £ 80

During 2005 certain denvatives that were previously in qualfied hedge relationships were reclassified
as non-designated dervatives in accordance with |IAS 39 'Financial instruments, recognition and
measurement’ The derivatives continue to comply with the above mentioned FCE nsk management
policies
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1 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued|

2008 2005
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

GROUP Amount  Assets Liabiltties Amount  Assets  Liabities

£ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £mi
Designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps £ - £ - £ - £ - £ - £ -
Cross currency Interest rate swaps 7 - - 11 - -
Total designated as fair value hedges 7 - - 11 - -
Non-designated derivatives
Exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange 1,687 5 3 2,234 25 1
Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 11,256 53 26 9,232 12 50
Cross currency interest rate swaps 1,378 10 64 1,107 27 54
Total nen designated denvatives 14,321 68 93 12,573 64 105
Total denvatives excluding offset 14,328 68 93 12 584 64 105
Counterparty offset - {34) {34) - {25} {25)
Total denvatives including offset £ 14328 £ 34 ¢£ 59 £ 12584 £ 39 £ 80

2 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers at December 31 were as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2008 2005
£mil £ mil £mil £ml
Restated” Restated"

Gross loans and advances to customers £ 15428 £ 16,010 £ 15,702 £ 16,271
Provision for incurred losses {see next page) {105) (118) (106) (119)
Uneamed finance income {722) (812) (728) (819)
Net loans and advances to customers £14,601 £15,080 £ 14,868 £15,333
Analysis of net loans and advances:
Finance recevables
Retatl £ 7684 £ 8,058 E 7835 £ 8207
Wholesale 6,877 6,976 6,993 7,080
Other 40 46 40 46
Net loans and advances te customers £ 14,601 £15,080 £ 14,368 £15,333
Net loans subject to secuntisation (Note 13} £ 5846 £ 3346 £ 5846 £ 3,346
Net loans not subject to secuntisation 8,755 11,734 9,022 11,987
Net loans and advances to customers £ 14,601 £15,080 £ 14,868 £15,333
Percentage analysis of net loans and advances
Percentage of retail financing loans 53% 53% 53% 54%
Percentage of wholesale/other financing loans 47% 47% 47 % 46%
Percentage of loans subject to secunbisation 40% 22% 39% 22%
Percentage of loans not subject to secuntisation 60% 78% 61% 78%

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures

At 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005, Loans and advances to customers includes £5,846
mifhon and £3,346 milion, respectively, of finance receivables that have been sold for legal purposes in
secuntisation transactions that do not satisfy the requirements for accounting sale treatment These
receivables are available only for repayment of the debt or other obligations 1ssued or ansing in the
securitisation transactions and to pay other transaction participants, they are not available to pay our
other obligations or the claims of our other creditors (Note 13)
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12 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS continued

Prowvision for incurred losses COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 20006 2005
£mil £mil £ mil £ mil
Balance at 1 January £118 £150 £ 119 £ 152
Impairment losses charged to income statement a7 28 43 28
Deductions
- Losses wniten-off (113) {95) {115) {103)
- Recovenes 55 37 56 45
Net losses (58) {58) {59) (58)
Other
- Exchange adjustments {2) _(2) {2) {3)
Balance at 31 December £ 105 £118 £ 106 £119
Loans and advances to customers include the following finance lease receivables
Gross finance lease receivables
Within 1 year £ 1,296 £1,408 £1,299 £1,442
After 1 year and within 5 years 544 463 546 464
After 5 years 32 58 32 59
Total gross finance lease receivables 1,872 1,929 1,877 1,935
Unearned future finance income on finance leases {159} (172) (159) (172)
Provision for identified losses on finance leases {17} (17) (17) (17)
Net investment in finance leases 1,696 1,740 1,701 1,746
Within 1 year 1,174 1,270 1,177 1,274
After 1 year and within 5 years 493 418 495 419
After 5 years 29 52 29 53
Total net iInvestment in finance leases £ 1,696 £ 1,740 1,701 £ 1,746

For details of vehicle residual values and the effective interest rate relating to loans and advances to
customers refer to Note 29 'Vehicle residual values' and Note 39 'Interest rate risk’ respectively

Wholesale receivables include dealerships that are both partially and wholly owned by Ford

The cost of assets acquired for use under finance leases amounted to £1,020 milion (2005 £926
million) for FCE and £1,013 milhon (2005 £920 milhon) for the Company

Certain receivables and finance related contracts are purchased under the name of Jaguar Financial
Services Limited and Volvo Car Finance Limited and are immediately assigned to the Company No
profit or loss 1s recognised in the financral statements of Jaguar Financial Services Limited and Volvo
Car Finance Limited, in connection with these receivables and contracts, as a result of this process
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(E SALES OF RECEIVABLES AND RELATED FINANCING|

Funding sources of the Company include securitisation programs which generally include the transfer of
retail and wholesale recewvables through a vanely of programs, utiising both amortising and revolving
structures The Company also engages In other structured financing and factoring transactions that have
similar features to securitisation and we refer to them as secuntisation in this report

As part of these transactions the Company provides various forms of credit enhancements to reduce the
nisk of loss for investors Credit enhancements include over-collateralisation, segregated cash reserve
funds, subordinated securities and excess spread Over-collateralisation 1s when the principal balance of
the securitised assets exceeds the principal amount of related asset-backed secunties Excess spread
occurs when interest collections on the securiised assets exceed the related fees and expenses,
including interest payments on the related asset-backed securities

The Company retains interests n its securitisation transactions, including semior and subordinated
securities 1ssued by SPE's, rnights to restricted cash held for the benefit of the SPE (for example, a reserve
fund) and residual interests Residual mterests represent the right to receve collections on the
securihsed assets in excess of amounts needed to pay securtisation investors and to pay other
transaction participants and expenses The Company's abilty to realise the carrying amount of its
retained interests depends on actual credit losses and prepayment speeds on the secuntised assets

By providing these enhancements and retained interests the Company has entered into an arrangement
{as described in IAS 38 'Financial instruments, recognition and measurement'’), which does not qualify as
a transfer of a financtal asset The Company therefore continues to recognise the carrying value of the
transferred assets within its balance sheet The transferred assets are held for the sole purpose of
repayment of corresponding liabilities to investors or other third parties These assets are not available to
pay the Company's other obligations or the clams of other creditors

Use of Special Purpose Entities

In a secuntisation transaction, legally the secuntised assets are generally held by a bankruptcy-remote
SPE In order to i1solate the securitised assets from the claims of the Company's creditors and ensure that
the cash flows on the secuntised assets are available for the benefit of securilisation investors As a
result, payments to securitisation investers are based on the crediworthiness of the secuntised assets
and any enhancements, and not on the Company's creditworthiness

Securitisation SPEs have imited purposes and generally are only permitted to purchase the secuntised
assets, 1ssue asset-backed securibhes and make payments on the secunties The SPEs utilised by the
Company conduct therr activities solely to meet the specific needs of the Company In accordance with
scope of Interpretation SIC-12 'Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities' the entity 1s consolidated as a
subsidiary within the FCE Group balance sheet Where apphcable, the labiities reported within the
Group balance sheet represent the liabilittes of the SPE, and these are reported in Note 19 ' Due to other
banks' and Note 21 'Debt secunties i 1ssue’ for private and public transactions respectively Where the
Company has entered into a structured financing arrangement with a third party finance provider, and no
SPE structure i1s involved, a liability 1s recognised within the Company and Group balance sheet within the
caption 'Due to other banks', representing the proceeds recewved from the finance provider

None of the Company's officers, directors or employees holds any equity interests in the SPEs utlised or
receives any direct or indirect compensation from the SPEs Also such SPEs do not own shares in the
Company or shares i any other Ford affiliate

Sales of receivables and debt securities

The tables on the following page summarnses balances relating to the Company's secuntisation
transactions The external habilities and associated cash disclosed represent those of the relevant SPE
consclidated into the Group as per SIC-12 ‘Consolidatton — Special Purpose Entities’ Net cash proceeds
received by the Company from the sale of receivables as at 31 December 2006 were £4,506 million
(2005 £2,357 million) and are included in Note 20 'Due to parent and related undertakings'
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[13 SALES OF RECEIVABLES AND RELATED FINANCING continued

Sales of receivables and debt securities continued

Net loans secuntised (Note 12}
SPE other bank deposits

SPE collateralised deposits
SPE cash {Note 10}

Total assets

Due to other banks {Note 19}
Debt secunties in 1ssue (Note 21)
Total external habilities
Retained interests (Note 18)
Cther habilties

Total hlabihties

Net loans secuntised (Note 12)
SPE other bank deposiis

SPE collateralised deposits
SPE cash (Note 10}

Total assets

Due to other banks (Note 19)
Debt secunties in 1ssue (Note 24)
Total external habilities
Retained interests (Note 18)

Other habilities

Total hamhties

2006

Wholesale Retail Total Total
Public Pnivate Public Private Public Pnvate Total
£ mil £ mil £ml £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil
£ - £2,991 £ 372 £2,483 £ 372 £5474 £5,848
- 210 43 113 43 323 366
- 87 22 234 22 321 343
- 297 65 347 65 644 709
£ - £3,288 £ 437 £2,830 £ 437 £6,118 £6,555
- 2,439 - 2,416 - 4,855 4,855
- - 410 - 410 - 410
- 2,439 410 2,416 410 4,855 5,265
362 3 330 3 692 695
487 24 84 24 571 595
£ - £3288 £ 437 £2,830 £ 437 £6,118 £6,555

2005

Wholesale Retail Total Total
Public  Pnvate Public Pnvate Pubhc  Prnvate Total
£mil £mil £ mil £mil £mil £mil £mil
£ - £1,869 £ 788 £ 689 £ 788 £2558 £3,346
- 121 80 39 80 160 240
- 51 62 59 62 110 172
- 172 142 98 142 270 412
£ - E2.041 £930 £787 £930 £2,828 £3,758
- 1,592 - 690 - 2,282 2,282
- - 866 - 866 - 866
- 1,592 866 690 866 2,282 3,148
- 229 9 40 9 269 278
- 220 55 57 55 277 332
£ - £2041 £930 £787 £930 £2828 £3,758

'‘Retained interests' includes secunties retained by the Company and subordinated loans receivable (refer
to Note 18 'Other assets') and semor seller loans provided by the Company to the SPE, which eliminate

on consolidation

‘Other labilities' includes outstanding positions held by the SPE with the Company and other external
parties The labilities represent short term timing differences between collectton and distnbution perods
as well as deferred purchase amounts and discounts from book value granted by the Company upon

transfer of assets
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3 SALES OF RECEIVABLES AND RELATED FINANCING continued

Continuing obligations

The Company 1s engaged as servicer to collect and service the securiised assets and generally receives
a servicing fee  Servicing duties include collecting payments and preparing monthly investor reports on
the performance of the secuntised assets and on amounts of interest andfor principal payments to be
made to investors While servicing securitised assets, the Company applies the same servicing policies
and procedures that apply to our owned assets and maintain our normal relationship wath our financing
customers

The Company generally has no obligation to repurchase or replace any securitised asset that
subsequently becomes delinquent in payment or otherwise 1s in default Generally secuntisation
investors have no recourse to the Company or the Company's other assets for credit losses on the
securitised assets and have no nght to require the Company to repurchase therr investments The
Company does not guarantee any asset-backed securities and has no obligation to provide hquidity or
make monetary contributions or contributions of additional assets to the SPEs either due to the
performance of the securiised assets or the credit rating of the Company's short-term or long-term debt
However, as the seller and servicer of the securitised assets, the Company 1s obligated to provide certain
kinds of support to secuntisation transactions, which are customary in the secuniisation industry

14 INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS]

COMPANY

Investments in group undertakings at December 31 were as follows

20086 2005

£ mil £Emi
Cost at 1 January and 31 December £ 80 £80
Amounts written down at 1 January and 31 December (8) (8)
Net book value at 31 December £72 £72
Investment in banks included above 7 7
Subsidiary undertakings Beneficial Accounting Country of Principal activity
as at 31 December 2006 interest reference date  incorporation/

registration

Automotive Finance Limited * 100% 30 June England & Wales Finance company
FCE Leasing (Holdings) Lirmited 100% 31 December England & Wales Holding company
FCE Leasing Limited * 100% 31 December England & Wales Finance company
Ford Automotive Leasing Limited *  100% 30 September England & Wales Finance company
Jaguar Financial Services Limited *  100% 31 March England & Wales Finance company
Mentpoint Limited 100% 30 June England & Wales Finance company
Pnmus Automotive Financial 100% 31 December England & Wales Dormant
Services Limited
Volvo Car Finance Limited 100% 31 December England & Wales Finance company
FCECreditsro 100% 31 December Czech Republic Finance company
Volvo Car Finance Finland Limited 100% 31 December Finland Finance Company
FCE Credit Hungana Zrt 100% 31 December Hungary Finance company
FCE Services Kft * 100% 31 December Hungary Finance company
FCE SpA 100% 31 December Italy In iquidation
FCE Bank Polska S A 100% 31 December Poland Bank
FCE Credit Poland S A 100% 31 December Poland Finance company

All subsidiaries are consolidated into these financial statements and operate principally in their country
of incorporation Subsidiaries indicated by an asterisk are not directly owned by the Company

FCE Bank Polska S A 1s a regulated bank and 1s required, among other things to maintain minimum
capital reserves
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M5 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS|

Goodwill and other intangible assets at December 31 were as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £ mit £mil £ mil
Net book value
Goodwill £ 160 £ 160 £ 12 £ 12
Other intangible assets {per table below) 23 26 24 26
Total goodwill and intangible assets £ 183 £ 186 £ 36 £ 38
GOODWILL
Cost and net book value
Al 1 January and 31 December £ 160 £ 160 £ 12 £ 12
Impairment charge
At 1 January and 31 December E - £ - £ - £ -

'Goodwill' represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of FCE's share of the net
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisihon Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
occurnng on or after 1 January 1995 1s reported in the balance sheet as an intangible asset and was
amortised using the straight-ine method over its estmated useful ife, untl 1 January 2004 when
amortisation of goodwill ceased upon the adoption of Intermnational Financial Reporiing Standards
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidianes that occurred prior to 1 January 1995 was charged in full to
retained profits in shareholder's equity, such goodwill has not been retrospectively capitalised and
amortised

Analysis of other intangible assets

‘Other intangible assets' relate entirely to computer software development costs which are anticipated to
generate future economic benefits to FCE  Software development costs are amortised to the income
statement within the captions 'Other cperating expenses' over the estimated useful Iife of the system as
specified in Accounting Policy M item (n) ‘Goodwill and other intangible assets’

COMPANY GROUP
Software Software
Internally Externally Total Internally Externally Total
generated acquired generated acquired
£ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £mil £ ml
Cost Reastated” Restated”™
At 1 January 2006 £ 15 £ 24 £39 E 15 £ 24 £ 39
Additions 1 - 1 2 - 2
At 31 December 2006 16 24 40 17 24 41
Amortisation
At 1 January 2006 12 1 13 12 1 13
Charge for the year {Note 6) 2 2 4 2 2 4
At 31 December 2006 14 3 17 14 3 17
Net book value at 31
December 2006 £ 2 £ 21 £23 £ 3 £ 21 £ 24
Nel book value at 31 E 3 £ 23 £26 £ 3 £ 23 £ 26
December 2005

* Cost of intangible assets as 1 January 2006 have been restated to appropnately reflect the amount of computer software development costs
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6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT]

Property and equipment at December 31 were as follows

COMPANY GROUP
Leasehold Office Motor Total Leasehold Office Motor Total
Improve- Equip- Vehicles Improve- Equip- Vehicles
ments ment ments ment
£mil £ mil £ mil £ ml £ml £mil £mil £mil

Cost
At 1 January 2006 £ 4 £ 18 £ 356 £ 378 £ 4 £ 18 £ 484 £ 506
Additions - - 470 470 - - 531 531
Disposals - (3) (588) (591) - 3) {640} (643)
Translabion adjustment - - - - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2006 4 15 238 257 4 15 376 395
Depreciation
At 1 January 2006 2 15 99 116 2 16 146 164
Charge for the year - 1 103 104 - 1 133 134
Disposals - (2) (163) (165) - (3) {188) {191)
Translaton adjustment - - 5 5 - - 7 7
At 31 December 2006 2 14 44 60 2 14 08 114
Net book value at 31 £ 2 £ 1 £ 194 £ 197 £ 2 £1 £ 278 £ 281
December 2006
Net book value at 31 £ 2 £ 3 £ 257 £ 262 £ 2 £ 2 £ 338 £ 342
December 2005

Motor vehicles include vehicles held for use under operating leases as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £mil £ mil £mil
Cost £ 233 £ 350 £ 368 £ 476
Accumulated depreciation {43) (97) (95) (144)
Net book value £ 190 £ 253 £ 273 £ 332

Accumulated depreciation expense on vehicles subject to operating leases 1s provided con a straight-line
basis to the income statement within the caphons '‘Depreciation con tangible assets’ in an amount
necessary to reduce the leased vehicle to its estimated residual value at the end of the lease term
Adjustments to reflect revised estimates of expected restdual values at the end of the lease terms are
recorded prospectively on a straight-line basis  Upon disposition of the vehicle, the difference between
net book value and actual proceeds (including residual value support payments from Ford) 1s recorded
as an adjustment to depreciation expense

All assets are valued on the historical cost basis  Included in depreciation above are allowances for
imparment fosses for bad and doubtful debts and residual value provisions for operating lease assets
of £5 milhon (2005 £7 million) for the Group and £5 milhion (2005 £7 milion) for the Company

Disposals include the sale of FCE's portfolto of commercial operating lease and full service leasing
vehicles which were sold in a number of European markets as detailed within Note 35 'Disposals’

For detalls of vehicle residual values included in Property and Equipment refer to Note 28 'Vehicle
residual values'
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f7  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES]

The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £ mi £ mil £ mil
Restated" Restated”
At 1 January liability/(asset) £ - £ (40} £ 2 £ (9)
Income statement charge/(credit) {21) 40 (25} 11
At 31 December hability/{asset) £ (21) £ - £ (23) £ 2
Deferred Income tax assets and habilities are attnbutable to the following items
Deferred income tax hability
COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £mil £ mil £ mil
Accelerated tax depreciation £ - £ 2 £ 3 £ 2
Other 35 43 40 91
At 31 December iability £ 35 £ 45 £ 43 £ 53
Deferred iIncome tax asset
COMPANY GROQUP
2008 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £mil £ mil £mi
Accelerated tax depreciation £ (24) £ (19} £ (24) £ (14)
Other provisions {32) (26) (42) (37)
At 31 December (asset) £ (56) £ (45) £ (66) £ (51}

The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following temporary differences

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £ mil £ mil £mil
Accelerated tax depreciation E (5) £ 19 £ (1) £ (3)
Other provisions (186) 21 (24) 14
At 31 December hability/{asset) £ (21) £ 40 £ (25) £ 1

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures

Deferred iIncome tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards only to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit 1s probable At 31 December 2006, the Company's Insh branch has £3 6
milion (2005 £7 3 millon) of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset I1s recognised

Deferred income tax liabilites have not been established for the withholding tax and other taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earmings of certain subsidiaries, as such amounts are permanently
reinvested, unremitted earnings totalled £49 9 milhion at 31 December 2006 (2005 £44 2 millon)
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8 OTHER ASSETS

Other assets at December 31 were as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£mil £ mil £mil £mil
Restated* Restated”
Short term receivable — related parties £ 127 £ 143 £ 128 £ 146
Short term receivable — external 184 260 191 243
Vehicles waiting resale 108 140 99 140
Whelesale consignment vehicles 84 66 64 66
Prepaid taxes a1 46 41 48
Prepayments and accrued Income 2 28 21 13
Due from subsichary undertakings 274 217 - -
subsidianes
Sub-total excluding SPE retained interests 819 900 544 656
Special Purpose Entities (SPE) retained interests
- Retained notes 428 135 - -
- Sentor Seller loan 87 94 - -
- Subordinated loans (see next page) 180 49 - -
Sub-total SPE retained interest (Note 13) 695 278 - -
Other assets £ 1,514 £ 1,178 £ 544 £ 656

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures

'‘Short term receivables — related parties’ includes balances generated in the ordinary course of
business Refer to Note 34 ‘Related party transactions' for further details

Wholesale consignment vehicles' relates to arrangement whereby the Company's Swedish branch
provides finance to certain manufacturer's national sales companies (namely Ford Motor Company AB
and Mazda Motors Logistics Europe NV ) for vehicles supplied to Swedish dealers on a consignment
basis Under this arrangement, vehicles are sold by the manufacturers to the Company The Company
in turn consigns the vehicles to dealers on a sale or return basis At 31 December 2006, the total
receivables due from manufacturers under the consignment vehicle financing arrangement was £64
milkon (2005 £66 million) and 1s included 1n other assets This item will be repaid from monies recerved
by the Company from dealers on purchase of the vehicles

‘Vehicles waiting resale’ relates to returned and re-possessed vehicles from operating leases and retail
finance and lease contracts and are reported at values that approximate expected sales proceeds

Included within amounts 'due from subsidiary undertakings' for the Company 1s a collateralised loan of
£20 mifhion (2005 £10 million) receivable from FCE Bank Polska SA, which 1s used to mitigate credit
exposure concentrations reported to the National Bank of Poland

'SPE retained interesis' reported in the Company balance sheet includes the Company's retained
interest in secunitisation transactions and includes retained notes in certain secuntisation transactions, a
Senior Seller loan which ranks pari-passu with other asset-backed note holders and subordinated loans
as detailed below As FCE 1s not fully 1solated from the nisks and benefits in accordance with scope of
Interpretation SIC-12 ‘Consolidation — Special Purpose Entites' the entity 1s consolidated as a
subsidiary within the FCE Group balance sheet and the retained interest eliminated upon consolidation
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M8  OTHER ASSETS continued

Subordinated loans receivable

Special Purpose Entity Currency Interest Rate Per Annum COMPANY
000's 2006 2005
Emi £ mil
Globaldrive (UK) Senes 4 plc GBP 102,440 GBP 1-M-LIBOR +100 bps £102 £ -
Globaldrive (UK) Vaniable Funding 1 pic GBP 8,585 GBP 1-M-LIBOR +100 bps 9 -
Globaldnve Spam 2B V EUR €31,900 EUR 3-M-EURIBOR +120 bps 21 -
Globaldrive (Germany) V Lid EUR €7,600 Performance related 5 -
Globaldrive (UK) Senes 2 plc GBP 6,100 GBP 1-M-LIBOR +120 bps 6 6
Globaldrive (UK) Sernes 2 plc GBP 640 Non interest bearing 1 1
TdA, Fondo de Titulizacién de Activos EURE 4,200 Performance related 3 8
TdA, Fondo de Tilulizacién de Actives EUR €49,000 Performance related 33 34
Total subordinated loans £180 £49
M9  DUE TO OTHER BANKS|
Due to other banks at December 31 were as follows
COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£mil £ ronl £ml £ mul
"Restated

Obligations ansing from sales of £ 965 £ 766 £ 4,855 £ 2282
receivables (Note 13)
Bank borrowings excluding overdrafts 770 840 850 933
European Investment Bank loans 831 762 831 762
Bank overdrafts 117 121 133 128
Due to other banks £ 2,683 £ 2,489 £ 6,669 £ 4,105
Analysis due to other banks
Financing from sales of receivables £ 965 £ 766 £ 4,855 £ 2,282
Unsecured borrowings 1,718 1,723 1,814 1,823
Total due to other banks £ 2,683 £ 2,489 £ 6,669 £ 4,105

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures

‘Obligations from sales of recewvables' reflects sales of receivables completed under private
transactions As the arrangements do not satisfy the requirements for accounting sale treatment
under IAS 39 'Financial instruments, recognition and measurement’, the sold receivables and the
assoclated debt are not removed from the balance sheet Where the Company has entered into a
structured financing arrangement with a third party finance provider, and no SPE structure 1s
involved, a lability 1s recognised within the Company balance sheet representing the proceeds
received from the legal transfer of assets to the finance provider This hability 1s not the legal
obligation of the Company and 1s payable only out of collections on the underlying assets transferred
{o the finance provider

'‘Bank borrowings excluding overdrafts' are typically either payment received as servicer in regard to
sold receivables to banks which are in process of being repaid or other borrowings excluding
overdrafts utiised in the ordinary course of business

'European Invesiment Bank (EIB) loans’ partially support a number of different vehicle projects
relating to our automotive pariners which have been assigned to the Company The EIB loans have
remaining terms from two to six years and are supported by guarantees and letters of credit provided
by financial institutions on behalf of the Company to the EIB

The effective interest rate of the amounts outstanding to other banks 15 disclosed within Note 39
‘Interest rate nsk'’
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20 DUE TO PARENT AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS]

Due to parent and related undertakings at December 31 were as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £mil £ mil £ml
Restated*
Net cash proceeds from the sale of £ 4,506 £ 2,357 - -
recevables (Note 13)
Term loans due to related parties 1,984 3,745 1,984 £ 3,745
Amounts drawn under a short term revolving 1,012 343 1,012 343
faciity
Deposits received from related parties 710 585 710 585
Accounts payable to related parties 221 215 230 215
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 65 91 - -
Accrued interest 56 61 56 62
Due to parent and related undertakings £ 8,554 £ 7,397 £ 3,992 £ 4,950

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures

'‘Net cash proceeds from the sale of recewvables' represents proceeds received from the transfer of
assets to a SPE This hability 15 not the legal obligation of the Company and 1s payable only out of
collections on the underlying assets transferred to the finance provider

Term loans due to related parties' mainly comprises of loans due to FMCC with matunty dates ranging
from 2007 to 2009

‘Amounts drawn under a short term revolving facility' provided to the Company by FMCC  This facility
matures on 8 February 2008 or earlier upon 60 days notice from FMCC

‘Deposits received from related parties’ are due to FCI, the Company's immediate parent undertaking
and are utiised to mitigate exposure concentrations reported to the Financial Services Authonity

‘Accounts payable to related parties' are iabilities which are typically settled on a daily or monthly basis

‘Accrued interest’ mainly compnses of interest due on term loans due to related parties' and 'deposits
received from related parties’ Interest i1s calculated on arm's length terms

Other amounts due to FMCC and FCI are reported within Note 22 'Other borrowed funds'

The effective interest rate of amounts due to parent and related undertakings 1s disclosed within Note
39 'Interest rate risk '
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21 DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE|

Details of the public debt funding programmes as at 31 December are as follows

COMPANY GROUP
PROGRAMME (YEAR LAUNCHED) - AMOUNT 20086 2005 2006 2005
£ml £ mil £mil £mil
Euro Medium Term Note (1993) - US$12 billion
- Continuously Available Retail Secunties £ 339 £ 512 £ 339 £ 512
(retaill investors 1993)
- Other European Medium Term Notes
{excludes Continuously Available Retail 1,313 2,547 1,313 2,547
Secunties)
Sub-total Euro Medium Term Notes £ 1,652 £ 3,059 £1,652 £ 3,059
Schuldschein 865 1,207 865 1,207
Obligations ansing from sales of recevables (Note 13) - - 410 866
Polish CP (1993) PLN 1 bilhion - - 35 49
Euro Commercial Paper (CP} & Euro Certfficate
of Deposit {CD) (1993) - US$5 bilian - 27 - 27
French Euro CD (1993) - EUR €3 billion - 2 - 2
Debt securities In 1ssue £ 2,517 £ 4,295 £ 2,962 £ 5,210

Analysis of debt secunities in i1ssue
Unsecured borrowings £ 2,517 £ 4,295 £ 2,552 £ 4,344
Obligations ansing from sales of receivables - - 410 866

Total debt secunities in issue £ 2,517 £ 4,295 £ 2,962 £ 5,210

‘Euro Medium Term Note' (EMTN) — the Company subject to complance with all relevant laws,
regulations and directives, may from time to time 1ssue notes under this Programme The aggregate
principal amount of notes outstanding will not at any time exceed $12 billion (or the equivalent in other
currencies) Certain notes to be 1ssued under this Programme may be Continuously Availlable Retail
Securities, which may be tssued from time to time to investors on a continuously available basis The
Base Prospecius 1s dated 1 December 2006 and contains information relating to all notes, including
Retall Securities

The Commussion de Surveillance du Secteur Fmnancrer (the CS8SF) in its capacty as competent
authonity approved the EMTN Base Prospectus as required by Article 5 4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the
"Prospectus Directive") Notes 1ssued under the EMTN programme are histed on the Official List of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and are admitted for trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's
regulated market The Luxembourg's Stock Exchange website address 1s provided on page 96

The Company has completed two 1ssuances under the EMTN Programme n early 2007 as detailed in
Note 36 'Post balance sheet events'

'Obhgations from sales of receivables’ reflects sales of recevables completed under public transactions
As the arrangements do not satisfy the requirements for accounting sale treatment under IAS 39
'Financial instruments, recognition and measurement’, the sold receivables and the associated debt are
not removed from the balance sheet Liabilties reported are not the lega!l obligation of the Company
and are payable only out of collections on the underlying assets transferred to the finance provider

'‘Schuldschein’ are certificates of indebtedness governed under German law 1ssued by the Company's
German branches

The effective interest rate of debt secunties in 1ssue 1s disclosed within Note 39 ‘Interest rate risk'
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B2 ~ OTHER BORROWED FUNDS|

COMPANY
and GROUP
Typel matunty Currency Interest Rate per Annum 2006 2005
date Amount £ mul £mil
(Mils)

Perpetual Loan US$ 2186 USD 3-M-LIBOR + 71 35 bps £ 111 £ 127
Perpetual Loan EURE 46 0 EUR 6-M-EUR LIBOR + 150bps 31 3z
Perpetual Loan EURE 358 EUR 6-M-EUR LIBOR + 95bps 24 24
Perpetual Loan EURE 128 EUR 6-M-EUR LIBOR + 95bps 8 9
Perpetual Loan EURES 6 EUR 6-M-EUR LIBOR + 75bps 4 4
Perpetual Loan EURES S EUR 6-M-EUR LIBOR + 75bps 4 4
Perpetual Loan EUREC 8 EUR 6-M-EUR LIBOR + 75bps 1 1
Total perpetual loans £ 183 £ 201
Loan 2010 USS$ 250 USD 3-M-LIBOR + 105bps 128 145
Loan 2007 Us$ 200 USD 3-M-LIBOR + 50bps 102 116
Loan 2012 Uss 55 USD 3-M-LIBOR + 185bps 28 32
Loan 2011 USS 45 USD 3-M-LIBOR + 230bps 23 26
Total dated loans £ 281 £ 319
Other borrowed funds £ 464 £ 520
Analysis of total other borrowed

funds

Due to FCI (US$ denominated loans) £ 392 £ 446
Due to FMCC (EURE denominated loans) 72 74
Total other borrowed funds £ 464 £ 520

Cther borrowed funds are subordinated habilities due to fellow Ford subsidianes Early repayment of
the loans requires the prior wrnitten consent of the Financial Services Authonty and as such these loans
qualify for Tier I} capital for regulatory reporting purposes

The US dollar subordinated loans are due to FCI, the Company's smmediate parent undertaking The
Company may repay or FCI may request repayment of the US dollar loans by gwving one menth's
written notice The EUR loans are due to FMCC The Company may terminate the agreement at any
time by giving one month's wriiten notice  FMCC may terminate the agreement by giving five years and
one day's pnor written notice Cross currency swaps are used to minimise currency risks on US dollar
denominated funding The Euro subordinated loans relate to two German branches of the Company
(Ford Bank and Mazda Bank)

The nghts of FCl and FMCC to payment and interest in respect of all loans will, in the event of winding
up of the Company, be subordinated to the rights of all unsubordinated creditors of the Company with
respect to therr senior claims

The Company has a US$1 billion subordinated loan facility with FCI - This facility enables the Company
to respond quickly if additional capital support I1s required Under the terms of the facility, the Company
Is able to take drawdowns up to the maximum principal amount of the faciity Any undrawn amount of
the facility will be available unti it 1s cancelled either by the Company or FCI At the end of 2006, the
amount outstanding under the faciity totalled US$ 568 6 milion {2005 US$ 568 6 million), and
comprised the US$ 218 6 mithon {2005 US$ 218 6 million) perpetual loans and three of the four dated
loans totalling US$ 350 million (2005 US$ 350 million)

The average effective interest rate of other borrowed funds 1s disclosed within Note 39 'Interest rate
nsk'
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23 OTHER LIABILITIES]

COMPANY GROUP
2008 2005 2006 2005
£mil £mil £ mil £ mil
Accrued habilities and deferred income £ 240 £ 258 £ 266 £ 283
Trade payable 139 181 142 187
Other habilities £ a79 £ 439 £ 408 £ 470

Deferred income includes interest supplements and other support payments from related parties
{including Ford and affilated manufacturers) provided for certain financing transactions which 1s
recognised over the life of related financing transaction

24  INCOME TAXES PAYABLE]

FCE's income taxes payable includes both United Kingdom and overseas taxation The provision for
income taxes payable for the years ended 31 December 31 was estimated as follows

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£mil £mil £mil £ mil
UK taxation £ 7 £ 9 £ 7 £ 1
Overseas taxation 6 4 11 4
Income taxes payable £ 13 £ 13 £ 18 £ 5

25 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS|

In a number of locations FCE employees participate in various defined benefit plans operated by Ford
and Volvo Cars In other locations which operate pension schemes FCE employees typically participate
in defined contrnibution plans with the exception of the Company’s Spanish branch which has a defined
benefit plan Total pension costs are detailed below and are charged to 'Other operating expenses’

FCE employees in Greece, Iltaly, Sweden, Poland, Hungary and the Czech Republic have no company
penston schemes

Total pension expense in the period

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 20086 2005
£000's £ 000's £000's £000's

Plans expensed as defined contnibution plans

- Defined benefit plans operated by £ 18,099 £ 15,767 £ 18,009 £ 15,767
Ford and Volvo Cars

- Defined contnbution plans in which

FCE participates 2,245 2,222 2,392 2,378
Defined benefit plans 502 448 502 448
Total pension expense £ 20,846 £ 18437 £ 20,993 £ 18,593

Defined benefit plans operated by Ford and Volvo Cars expensed as defined contribution plans

in a number of locations the Company employees participate in defined benefit plans operated by Ford
and Volvo Cars As there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined
benefit cost for the plan, measured in accordance with IAS 19 ' Employee Benefits' to individual group
entities the Company has recognised a cost equal to contributions payable for the period and therefore
the plans are accounted for as defined contribution plans
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5  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

Details of plans operated by Ford and Volvo Cars and accounted as defined contribution plans

The following table details the benefit obligation and plan assets for the schemes operated by Ford
Motor Company and Volvo Cars in which the Company employees participate  As the Company
employees typically are a minonty in each scheme, the number of current Company employees
participating 1s shown relative to the total number of current employees participating, {o give an
indication of matenality

COMPANY and GROUP
2006
Total Pensicn plan participants Company participants
Location/ Scheme Banefit Plan Funding Current  Retirees Total Currert % of Contribution
Ford unless Obligations Assets Surplusf employ- amployoes Current paid In year
stated (Deficlt oes ernp.Ig:
£ mil £mil £mil % £000's
Belgium £166 5 £1510 £(155) 493 1,310 1,803 36 73% £117
Belgum - Volvo 893 685 (30 8) 4,863 11 4,874 18 0 4% 59
Germany - 1,965 9 1,424 9 (5410) 22,195 22,490 44,685 818 37% 12,306
Foveruka
Germany - 1,6124 - (1,6124) 1,310 4,589 5909 54 41% .
Exempt **
Ireland® 395 441 46 43 330 379 16 327% (185)
Netherlands 663 875 212 96 869 965 42 438% 84
Portugal 51 48 {0 5) 72 605 677 28 389% -
Switzerand 248 322 76 102 58 158 65 637% 431
UK - Salaned 2,763 0 2,693 7 {69 3) 4,876 11,551 16,427 889 182% 5,135
UK - Senior staff 3160 2699 {46 1) 177 374 551 14 79% -
UK - Volvo 758 697 {6 1) 258 118 376 13 50% 152
Total £7,1344 £4,8461 £(2,2883) 34,491 42313 76,804 1,993 58% £18,099
COMPANY and GROUP
2005
Total Pension plan participants Company participants
Location/ Scheme Benefit Plan Funding Current  Retirees Total Current %of  Contribution
Ford unless Obligations Assets Surplus/ employ- amploysas Current paid in ygar
stated (Deflch aes empelzz
Emil £ il £mil % £000's
Belgium £1851 E157 4 £E@27 T 498 1,303 1,801 36 72% £221
Belgium - Volvo 811 47 3 (338) 5,043 - 5,043 20 0 4% 123
Germany - 22749 1,358 5 {916 4) 23,641 22,097 45738 850 36% 4,891
Foveruka
Germany - 1,6850 - (1,685 0) 1,380 4,539 5,919 65 4 7% -
Exempt **
lreland® 394 391 (03) 63 342 405 29 46 0% 3.237
Netherlands 861 899 38 112 869 981 58 518% 278
Portugal 53 49 (04) 45 595 640 28 622% -
Switzertand 236 315 79 108 56 164 66 611% 439
UK - Salaned 3.0185 2,574 0 (445 5) 5,806 11,102 16,908 847 146% 6,465
UK - Senior staff 3250 2578 (67 2) 205 352 557 15 73% -
UK - Valvo 754 600 (15 4) 267 107 374 17 € 4% 113
Totat £7.8004 E46204 £(3,1800) 37,168 41,362 78,530 2,031 5 5% £15,767

* The number of Company participants that are current employees i1s unavailable for the Ireland scheme
and therefore the number of permanent employees employed at the end od period has been inserted

** Ford Werke GmbH maintains a balance sheet reserve for the Germany Ford Exempt plan as at 31
December 2006 of £1,314 million (2005 £1,313 milion)

As the majority of the Company employees participate in the UK Ford Salaried and German Ford
Foveruka plans further disclosures are provided on these particular plans on the following page
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ks  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued|

Details of plans operated by Ford and Volvo Cars and accounted as defined contribution plans

2006 2005 2004
Changes in the present UK Ford German UK Ford German UK Ford German
value of the defined Salaned Foveruka Salaried Foveruka Salaried Foveruka
benefit plan obligations £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil
Opening present value £3,0195 £2,274 9 £26905 £1,8831 £2.5277 £1,6279
Service cost 581 607 530 480 460 428
Interest cost 1401 877 1380 857 1360 876
Actuanal losses/(gains) (305 4) {391 7) 2010 3278 732 1853
Plan amendments (15 6) - - - -
Losses on curtallments 90 60 560 46 6 81 -
Member Contnbutions 146 - 160 - 158 -
Past service cost - 462 - - - -
Translation adjustment . {46 3) - {512) - (02)
Benefits paid (157 8) {71 6) (135 0) {65 1) (116 3) (70 3)
Closing present value £2,762 5 £1,9659 £3,0195 £22749 £2 690 5 £1,883 1
The pension plans on which the defined benefit obhigation arises are wholly or partly funded
2006 2005 2004
Changes in the fair value UK Ford German UK Ford German UK Ford German
of plan assets Salaned Foveruka Sataried Foveruka Salaried Foveruka
£ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil
Opening far value £2,5740 £1,358 5 £21330 £1.3158 £1,9194 £1.213 1
Expected return 200.6 751 168 0 720 17520 60 4
Actuanal gains/{losses) 456 (9 3) 2710 - 316 -
Contnbutions by employer 167 1001 1210 720 1073 1128
Member contnbutions 146 - 160 - 158 -
Translation adjustment - (27.9) - (36 2) - (02)
Benefits paid (157 8) (71 6) (135 0) (65 1) (116 3) (70 3)
Closing far value £2,6937 £1,424 9 £25740 £1,3585 £2 1330 £1,3158
2006 2005
Composition of plan assets UK Ford German UK Ford German
Salaried Foveruka Salaned Foveruka
% % % %
Insurance Policy - 100 - 100
Equities 72 - 72 -
Bonds 21 - 21 -
Other 7 - 7 -
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
2006 2005
Principal Actuanal Assumptions at UK Ford German UK Ford German
the Batance Sheet Date Salaned Foveruka Salarted Foveruka
% % % %
Discount rate 500 475 475 400
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8§00 475 8 Q0 550
Future salary increases 400 3.00 400 350
Future pension increases 250 200 250 200
Future pension increases {discretionary) - - 190 -
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at age 65 on the balance sheet date 15 as follows
Years Years Years Years
Male 185 182 184 181
Female 217 224 216 222

The average Iife expectancy in years of a pensioner retinng at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet date 1S
as follows

Years Years Years Years
Male 192 2190 192 259
Female 224 250 223 249
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25

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued)|

In some locations FCE employees are members of insured schemes, where contnibutions are made to

an insurance company

£265,000) 15 held for employees at management level and above

contribution plans i1s given in the table below

Details of defined contribution plans in which FCE participates

In the Company's French branch a balance sheet reserve of £295,000 (2005
A summary of the defined

COMPANY GROUP

20086 2005 2006 2005
Contribution paid in year £'000's £'000's £000's £'000's
Location Scheme
Austna Insured £ 100 £ 7N £ 100 £ (77)
Denmark Insured 142 128 142 128
Finiand Insured 129 180 129 180
VCF Finland Insured - - 147 156
France Balance sheet reserve 45 271 45 271
ltaly State 1,636 1,525 1,636 1,525
Norway Insured 78 64 78 64
Spamn Insured 85 69 65 69
Sweden Slate 50 62 50 62
Total contrnibutions paid £ 2,245 £ 2222 £ 2,392 £ 2,378

Details of defined benefit plans

The Company’s Spanish branch operates a defined benefit plan in which the Company's employees at
management level are the only participants An actuanal valuation report has been obtamed for the
years to 31 December as detalled below under IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' A summary 1s provided in

the following table

DEFINED BENEFIT Year Benefit Plan Funding Pension plan Expense paid In year
PLANS OPERATED oblhigations Assets  Surplus/ participants
BY FCE (Deficit)
Location  Scheme £ mi £ mil £ mul Total FCE 2006 2005 2004
£000 £'000 £'000
Spain FCE 2006 44 4.2 (0 2) 42 42 £502 £- £-
Spain FCE 2005 41 40 {0 1) 39 39 - 448 -
Spain FCE 2004 36 34 {02) 42 42 - - 61
Total pension expense in the period for plans accounted as defined benefit plans £502 £448 £61
26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES|
COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £mil £ mil £mil
Guarantees provided to third parties on behalf of Ford
City of Cologne authonties £ 32 £ 33 £ 32 £ 33
Customs authonties, Revenue Commissioners and agencies 17 11 17 11
Spamsh Mimistry of Industry and regional authonties 7 - 7 -
56 44 56 44
Guarantees provided to third parties on behalf of FCE
Customs authonties and Revenue Commissioners 7 11 7 11
Contingent Liabilities £ 63 £ 55 £ 63 £ 55

The Company has 1ssued guarantees which include debt and other financial obligations of Ford  Such
arrangements are counter-indemnified by Ford and a fee 1s charged for the guarantee Further detalls
of the guarantees provided by the Company are included on the following page

The far values of guarantees are recorded in the financial statements where matenal
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26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES continued|

Guarantees provided by the Company are for

+ Suspended trade tax payments to the City of Cologne authonties on behalf of Ford Werke
GmbH This guarantee was issued In December 2004 and 1s extended each year untl notice
of termination 1s provided by FCE

o Duties and regstration taxes on imported vehicles and components provided to various
European Customs Authorities, Revenue Commissioners and agencies (including the UK
Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency) on behalf of Ford and FCE

s Loans granted for investment in the Valencia plant on behalf of Ford Espana SL provided to
the Spanish Minustry of Industry and regional authorities

Litigation and Claims

Certain legal actions and claims are pending or may be instituted or asserted in the future against FCE
concerning finance and other contractual relattonships  Litigation 1s subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual hitigated matters 1s not predictable with assurance FCE has established
provisions for certain of the legal actions and claims where losses are deemed probable and reasonably
estimable It 1s reasonably possible that certain claims for which accruals have not been established
could be decided unfavourably to FCE and could require FCE to pay damages or make other
expenditures In amounts or a range of amounts that cannot be estimated at 31 December 2006 We do
not reasonably expect, based on our analysis, that such matters would have a material effect on future
financial statements for a particular year, although such an outcome 1s possible

R7 COMMITMENTS

The table below detals the undrawn portion of commitments to lend The Company exiends
commercial credit primanly to vehicle dealers in the form of approved lines of credit to purchase
inventories of new and used vehicles In addition there 1s a commitment to lend to Company
subsidiaries as detailed below

COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £ mil £mil £mil
Less than 1 year matunty £ 116 £ 54 £ 116 £ 54
1 year or over matunty - 2 - 2
Commitments £ 116 £ 56 £ 116 £ 56

The Company has commitments to lend with its Polish subsidiaries FCE Bank Polska S A and FCE
Credit Polska S A which are reported in Note 34 'Related party transactions’

28 FUTURE LEASE COMMITMENTS

COMPANY GROUP

2006 2005 2006 2005
The future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating leases are as follows £mil £ mil £ mil £ mil
Not later than one year £ 8 £ 9 £ 8 £9
Later than one year and not later than five years 11 14 11 14
Later than five years - 1 - 1
Future lease commitments £ 19 £ 24 £ 19 £ 24

These amounts include rental commitments for certain buildings, machinery and equipment
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29 VEHICLE RESIDUAL VALUES]

The following vehicle residual values are included in loans and advances to customers and property, plant

and equipment in the balance sheet

COMPANY

Year in which the residual
value will be recovered

Within 1 year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-5 years
More than 5 years
Total

GROUP
Year in which the residual
value will be recovered

Within 1 year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-5 years
More than 5 years
Total

FCE 1s exposed to residual nsk on certain retall or finance lease balloon payment products where the
customer may return the financed vehicle to FCE if the market value i1s less than the Minimum
Guaranteed Future Value The overall return rate for retail finance plans i1s currently less than 3 per cent
As the above figures assume that all such vehicles will be returned the figures are likely to overstate
exposure to residual value nisk For an additional discussion of residual nsk on operating leases, refer to

Retail Finance lease Operating 2006 2005
residual residual values lease residual Total Total
values values
£ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £mil
£ 357 £ 41 £ 157 £ 555 £ 481
457 50 8 515 533
425 44 1 470 397
£ 1,239 £ 135 £ 166 £ 1,540 £ 1,411
Retail Finance lease Operating 2006 2005
residual residual values lease residual Total Total
values values
£mil £ml £ mul £ml £ mil
£ 357 £ 41 £ 161 £ 559 £ 487
457 50 13 520 540
425 4 6 475 403
£ 1,239 £ 135 £ 180 £ 1,554 £1,430

Note 16 'Property and equipment’ and Accounting Policy U 'Critical accounting estimates”

Residual risk I1s the possibility that the amount FCE obtain from returned vehicles will be less than our

estimate of the expected residual value for the vehicle

30  ORDINARY SHARES AND SHARE PREMIUM|

Authorised at 1 January and 31 December;

769,926,202 Crdinary shares of £1 each (2005 769,926,202}
230,073,798 Non Cumulative converiible preference shares

£1 each (2005 230,073,798)
Total

Allotted, called up and fully paid

at 1 January & 31 December

614,384,050 Ordinary shares of £1 each (2005 614,384,050}

Share premium at 1 January and 31 December.

There was no change to the 1ssued share capital of the Company during the year The share premium
account Is regarded as permanent capital of the Company and 1s not availlable for distnbution
director, officer or employee owns or holds shares or owns or holds options over shares in the Company

or its subsidiaries
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2006 2005

£ mil £ mil

£ 770 £ 770
230 230

£ 1,000 £ 1,000
£ 614 £ 614
£ 352 £ 352
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30

Support Agreement

ORDINARY SHARES AND SHARE PREMIUM continued|

Pursuant to a support agreement between FMCC and the Company dated 30 September 2004, FMCC
has agreed to maintain, directly or indirectly, a controlling interest of not less than 75% of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company and to maintamn ar procure the maintenance of the Company's net worth of
not less than US$ 500 milion inihially untd 31 January 2010

However as neither party provided written notice on 1 February 2006 or 1 February 2007 the termination
date was automatically extended each time by one year and now 1s 31 January 2013 The agreement
provides for the termination date to be extended automatically on February 1 of each year for an
additional one-year period ending on 31 January of the following year Either party can give notice one
month before automatic extenston of their wish to prevent the automatic extension of the termination date
and termunate the agreement in which case it will terminate as of the termination date set on the last
preceding extension date

31

RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES|

Profit and Translation Total retamned Other Total
loss reserve reserve earnings reserves

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

COMPANY £ mil £ mil £mil £ mit £mil £mi £mil £mil £ mil Emil
Restated” Restated® Restated"
At 1 January £1,245 £1.021 £(17) £(2) £1,228 £1,019 £- £(7) E£1,228 £1,012
Profit for the financial year 218 196 - - 218 196 - - 218 196
Capital contnbution 38 28 - - 38 28 - - 38 28
Cash flow hedges fair
value adjustment
gain/{loss) - - - - - - - 7 - 7
Currency translaton - - {30) (15) (30) (15} - - (30) {15)
differences
At 31 December £ 1,501 £ 1,245 £{47) £{17) £1454 £1,228 £- £- £1,454 £1228
Profit and Translation Total retained Other Total
loss reserve reserve earnings reserves

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

GROUP £ mi £mil £mil £ mil £ mil £mil £mil £ mil £ mil £ mil
Reslated” Restated* Restated*

At 1 January £1,156 £854 £(14) £3 £1,142 £897 £- £(7) £1,142 £890
Profit for the financial year 221 234 - - 231 234 - - 231 234
Capital contnbution 38 28 - - 38 28 - - 38 28
Cash flow hedges fair
value adjustment
gain/(loss} - - - - - - - 7 - 7
Currency translation - - (30) {(17) (30) {17} - - (30} {17)
differences
At 31 Decamber £1,425 £1,156 £(44) £(14) £1,381 £1,142 £- £- £1,381 £1,142

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for delails of 2005 restated figuras

In December 2006 the Company received a capital contnbution of £38,400,000 (2005 £27,803,382) or
US$E 75 milhon (2005 USS 49 million) from FCI to be used solely to make a payment to Jaguar Cars
Limited in return for use of Group tax relief
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B2 TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY]|

COMPANY Share Share Retained Other Total
capital premium  earnings reserves
£ mil £mil £ mil £ ml £mil
Notes a0 30 31 31 Restated"
Balance at 1 January 2005 30/31 £614 £352 £1,019 £ £1,978
Cash flow hedges farr value gains 7 - - - 7 7
Currency translation differences kY - - {15) (15)
Net gains/{losses) not recognised In - - (15) 7 (8)
the income statement
Capital contnbution 3 - - 28 - 28
Net profit | - - 196 - 196
Balance at 31 December 2005/
1 January 2006 30131 £614 £352 £1,228 £- £2,194
Currency translation differences 3 - - (30} - (30)
Net gains/(losses) not recognised In - - (30) - (30)
the income statement
Captal contnbuticn 31 - - a8 - 38
Net profit 3 - - 218 - 218
Balance at 31 December 2006 30/31 £614 £352 £1,454 £- £2,420
GROUP Share Share  Retained Other Total
Capital premium earnings reserves
£ mil £ mul £ mil £mil £mil
Notes 30 30 31 31 Restated
Balance at 1 January 2005 30/31 £614 £352 £897 £(7) £1,856
Cash flow hedges fair value gains 7 - - - 7 7
Currency transtation differences 31 - - {17} - (1N
Net gains/(losses) not recognised In - - (17) 7 (10)
the income statement
Capital contnbution 31 - - 28 - 28
Net profit K} - - 234 - 234
Balance at 31 December 2005/
1 January 2006 30/31 £614 £352 £1,142 £- £2,108
Currency translation differences 3 - - {30) - {30)
Net gains/(losses) not recognised in - - (30) - (30)
the income statement
Capital contnbution 3 - - 38 - 38
Net profit 31 - - 231 - 231
Balance at 31 December 2006 30/31 £614 £352 £1,381 £- £2,347

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
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133 DIVIDEND PER SHARE]

Fina!l dividends are not accounted for untl they have been approved at the Annual General Meeting The
directors have not declared any dividends during 2006 (2005 none)

134 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS]|

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions

A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business The
Company and its subsidiaries are separate, legally distinct companies from Ford and Ford's automotive
affihates and transactions are carned out on commercial terms and at market rates and enforced by FCE
in a commercially reasonable manner In addition to participating in retirement benefit plans sponsored
by Ford and Volvo (discussed in Note 25), the Company has a support agreement with FMCC in regard
to Shareholders' funds (detaled in Note 30)

FCE has reported related party transactions within the following categories
s Directors and officers — reported in Note 6 'Other operating expenses’,
s Subsidianes of the Company — as detalled in Note 14 'Investments in group undertakings”,

s Parent undertakings — this includes FCI, FMCC and Ford For further information refer to Note
43 'Other information,’

» Entities under common control — which includes all subsidiaries of Ford except for those
entities already reported within 'Subsidiaries of the Company' and ’'parent undertakings’
Transaclions reported in this category include

o Whereby the Company extends approved lines of credit, mortgages, working capital and
other lypes of loans which mainly relates to automotive partner vehicle dealers in which
Ford Motor Company maintains a controlting financial interest

o The receipt of interest income from Ford and its related companies arising from loans,
interest supplements and other support costs in regard to a varnety of retal and
wholesale finance plans

o Guarantees provided on behalf of other related parties of which further detaills can be
found in Note 26 'Contingent habilities’

o Guarantees received from other related parties in relating mainly to vehicle wholesale
finance plans
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134

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued|

The value of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and relating expense and
income for the year are as follows

COMPANY: Subsidianes of the Parent Entities Under
Company undertakings Common Control
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£ mil £ mil £ mil £mil £ mil £mil
Accounts Receivable Restated Restated Restated
Accounts recewvable at 1 January £ 83 £ 159 £ 1 £ 2 £ 143 £ 182
Additions to accounts recevable dunng the year 20,442 17,037 1 1 1,848 2,962
Repayments during the year (Fooinocte 4) {20,372) (17.113) (2} (2) {1,864) {3,001}
Accounts receivable at 31 December 153 83 - 1 127 143
Loans
Loans outstanding at 1 January 412 364 - - 153 228
Loans 1ssued dunng the year 6,059 7.070 - - 2,692 7,012
Loan repayments durning the year (Footnote 4) (5,655) (7,022) - - (2,624) (7.087)
Loans ouistanding at 31 December 816 412 - - 221 153
Accounts Payable
Accounts payable at 1 January 91 87 61 68 215 176
Additions to accounts payable dunng the year 629 1,498 - 6 13,667 21,897
Repayments during the year (Foolnote 4) (655} {1,494) (5) (13} (13,661} (21,858)
Accounts payable at 31 December 65 91 56 61 221 215
Deposits
Deposits at 1 January 49 4 5,236 6,193 17 12
Deposits recewved during the year - 49 836 511 - 17
Deposits repaid duning the year (Footnote 4) (35) (4) {1,872) {1,468) (5) (12)
Deposits at 31 December 14 49 4,200 5,236 12 17
Revenue
Interest iIncome related parlies 22 17 - - 409 383
Service fees receved/{paid) (Footnote 1) 1 1 {n (9) (11) (17)
Expense
Interest expense on deposis - - 25 21 - -
Interest expense 32 29 199 237 - -
Guarantees
Guarantees provided (Note 26} - - - - 63 55
Commitments to lend (Footnote 3) - - 105 106 - -
Guarantees recewed - . - - 103 95
Group tax relief (Footnote 2) 9 6 - - 138 140
Dividends received - - - - - -
Dervatives
Denvatives year end positive fair value - - - - 5 22
Denvatives year end negative far value - - - - 3 -
Footnotes:
1 Service fees received or paid — The Company recewves technical and administrative advice and

services from Ford and its refated companies, occupies office space furnished and provided by Ford
and its related companies and utilises data processing facilites maintained by Ford The costs of
these services are charged to 'Other Operating expenses' The Company also allocates central staff
costs to its subsidianes which benefit from the service

Group tax relief are losses claimed from related UK companies to shelter the Company's UK tax
profits Refer to Note 31 'Retained earnings and other reserves' for detalls of a capital contribution
receved and payments made relating to Group tax refief

Commitments to lend. The Company has extended loan facilities to ts Polish subsidianies FCE
Bank Polska S A and FCE Credit Polska S A of Polish Zloty PZL 200 milion (approximately £33
million) and PZL 400 milhon (approximately £70 milllon} respectively These faciities enable the
subsidianies to respond quickly if additional funding 1s required This facility was not utiised during
2006 and the amounts reported above represent the undrawn portion of the commitment at each
year end which s also the maximum principal amount of such facilities

Repayments include both repayments and effect of exchange rate changes durning the year
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134 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued|

The value of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and relating expense and
income for the year are as follows

Parent Entities Under

undertakings Common Control
GROUP: 2006 2005 2006 2005

£mil £ mil £mil £my
Accounts Receivable Restated Restated
Accounts recevable at 1 January £ 1 £ 2 £ 146 £ 182
Additions to accounts receivable dunng the year 1 1 1,860 2,974
Repayments of accounts recewvable dunng the year (Footnote 3) (2} (2) (1,878) (3,010)
Accounts recervable at 31 December - 1 128 146
Loans
Loans outstanding at 1 January - - 153 228
Loans 1ssued durning the year - - 2,692 7,012
Loan repayments during the year (Footnole 3} - - (2,624) {7.087)
Loans outstanding at 31 December - - 221 153
Accounts Payable
Accounts payable at 1 January 62 68 215 188
Additions to accounts payable dunng the year - 6 14,242 22,380
Repayments of accounts payable dunng the year {Foolnote 3} (6) {12} (14,227) {22,353)
Accounts payable at 31 December 56 62 230 215
Deposits
Deposits at 1 January 5,236 6,193 17 12
Deposits received during the year 836 511 - 17
Deposits repaid dunng the year (Footnote 3) (1.872) {1,468) (5) (12)
Deposits at 31 December 4,200 5,236 12 17
Revenue
Interest iIncome - - 419 394
Service fees receved/paid (Footnote 1} (7} (9} (11} (18)
Expense
Interest expense on deposits 25 21 - -
Interest expense 199 237 1 -
Guarantees
Guarantees provided (Note 26) - - 63 55
Guarantees received - - 103 96
Group tax relief (Footnote 2) - - 138 140
Dividend received (Note 4) - - - 1
Denvatives
Denvatives year end positive fair value - - 5 22
Denvatives year end negative farr valve - - 3 -
Footnotes.

1 Service fees received or paid - FCE receives technical and administrative advice and services from
Ford and its related companies, occupies office space furmished and provided by Ford and its related
companies and utiises data processing faciliies maintained by Ford The costs of these services
are charged to "Other operating expenses’

2 Group tax relief are losses claimed from related UK companies to shelter FCE's UK tax profits
Refer to Note 31 'Retained earnings and other reserves' for details of a capital contribution received
and payments made relating to Group tax relief

3 Repayments include both repayments and effect of exchange rate changes during the year
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35  DISPOSALS]

Full service leasing (FSL)

Under a new business model for the provision of FSL FCE retains responsibiity for marketing and sales,
for which it receives a fee income, and outsources finance, leasing, mantenance and repair services for
current and future portfolios of commercial operating leases to a preferred third party FSL business
partner identified on a market by market basis As part of this revised European strategy FCE has sold
certain European FSL portfolios in 2005 and 2006 and outsourced the on-going provision of FSL
preducts in those markets

The following FSL portfolio sales and outsourcing arrangements were agreed and implemented

COMPANY and GROUP

Country/Brand* Sale dates Currency 2006 2005
amount mils £mil £m

Netherlands/Volvo September 2006 EURE 106 £ 73 £ -
Finland December 2006 EURE 8 5 -
Norway December 2006 NOK 13 1 -
Denmark January 2005 DKR 131 - 12
Belgium/Volvo November 2005 EURE 24 - 16
France December 2005 EURE 214 - 147
Germany December 2005 EURE 164 - 112
Total sale proceeds £ 79 £ 287
Net book value of portfolic 78 283
Gain on sale (Note 5) 1 4
Adjustment to portfolio sales (1) -
Gain on sale (Note 8) £ - £ 4

*Ford Brand sale unless indicated otherwise

In July 2006 FCE through a subsidiary outsourced the future provision of a full service leasing product in
Poland to a preferred third party FSL business partner in return for future fee income There was no
portfolio sale The FSL business prior to the portfolio sales were accounted as 'Operating leases' and
included in 'Property and equipment’ within the balance sheet The FSL business does not represent a
discontinued activity as it 1s not a separate geographical area of operations and as the business continues
in a different form, with FCE involvement in the sales and marketing, for which a commission 1s received

With effect from January 2006 the Company outsourced the future provision of retall and lease finance in
Ireland with a third party bank Under the business model the Company outsourced responsibility for
underwnting, ongmation, collections and htigation and recovery, including funding and credit/residual risk
A dedicated sales team I1s employed by the third party bank with a matrix reporting line to the Company's
Insh Branch Manager The Company maintains sole responsibility for the local automotive sales
company relationship in return for a fee income and profit share

136  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS]

The following maternial events occurred after the balance sheet date

Unsecured debt issuances’
- Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN} — The Company resumed issuance under its EMTN programme,
which has an i1ssuance hmit of US$ 12 billon The Company completed two large unsecured debt
transactions as follows

« January 2007 EURE 1 billion (approximately £670 million) five-year bonds i1ssued,

e February 2007 £750 million four-year bonds i1ssued
- Swedish Commercial Paper (CP}) — In March 2007 the Company established a CP programme for the
iIssuance of commercial paper In Sweden with a programme 1ssuance hmit of Swedish Krona 2 billien
(approximately £150 milhion
Structured financing arrangement
In January 2007 the Company completed the sale to a third party bank of dealer floorplan recevables in
Denmark with an initial principal balance of Danish Krone (DKK) 800 million {approximately £72 mullion)
and a subsequent maximum principal balance outstanding at any time of DKK 1 5 billion (approximately
£135 million The Company's Danish branch will continue to perform the management of the assigned
receivables in accordance with a factoning agreement entered into between the third party bank and the
Company in return for the Company receiving a monthly servicing fee
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS]

Cost of providing share options are included in 'Other reserves’ within shareholders equity (Note 32) over
the vesting period Movements within other reserves relating to share ophtions are detalled below

COMPANY and GROUP

2006 2005

£ 000's £000's

At 1 January £ 138 £ (66)
Expensed to profit and loss account 402 464
Charged by the parent company (234) (260)
At 31 December £ 306 £ 138

FCE offers share options which are held over Ford Common Stock to directors and employees For more
details about the various Ford Share Option plans please refer to the annual report of Ford

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options granted to directors and employees of
FCE after 7 November 2002* that had not vested by 1 January 2005* are as follows

2006 2005

COMPANY and GROUP: Number of Average Grant Number of Average Grant
shares Price of shares shares Pnce of shares

uss us$

At 1 January 580,643 $11 58 353,378 $11 05
Granted 244,600 783 227,200 12 49
Exercised {13,578) 755 (1,551} 755
Transfers In 7,11 12 67 26,207 10 02
Transfers Out - - (21,307} 11 01
Terminated {6,000) 11 49 (3,284) 1133
At 31 December 812,776 $10 53 580,643 $11 58

* Dates stipulated by IFRS 2 'Share based payments'

Transfers In' represents share oplions granted to employees who at the grant date were employees of
another subsidiary of Ford Motor Company US and have since transferred to FCE 'Transfers Out'
represents share options granted to employees who at the grant date were employees of FCE and have
since transferred to another subsidiary of Ford Motor Company US

The weighted average market share pnice of options exercised during 2006 was US$ 7 55 and in 2005
US$ 11 51

Share options outstanding at the end of the year were as follows

2006 2005

Range of Exercise Prices Weighted Number of Weighted Weighted Number of Waeighted
Average shares Average Average shares Average
Grant Price Remaining Grant Pnce Remaining
Life Life
uUss uUss Years uUss Years
751-950 $774 358,508 88 $7 61 130,275 72
951-1150 10.04 17,068 64 10 11 13,668 74
1151 -1350 1286 437,200 77 12 81 436,700 88

At 31 December 812,776 580,643
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B7 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued|

The estimated farr value of stock options at the time of grant using the Black Scholes pricing model was
as follows

2006 2005
Weighted average fair value per option us$2 07 US$4 44
Cividend yield 4 9% 32%
Expected volatility 397% 41 9%
Risk-free interest rate 4.9% 4 4%
Expected option term {years) 7 7

The expected volatility 1s based on the historical volatiity over the last seven years

Performance Stock nghts over Ford Motor Company US Common Stock may be awarded to eligible
directors The number and weighted average market share price of awards are as follows

2006 2005
Number of  Average Market Number of  Average Market
shares Price of shares shares  Pnce of shares
Us$ us$
- - 1,150 $12 49

138 CURRENCY RISK

In addition to operating in the UK the Company operates branches in fifteen other European countries
and has subsidiaries in the Czech Republic, Finland (where also it has a branch), Hungary, Poland and
the United Kingdom which provide a vanety of wholesale, leasing and retail vehicle financing (see Note
14 'Investment in group undertakings'y The main overseas operations are in the EU focused in France,
Germany, Italy and Spain

The main operating (or ‘functional’) currencies are therefore Euro and Sterling As FCE prepares its
consolidated financial statements in Sterling, these will be affected by foreign currency exchange rate
movements between Euro and Sterling FCE does not hedge structural foreign currency investments in
overseas operations as each investment 1s considered to be of a long term nature

FCE's policy 1s to mimimise exposure to our operating results from changes in currency exchange rates
To meet funding objectives, we borrow In a variety of currencies We face exposure to currency
exchange rates If a mismatch exists between the currency of cur receivables and the currency of the debt
funding those recevables When possible, we fund recewvables with debt n the same currency,
minimising exposure to exchange rate movements When a different currency 15 used, we execute
foreign currency denvatives to convert substantially all of our foreign currency debt obhgations to the local
country currency of the receivables

As a result of this policy, we believe our market nsk exposure relating to changes in currency exchange
rates 1s not significant For additional information on our denvatives, see Note 11 'Denvative Financial
Instruments’ Controls are in place to hmit the size of transactional currency exposures

COMPANY GROUP

Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity 2006 2005 2008 2005

£mil Emil £ mil £ mil
Assets
Dencminated in sterling £ 4,858 £ 4842 £ 5,831 £ 4,424
Bencminated in currencies other than sterling 12,279 12,630 11,131 13,077
Total Assets 17,137 17,472 16,962 17,501
Liabihties & shareholders' equity
Dencminated In sterling 4,082 3,202 5,195 4,760
Denommnated in currencies other than sterling 13,055 14,270 11,767 12,741
Total Liabilities & shareholders’ equity £ 17,137 £ 17,472 £16,962 £ 17,501
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38 CURRENCY RISK continued|

Foreign currency translation exposures ansing from FCE's investments in overseas branches and
subsidiaries are detalled below

COMPANY and GROUP

Structural currency exposures 2006 2005
£mil £ mil

Funchional currency of operations involved

Euro £ 479 £ 479

Other Non Euro currencies 48 48

Total £ 527 £ 527

The table below shows transactional currency exposures which give nse to the net currency gains and
losses recognised In the consolidated income statement Such exposures comprise the monetary assets
and habilittes that are not denominated in the operating (or ‘functional’) currency of the operating urut
involved The exposures shown below are stated net of dervatives used to hmit currency nsk

COMPANY and GROUP.
Transactional currency exposure (2006)

US Dollar Euro Sterling Other Total
Functional currency of Group operations £ mil £mil £ml £ml £ mil
Euro £ - £ - £ (1) £ - £ (1)
Sterling 1) 14 - 2 15
Cther - - - - -
Total £ (1) £ 14 £ (1) £ 2 £ 4
Transactional currency exposure (2005)

US Dollar Euro Sterling Other Total
Functional Currency of Group Operations £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil £ mil
Euro £ - £ - £ 00 £ - £ (7
Sterling {18) 35 - 20
Other - - 1 - (OB
Total £ (18) £ 35 £ (18) £ 3 £ 2

B9 INTEREST RATE RISK|

As a result of FCE's interest rate nsk management processes which utiise hedging denvatives and as
some of assets are funded by equity, the total level of assets re-pricing 15 greater than the level of debt
re-pnicing  Other things being equal, this means that during a period of nising interest rates, the interest
income received on our assets will increase more rapidly than the interest expense paid on our debt,
thereby imitially increasing our pre-tax net interest income Correspondingly, during a penod of falling
interest rates, we would expect our pre-tax net interest income to initially decrease

To provide a quantitative measure of the sensitvity of our pre-tax net interest income to changes in
interest rates, we use interest rate scenarios that assume a hypothetical, instantaneous increase or
decrease n interest rates of one percentage point across all matunties (a 'parallel shift’), as well as a
base case that assumes that interest rates remamn constant at existing levels These interest rate
scenanos are purely hypothetical and do not represent our view of future interest rate movements The
differences In pre-tax net interest income between these scenarios and the base case over a twelve-
month period represent an estimate of the sensitivity of our pre-tax net interest income  This sensitivity
as of year-end 2006 and 2005 i1s detailed on the following page
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B9 INTEREST RATE RISK continued|

Pre-Tax Net Interest Income impact Pre-Tax Net Interest Income impact

given a one percentage pont given a one percentage point
instantaneous mncrease in interest instantaneous decrease In interest
rates rates
£ mil £mil
2006 £109 £(109)
2005 £17 9 £(17 9)

The sensitivity analysis presented previously assumes a one-percentage point interest rate change to the
year-end yield curve that 1s both instantaneous and parallel In reality, interest rate changes are rarely
instantaneous or parallel and rates could move more or less than the one percentage point assumed In
our analysis As a result, the actual impact to pre-tax net interest ncome could be higher or lower than
the results detatled above

While the sensitivity analysis presented 1s our best estimate of the impacts of the specified assumed
interest rate scenarios, our actual results could differ from those projected The model used to conduct
this analysis 15 heavily dependent on assumptions Embedded in the model are assumptions regarding
the remnvestment of maturing asset principal, refinancing of maturing debt, and predicted repayment of
retall installment sale and lease contracts ahead of the contract end date Our repayment projections
ahead of contractual matunty are based on histonical expenience I interest rates or other factors
change, our actual prepayment experience could be different than projected Additionally, as noted
previously, the sensitivity analysis presented assumes interest rate changes are instantaneous, parallel
shifts in the yield curve In reality, changes are rarely instantaneous or parallel We have presented our
sensitivity analysis 1n this Report on a pre-tax rather than an after-tax basis, to exclude the potentially
distorting impact of assumed tax rates

Part of the return on financial instruments I1s obtained from the controlled mismatching of the dates on
which the instruments mature or, if earlier, the dates on which interest receivable on assets and interest
payable on habilities are next reset to market rates The table summarises these repricing mismatches as
at 31 December 2006 Items are allocated to time bands by reference to the earlier of the next contractual
interest repricing date and the matunty date  Non interest-bearing rtems are a consideration in the
management of interest rate rnisk, the allocation of which to the time bands i1s not reflected below

COMPANY ; | Non
+ nterest
At 31 December 2006 0-3Mths  4-6Mths 7-12Mths  1-5Years  Years Bearng Total
£mil £ ml £ mil £mil £ mul £mil £ mil
Cash and advances to other banks £ 43 £ - £ - £ 9 £ 23 £ 16 £ 479
Loans and advances to customers 6,956 2,002 1,538 4,179 53 {125} 14,601
Other assets 1,215 7 - - - 835 2,057
Total assets £ 8602 £ 2009 £ 1,536 £ 4,188 £ 76 £ 726 £17,137
Due to other banks £ 1,919 £ 99 £ 18 £ 647 £ - £ - £2,683
Bue to parent & related undertakings 6,355 425 312 1,272 7 183 8,554
Debt secunties in 1ssue 534 684 722 591 - (14) 2,517
Other borrowed funds 392 - - - 72 - 464
Other habilibes 85 1 23 37 1 342 499
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - 2,420 2,420
Total habilities £ 9,295 £1,209 £ 1,075 £ 2547 £ 80 £ 2,91 £17,137
Gap before hedge (693) 800 461 1,641 4) (2,205}
Hedge impact 3,225 290 (618) (2,897) - -
Interest sensitivity gap 2,532 1,090 {157) (1,256) (4) (2,205)
Cumulative interest sensitvity gap 2,532 3,622 3,465 2,209 2,205 -
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[39 _ INTEREST RATE RISK continued

COMPANY

At 31 December 2005

Cash and advances to banks
Loans & advances to customers
QOther assets

Total assets

Due to other banks

Due to parent & related undertakings
Debt secunties in 1ssue

Other borrowed funds

Qther liabilibes

Shareholders' equity

Total habilities

Gap before hedge
Hedge mpact

Interest sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures

COMPANY

Effective Interest Rates

Currency

Assets
Cash and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

Liabilities

Due to other banks

Due to parent and related undertakings

Debt secuntes in 1ssue
Other borrowed funds

5+ Non Interest
0-3 Mths 4-6Mths 7-12Mths  1-5Years Years Beanng Total
£ mil £mil £ mil £ mil Emil £mil £mil
Restated” Restated*
£ 598 £ - £ - £ - £ - £ 14 £ 612
5,563 3,739 1,809 3.840 247 (118} 15,080
369 9 20 218 3 1,161 1,780
£ 6530 £ 3,748 £ 1820 £ 4058 £ 250 £ 1,057 £17,472
£ 2,378 £ 109 £ - £ - £ - £ 2 £2,489
4,847 2,136 - 206 - 208 7,397
3,850 - - 299 146 - 4,295
446 74 - - - - 520
83 7 15 25 - 447 577
- - - - - 2,194 2,194
£ 11,604 £ 2,326 £ 15 £ 530 £ 146 £ 2851 £17,472
{5.074) 1,422 1,814 3,528 104 {1.794) -
4,143 (741) {936) (2,466) - - -
(931) 681 878 1,062 104 {1,794} -
(931) {250} 628 1,690 1,794 - -
EURO GBP usp Other
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
119% 211% 294% 467% - - 125% 083%
6 57% 686% 914% B8239% - - 691% 571%
391% 270% 559% 433% 528% - 4 15% 334%
543% 440% 645% ©650% - - - 6 63%
451% 348% S500% 536% - 487% 409% 334%
439% 347% - - 629% 405% - -
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139 INTEREST RATE RISK continued|

GROUP
At 31 December 2006

Cash and advances to cther banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Total assets

Due to other banks

Due to parent & related undertakings
Debt secunties in 1ssue

Other borrowed funds

Other labiities

Shareholders' equity

Total habilities
Gap before hedge
Hedge impact
Interest sensitity gap

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap

GROUP

At 31 December 2005

Cash and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Total assets

Due to other banks

Due to parent & related undertakings
Debt secunties in issue

Other borrowed funds

Other habilites

Shareholders’ equity

Total habilihes
Gap hefore hedge
Hedge impact

Interest sensibwvity gap

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap

Non
Interest
0-3 Mths 4-6 Mths 7-12Mths  1-5Years 5+ Years Bearnng Total
£ mil £ mil £ mil £mil £mil £ mil Emil
£ 1,020 £ - £ - £ 74 £ 23 £ 16 £ 1,133
7,088 2,018 1,568 4,267 53 (126) 14,868
Kk} 15 10 3 - 602 961
£ 8,438 £ 2033 £ 1,578 £ 4344 £ 76 £ 492 £16,962
£ 4,218 £ 517 £ 325 £ 1605 £ 4 £ - £6,669
3,793 - - - - 199 3,992
653 694 741 884 - {10) 2,962
392 - - - 72 - 464
106 1 23 38 1 359 528
- - - - - 2,347 2,347
£ 9162 £ 1,212 £ 1,080 &£ 2,527 £ 77T £ 289% £16,962
(723) a21 489 1,817 (1) (2,403) -
2,215 540 (157} {2,598} - - -
1,492 1,361 332 (781} {n (2,403) -
1,492 2,853 3,185 2,404 2,403 - -
Non
0-3Mths 4-6Mths 7-12Mths  1-5 Years 5+ Years Interest
Beanng Total
£ mil £ mil £mil £mil £mil £ml £mil
Restated” Restated*
£ 1,028 £ - £ - £ - £ - £ 14 £1,042
5,620 3,754 1,873 3,832 247 (93) 15,333
373 18 35 265 4 431 1,126
£ 7021 £ 3772 £ 1,908 £ 4197 £ 25 £ 352 E17.501
£ 3983 £ 118 £ - £ - £ - £ 4 £4,105
2,390 2,136 - 206 - 218 4,950
4,391 69 109 495 146 - 5,210
446 74 - - - - 520
66 8 15 26 - 493 608
- - - - - 2,108 2,108
£ 11,276 £ 2405 £ 124 £ 727 £ 146 £ 2,823 £17.501
{4,253) 1,367 1,784 3,470 105 (2,471} -
3,217 {602) {619) (1,996) - - -
(1,038) 765 1,165 1,474 105 (2,471) -
(1,038} (273} 892 2,366 2,47 - -

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
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30  INTEREST RATE RISK continued|

GROUP

Effective Interest Rates

Currency

Assets
Cash and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

Liabilities

Due to other banks

Due to parent and related undertakings
Debt secunties in 1ssue

Other borrowed funds

@0 LIQUIDITY RISK

EURO

2006 2005

119% 211%
6 50% 703%
391% 269%
543% 4 40%
451% 348%
4 39% 347%

GBP
2008 2005
294% 467%
921% 951%

559% 411%
645% 655%
500% 536%

uso

2006 2005 2006

528% -

Other
2005
183% 222%
730% 660%
415% 334%
6 63%
3 54%

- 487% 409%
629% 405% -

The table below analyses assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the criteria

detailled on the following page

COMPANY
At 31 December 2006

Cash and advances to other banks
Dervative financial instruments
Loans and advances to customers
Investment in group undertakings
Goodwill and other intangible
Property and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Due to other banks

Due to parent and related
undertakings

Denvative financial instruments

Debt secunties in 1ssue

Other borrowed funds

Other labilites/Income taxes payable
Deferred tax habiities

Shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities
Net hquidity Gap
As at 31 December 2005

Total assets
Total lablibes

Net iquidity gap

Z
=1
@

[£e)
COo0oDwWO>»

ooO0O0O0O0 O

0-3 Mths 4-12 Mths 1-5 Years 5+ Years Total
£ mil £ mil £ ml £mil £ mul

£ 428 £ 5 £ 17 £ 29 £ 479
19 2 14 - 35

4,759 5,689 3,921 232 14,601

- 10 - 62 72

- - 23 160 183

4 ] 183 1 197

18 21 16 1 56

1,021 65 428 - 1,514
6,249 5,801 4,602 485 17,437

£ 1,399 £ 281 £ 1,003 £ - £ 2,683
2,269 2,451 3,602 232 8,554

10 24 37 1 72

204 1,042 1,271 - 2,517

- 102 127 235 464

245 107 35 5 392

1" 13 10 1 35

- - - 2,420 2,420

4,138 4,020 6,085 2,894 17,137

£ 21 £ 1,781 £ (1,483) £ (2,4098) £ -
6,491 5,859 3,984 1,138 17,472
2,711 4,486 7,504 2,11 17,472

£ 3,780 £ 1,373 £ {3,520) £ (1,633) £ -

The profile of maturty groumings includes the capital element of any asset or hability and excludes
associated interest costs The 'Net iquidity gap' is reported on a 'worst-case’ basis as no adjustment 1s
made for customer early settlements and the credit facilities which are availlable to FCE as detailed on
the following page It has been assumed that the inflows related to retal, leasing and wholesale
financing plans occur on the latest contractual date and that the repayment of debt occurs at the earliest
contractual date Accordingly the hquidity position based on cash inflows and outflows 1s more favourable

than as presented within this note
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40 LIQUIDITY RISK continued|

Note Assets and habilities are allocated to the appropriate time bands as follows.
A Based on availability of cash as follows (Note 10}
+« Cash and cash equivalents and legally 1solated cash retaned in SPEs classified by contractual
matunty date
+ Central bank deposiis which are typically not availtable for use in day to day operations classified
based on the latest possible repayment date
B Based on the financing product as detalled below
* Retal finance and lease contracts and operating lease vehicles (reported within Property and
equipment) generally require customers to pay equal monthly instalments over the lfe of the
contract Customer payments (excluding interest) are assumed to occur on the latest contractual
date and no behavioural adjustments are made for customer early settlements
s Wholesale financing for new and used vehicles held in dealers inventory - A bullet repayment
schedule 1s utilsed as the pnncipal 1s typically repaid 1in one lump sum at the end of the financing
pencd
C Classified to the earliest possible repayment date which means the first rollover date, or the shortest
penod of notice required to withdraw the funds or exercise a break clause where applicable
D Classified according to the remaining penod to matunty or expected settlement date
GROUP
At 31 December 2006 0-3 Mths 4-12 Mths 1-5 Years 5+ Years Total
Note £ ml £mil £mil £ mil £ mil
Cash and advances to other banks A £ 883 £ 8 £ 213 £ 29 £1,133
Denvative financial instruments C 18 2 14 - 34
Loans and advances to customers B 4,837 5,789 4,010 232 14,868
Goodwill and other intangible D - - 24 12 36
Property and eguipment B/D 17 39 224 1 281
Deferred tax assets D 21 26 18 1 66
Other assets D 469 €5 10 - 544
Total assets 6,245 5,929 4,513 275 16,962
Due to other banks C £ 1,967 £ 1,868 £ 2,590 £ 246 £ 6,669
Due to parent and related
undertakings Cc 1.649 664 1,679 - 3,992
Denvative financial instruments c (4) 24 38 1 59
Debt secunties in issue (o] 309 1,074 1,570 9 2,962
Other borrowed funds Cc - 102 127 235 464
Other habilibes/Income taxes payable 3] 262 17 42 5 426
Deferred tax llabilibes D 14 18 12 1 43
Shareholders' equity - - - 2,347 2,347
Total habiliies 4,197 3,863 6,058 2,844 16,962
Net iquidity Gap £ 2048 £ 2,065 £ (1,545) £ (2,569) £ -
As at 31 December 2005
Total assets 6,873 5,985 4,103 540 17,501
Total habilies 2,703 4,395 7.717 2,686 17,501
Net liquidity gap £ 4170 £ 1,590 £ (3.614) £ (2,146) -

Credit facilities

At December 31, 2006, FCE, had £1,372 milion (2005 £1,378 million) of contractually committed credit

facihities with financtal institutions

Line blocks of £357m result in £1,015 milion (2005 £1,298 million)

being available for use Of the £1,372 midbon, £1,312 millon are global credit faciities and £60 million
are non-global credit faciities Of the global credit ines, 33% (or £438 million) are commutted through
June 30, 2010, and the remamnder s committed for a shorter period of time  All of the global credit
facilities have substantially identical contract terms (cther than commitment amounts) and are free of
matenal adverse change clauses, restrictive financial covenants {for example, debt-to-equity lmitatrons
and minmum net worth requirements) and credit rating tnggers that could limit our ability to borrow
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41 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES)

Set out below 1s a comparnson by category of book values and far values of the financial assets and
financial habilities which are not presented on the balance sheet at farr value

Fair value 1s obtained by calculating the amount at which an asset or hability could be exchanged in an
arm'’s length transaction between informed and willing parties other than a forced liquidation

For short-term assets and habilities, the book value approximates far value because of the short
matunties of these instruments

Loans and advances to customers The farr value 1s calculated by discounting anticipated future cash
flows using an estimated discount rate that reflects the following

¢ Expected credit losses
+«  Customer prepayments
+ Expected future interest rates

FCE uses statistical methods that divide receivables into segments by type of receivables and contractual
term For receivables with short matunties the book value approximates fair value

Financial liabilties The far value 1s estimated based upon quoted market prices or current rates for
similar debt or assets with the same remaining maturities

Accordingly the information as presented does not purport to represent, nor should it be construed to
represent, the underlying value of the business as a going concern

CARRYING VALUE FAIR VALUE
COMPANY 2006 2005 2006 2005
£mil £l £ mil £ mil
Restated” Restated*
FINANCIAL ASSETS
t.oans and advances to customers (Note 12) £14,601 £15,080 £14,554 £15,176
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to other banks {Note 19} 2,683 2,489 2,694 2,501
Due to parent and related undertakings (Note 20) 8,554 7,397 8,554 7.397
Debt secunties in issue (Note 21) 2,517 4,295 2,581 4,276
CARRYING VALUE FAIR VALUE
GROUP 2008 2005 2006 2005
£mil £mil £mil £mil
Restated” Restated*
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and advances o customers {Note 12) £14,868 £15,333 £14,787 £15,423
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to other banks (Note 19) 6,669 4,105 6,680 4,115
Due to parent and related undertakings (Note 20) 3,992 4,950 3,992 4,950
Debt secunties in 1ssue (Note 21) 2,962 5,210 3,026 5,191

* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
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42 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT]

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash from operating activities

COMPANY GROUP
2008 2005 2006 2005
Notes £mil £ mil £ mil £mil
Cash from operating activities Restated* Restated”
Profit before tax 1 £ 307 £346 £329 £ 356
Depreciation expense on property and equipment 1 3 1 3
Depreciation expense on operating lease vehicles 103 174 133 209
Effects of foreign currency translation {29) (15) (30) (18)
Loss on sale of operating lease vehicles 1 3 1 3
Provision for identified credit losses 102 65 104 73
Interest expense 635 626 627 630
Interest income {1,121) (1,129) (1,114) (1,143}
Net increasef{decrease) accrued habilittes and deferred iIncome (74) 1 (42) 88
Net (increase)/decrease deferred charges and prepaid expenses 27 15 (4) 21
Amortisation of other intangibles 15 4 5 4 5
Unrealised gain/{loss) on mark-to-market valuations (24} (6) (35) {10)
Net {Increase)/decrease in financed receivables 417 346 404 367
Net (Increase)/decrease 1n vehicles awaiting resale 32 (33) 41 (33)
Net (iIncrease)/decrease wholesale consignment vehicles 2 {5) 2 (5)
Net (increase)/decrease n accounts receivables 39 (18) {75) (71)
Net increase/(decrease) in accounts payables (42) 30 {45) 52
Net (increase)/decrease accounts receivables related companies (396) 7 77 (22)
Net increase/{decrease) in accounts payables related companies 13 (14) 33 24
Rounding
Cash (used in)/from operating activities £(3) £401 £411 £529
* Refer to page 35 Accounting Policy A for details of 2005 restated figures
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of penod
COMPANY GROUP
2006 2005 2008 2005
Cash and cash equivalents £ mil £mil £mil £mi
Bank balances and other hiquid funds (Note 10} £ 479 £ 612 £1,133 £ 1,042
Bank overdrafts (Note 19) (117) {121} {133) (128)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period £ 362 £ 491 £1,000 £ 914

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse of balances held with
less than 90 days matunity from the date of acquisiion including treasury bills and other eligible bills,
amounts due from other banks and petty cash, net of bank overdrafis In the balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are included within habilities withun the caption 'Due to other banks'
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M3  OTHER INFORMATION|

Domicile. United Kingdom (UK)

Legal form* The Company 1s a regulated bank and 1s authorised as a deposit taking business and
insurance intermediary under the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 and 1s regulated by the UK
Financial Services Authority The Company also holds a standard license under the UK Consumer Credit
Act of 1974 and other licenses to conduct financing business in other European locattons In addition to
the UK the Company operates through branches n 15 other European countries having exercised
passport rights to undertake regulated activittes 1in these countries pursuant to the Banking Consolidation
and Insurance Mediation Directives

Country of registration* England and Wales

Registered office: Central Office - Eagle Way, Brentwcod, Essex, CM13 3AR Registered in England
and Wales no 772784

The Company has seven UK subsidiaries (listed below) which share the same registered office as the
Company

Automaotive Finance Limited

FCE Leasing (Holdings) Limited

FCE Leasing Limited

Ford Automotive Leasing Limited

Jaguar Financial Services Limited

Mentpoint Limited

Primus Automotive Financial Services Limited

The registered office of the remaining UK subsidiary 1s as follows
Volvo Car Finance Limited

Globe Park,

Marlow,

Buckinghamshire,

SL7 1YQ

In addition to the UK subsidiaries hsted above the Company has subsidiaries in the Czech Republic,
Finland {where it also has a branch), Hungary and Poland - refer to European operating locations for
addresses of the Company's European branches and subsidiaries

Nature of operations and principal activities FCE's primary business 1s to support the sale of Ford
and affilated manufacturer's vehicles in Europe through the respective dealer networks A variety of
retall, leasing and wholesale finance plans are provided in which the Company and its subsidiaries
operate

In European markets, FCE offers most of our products and services under the Ford Credit/Bank, Volvo
Car Finance, Land Rover Financial Services, Jaguar Financial Services and Mazda CreditYBank brands —
refer to European Operating Locations for further detals The Company through its Worldwide Trade
Financing (WTF} dviston provides financing to importers and distributors 1n countries where typically
there 1s no established local Ford presence WTF currently provides finance in over 70 countnes In
addition there are private label operations in some Eurgpean markets

Immediate parent undertaking. FCE's immediate parent undertaking 1s Ford Credit International Inc
(FCI) FCI does not produce consolidated accounts being wholly owned by, and consolidated into the
accounts of Ford Motor Credit Company (FMCC)

Ultimate parent undertaking: The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Ford Motor
Company (Ford) All three companies (Ford, FC! and FMCC) are incorporated in the United States of
America

Copies of the consolidated accounts for FMCC and Ford may be obtained from Ford Motor Company
(US), The American Road, Dearborn, Michigan 48121, United States of America
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Web site addresses

Additional data and web resources, including those listed below can be obtained from the following web
site addresses

Additional data | Web site addresses

FCE Bank plc

* Annual report and accounts (Enghsh, Sparush and  http //www fcebank com
Italian versions) or

http //'www fordfinancialeurope com

Ford Motor Company (Ultmate Parent Company) hitp //www ford com/en/company/investorinfo

including rmation/
. Annual report
. Financial results
. Secunties and Exchange Commission (SEC)
filings
Ford Motor Credit Company including http /fwww fordcredit com/investorcenter

s SEC Form 10K Annual report

« SEC Form 10-Q Quarterly reports

s Quarterly Financial results announcements

» Ford Credit public asset-backed securties
transactions

Luxembourg’s Stock Exchange which includes www bourse lu
+ Euro Medium Term Note Base Prospectus
(refer to Note 21 'Debt securities in 1ssue'
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European operating locations

In addition to providing retal and wholesale finance for Ford vehicles, the Company’s European branches and subsidianes have established
additional finance facihties and associated trading stytes for Ford affiliated manufacturers in Europe as indicated and detarled 1n the key below

Locaton

AUSTRIA
BELGIUM*

BRITAIN

CZECH REPUBLIC

DENMARK
FINLAND

FRANCE

GERMANY

GREECE

HUNGARY+

IRELAND-++

ITALY

NETHERLANDS

NORWAY

POLAND

PORTUGAL

SPAIN

SWEDEN

SWITZERLAND

Address

Ford Bank Austna Zweigmederlassung der FCE Bank plc,
Fuerbergstrasse 51, Postfach 2, A-5020 Salzburg

FCE Bank plc, Hunderenveldlaan 10, B-1082 Brussels

FCE Bank plc, Central Office, Eagle Way, Brentwood, Essex CM13
JAR
(For a full st of UK subsidiaries refer to Note 43)

FCE Credut, s ro, Karolinska 654/2, 186 00 Prague 8

FCE Bank plc, Borupvang 5 D-E, 2750 Ballerup
FCE Bank plc, Taivaltie 1B, 01610 Vantaa
Volvo Car Finance Lamited, Taivaltie 1 B, 01610 Vantaa

FCE Bank ple, Succursale France, 34 Rue De La Croix De Fer, Samnt-
Germain-en-Laye, 78174

Ford Bank Niederlassung der FCE Bank plc, Zentrale, Josef-
Lammerting-Allee 24-34, 50933 Koln

Mazda Bank Niederlassung der FCE Bank ple, Hitdorfer Strasse 73,
51371 Leverkusen

Jaguar Financial Services Niederlassung der FCE Bank ple, Josef-
Lammerting-Allee 24-34, 50933 Kéln

Land Rover Financial Services Niederlassung der FCE Bank plc, Josef-
Lammerting-Allee 24-34, 50933 Koln

FCE Bank plc, 4 Konstantinoupoleos Ave & St Genata, 12133 Peristen,
Athens

FCE Credit Hungary Zrv/FCE Services Szolgaltaté Kft, 1023 Budapest,
Arpad, Fejedelem utja 26-28

FCE Bank ple, 6th floor, Hume House, Pembroke Road, Ballsbndge,
Dublin 4
FCE plc/FCE spa, Via Andrea Argoh 54, 00143 Rome

FCE Bank plc, Amsteldigk 216/217, Postbus 795, 1600 AT, Amsterdam
Volvo Car Finance Netherlands, Statonsweg 2, NL-4153 RD Beesd
FCE Bank Norsk Avdeling Av Utenlandsk Foretak, Pb 514, 1411
Kolbotn

FCE Credit Poland S A /FCE Bank Polska S A, Aleje Jerozohmskie
181, PL-02-222, Warsaw

FCE Bank plc, Rua Rosa Araujo 2, 6® floor, Parish of Coragio de Jesus,
1250-195 Lisbon

FCE Bank plc Sucursal en Espafia, calle Caléndula, 13, 28109
Alcobendas, Madnd

FCE Bank plc (England) Bankfilialen 1 Svenge, Ravebergsviigen, 405
31 Gateborg

FCE Bank plc (Swiss Branch), Geerenstrasse 10, CH-8304 Wallisellen

Additional Trading
Styles

JFS, LRFS, M, VCF
JFS, LRFS, VCF, M

JFS, LRF5, M, VCF

VCF

VCF, R, M
+P

VCF, R

JES, LRFS, M, P, VCF

VCF

VCF

LRFS, VCF, HFS, M

IFS, LRFS, P, M, VCF

JFS, LRFS, M, VCF

VCF +
LRFS, P, VCF,M, R

VCF, JFS, LRFS
LRF§, M

JFS, LRFS, M, P, VCF
M, JFS** LRFS**

M, VCF

Branch/Subsidiary
Registration No

FN 133 621b
BE450 853 723

772784

25615564

0403
585293
37299
SIREN 392 315 776 - RCS

Versailles
HRB 29668
HRB 49511
HRB 32871

HRB 35233

33806/06/B/95/2)

01-10-043187 (Credit)
01-09-698746 (Services)

E3282

5209

2369

968018124
FCE Credit-KRS No 0000079436
FCE Bank-KRS No 0000046004
4336
0218

516401-9712

CH-020 9 000 633-0

All locations use Ford Financial as an additional trading style Ford Credit 1s commonly used through most European locations In

many locations Business Partner, a full service leasing product, 1s provided by a third party

Key to Trading Styles (V/a = trading as).
JFS = Jaguar Financial Services, LRFS = Land Rover Financial Services, P = PRIMUS (non Ford affiliated), R = Renault,
VCF = Volvo Car Finance, M = Mazda Crecht/Mazda Bank, HFS = Henry Ford & Son Finance

+Ford vehicle financing 1s not undertaken by this location as it 1s provided by FCE/Ford Bank Branch within that country

++ In Hungary and Ireland retail finance 1s provided by a third party
*Also conducts business in Luxembourg
** additional rading styles to be launched later in 2007
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